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May 15, 2008
Dear Fellow Share Owners:
We are pleased to enclose our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.

As we have noted in our recent shareholder communications, 2007 was a challenging year for the
Company overall, including mixed results in our various businesses. While our Silipos business
performed well, our newly acquired Twincraft and Regal businesses did not meet our
expectations. Furthermore, our UK and Canadian businesses were on plan, but the cost of
maintaining these businesses on a corporate level remained high relative to their profit
contribution. In addition, while the steps we have implemented in our legacy business to
improve operations and profitability were somewhat effective, the prospects of that business as it
fit into our overall strategy remained open.

Largely as a result of these factors, the state of the equity and debt capital markets and
implications of a lack of available capital to continue our strategy of growth through
acquisitions, as well as the performance of our stock price, we embarked in November 2007 on a
comprehensive review of strategic alternatives which we are continuing today with the goal of
maximizing shareholder value. We also sought to simplify our activities and look at ways to
make the Company more efficient, reduce expenses, and improve the value of our stock.

As part of this effort, in January 2008 we divested our Langer UK business to Sole Solutions for
approximately $1.2 million, with 80% of the proceeds received in cash and the remainder in a
2-year interest bearing note. We are also implementing a cost reduction program to reduce
corporate overhead expense, including the termination of certain leases, headcount reductions,
cost controls and other measures. We are continuing to look at our strategic alternatives for our
remaining businesses, and we expect to make further announcements about this review when
appropriate.

In December 2007, our Board of Directors approved a share repurchase program, and we
repurchased approximately 342,000 shares of common stock in January 2007. Subsequently, our
Board of Directors approved an expanded share repurchase program through which we are
authorized to repurchase up to $6,000,000 of common stock. Since this approval, we
repurchased approximately 177,000 shares of common stock, and it is our intention to be
opportunistic and strategic in how we use our resources going forward in order to maximize the
return on any capital deployed.

We are continuing to work diligently on this review to determine the best course for the
Company and its shareholders. As always, we appreciate the support of our Board of Directors,
the diligence and hard work of our employees, and the loyalty of our customers.

Sincerely,

\/) o
W. Gray Hudkins
President and Chief Executive Officer
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PART'1
Item 1. Business '’ ' . . .

Overview e '

We design, manufacture and distribute high-quality medical products and services targeting the long-term
care, orthopedic; orthotic and proslht':tic markets. Through our wholly-owned subsidiaries, Twincraft, Inc., and
Silipos, Inc., we also offer a diverse line of personal care products for the private label retail, medical, and
therapeutic markets. We sell our medical products primarily in the United States and Canada, as well as in
more than 30 other countries, to national, regional, and international distributors, directly to healthcare profes-
sionals, and directly to patients in instances where we also are providing product fitting services. We sell our
personal care products primarily in North America to branded marketers of such products, specialty retailers,
direct marketing companies, and companies that service various amenities markets. We acquired Twincraft, a
leading designer and manufacturer of bar soap, and the business of Regal Medical Supply, LLC, a North
Carolina limited liability company (*‘Regal™), which is a provider of contracture management products and
services to patients in long-term care and other rehabilitation settings, in January 2007.

Our broad range of over 500 orthopedic products, including custom foot and ankle orthotic devices,
pre-fabricated foot products, rehabilitation products, and gel-based orthopedic and prosthetics products, are
designed to correct, protect, heal and provide comfort for the patient. Through Regal, we also provide patient
services in long-term care setiings by assisting facility personnel in product selection, order fulfillment, prod-
uct fitting and billing services. Our line of personal care products includes bar soap, gel-based therapeutic
gloves and socks, scar management products, and other products that are designed to cleanse and moisturize
specific areas of the body, often incorporating essential oils, vitamins and nutrients to improve the appearance
and condition of the skin. ' .

Acquisition History

In February 2001, an investor group and management team led by our current Chairman of the Board of
Directors, Warren B. Kanders, purchased a controlling mteres[ in Langer, Inc., a custom orthotics company
distributing its products primarily to podiatric professmnals

The investor group and management team since that time have evolved the Company’s business toward a
growth strategy in both the medical products and personal care mdusmes Since that time, we have consum-
mated the following strategic acquisitions:

«  Twincraft. On January 23, 2007, we acquired Twincraft, our largest acquisition to date, a designer
and manufacturer of bar soap focused on the health and beauty, direct marketing, amenities and
mass market channels. We acquired Twincraft to expand into additional product categories in the
personal care market, to increase our customer exposure for our current line of Silipos gel-based
skincare products, and to take advantage of potential commonalities in research and development
advances between Twincraft's and our product groups. The aggregate consideration paid by us in
connection with this acquisition was approximately $30.6 million, including transaction costs, paid
in cash ($25,938,353) and common stock ($4,701,043 valued at $4.40 per share) of the Company.
The sellers of Twincraft can earn additional compensation in 2008, based upon the achievement of
specific EBITDA targets per the terms of the Twincraft purchase agreement. '

*  Regal. On January 8, 2007, we acquired Regal, a provider of contracture management products and
services to patients in long-term care and other rehabilitation settings. We acquired Regal as part of
an effort to gain access to the long-term care market, to gain a captive distribution channel for
certain custom products we manufacture into a market we previously had been unable to penetrate,
to obtain higher average selling prices for these products, and to establish a national network of

. service professionals to enhance our customér relationships in our core markets and new markets.
The initial consideration for Regal was approximately $1.7 million, which has since been reduced to
approximately $1.4 million due to a shortfall in the amount of working capital delivered at closing.




Silipos. On September 30, 2004, we acquired Silipos, Inc., a designer, manufacturer and marketer
of gel-based products focusing on the orthopedic, orthotic, prosthetic, and skincare markets. We
acquired Silipos because of its distribution channels and proprietary products, and to enable us to
expand into additional product lines that are part of our market focus. The aggregate consideration
paid by us in connection with this acquisition was approximately $17.3 million, including transaction
costs, paid in cash and notes.

Bi-Op. On January 13, 2003, we acqui‘red‘Bi—Op Laboratories, Inc. (““Bi-Op”’), which is engaged
in the design, manufacture and sale of footwear and foot orthotic devices as well as orthotic and
prosthetic services, We acquired Bi-Op to gain access to additional markets and complementary
product lines. The aggregate consideration, including transaction costs, was approximately

$2.2 million, paid in cash and shares of our common stock.

Benefoot.  On May 6, 2002, we acquired the net assets of Benefoot, Inc., and Benefoot Professional
Products, Inc. (together, “Benefoot”). Benefoot designed, manufactured and distributed custom
orthotics, custom Birkenstock® sandals, therapeutic shoes, and prefabricated orthotic devices to
healthcare professionals. We acquired Benefoot to gain additional scale in our historic custom orthot-
ics business as well as to gain access to complementary product lines. The aggregate consideration,
including transaction costs, was approximately $7.9 million, consisting of cash, notes, the assump-
tion of liabitities consisting of approximately $0.3 million of long-term debt paid at closing and
shares of our common stock.

Recent Developments

Ia January 2007, we made two acquisitions, Twincraft and Regal. See “Acquisition History,” above.

In November 2007 we began a study of strategic alternatives available to us with regard to our
various operating companies. We continue to consider acquisitions in our target markets, as well as
examine the possibility of divesting certain assets.

Langer UK. On January 18, 2008 we sold all of the outstanding capital stock of the Company’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, Langer (UK) Limited (“‘Langer UK"") to an affiliate of Sole Solutions, a
retailer of specialty footwear based in the United Kingdom. The sale price was £587,500, or
approximately $1,155,000, of which £475,000 was paid at the closing and £112,500 is in the form of
a note with 8%2% interest due in full in two years. Upon closing the Company entered into an
exclusive sales agency agreement and a distribution services agreement by which Langer UK will
act as sales agent and distributor for Silipos products in the United Kingdom, Europe, Africa, and
Israel. In 2007, we recognized a net loss of approximately $176,000 associated with the disposal of
Langer UK, due to a realized goodwill impairment.

As of December 31, 2007, Langer UK is reflected in the financial statements as a discontinued
operation and the loss of apporoximately $176,000 associated with the sale of Langer UK is
recorded in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Common Stock Repurchase Program. On December 6, 2007, we announced that our Board had
authorized the purchase of up to $2,000,000 of gur outstanding common stock, using whatever
means the Chief Executive Officer may deem appropriate. In connection with this matter, the Com-
pany's senior lender, Wachovia Bank, National Association, has waived, until March 31, 2008, the

~ provisions of the credit facility that would-otherwise preclude the Company from making purchases

of its common stock. Through March 17, 2008, the Company made one purchase consisting of
342,352 shares at a cost of $694,975 (or $2.03 per share} including commissions paid.

QOur Addressable Markets

Personal Care

Personal care products are generally sold in the retail cosmetic marketpiace and include soaps, cleansers,
toners, moisturizers, exfoliants, and facial masks, and can also include over-the-counter {“OTC”") drug prod-
ucts such as acne soaps, antiperspirants, and sunscreens. Independent research has reported that moisturizing




and cleansing products account for the predominant portion of the personal care market. Many of these prod-
ucts combine traditional moisturizing and cleansing agents with compounds such as retinoids, hydroxy acids,
and anti-oxidants that smooth and soothe dry skin, retain water in the outer layer skin cells and help maintain
or reinforce the skin's protective barrier, particularly skin tissue damaged from surgery or injury.

Through the acquisition of Twincraft in January 2007, a manufacturer of bar soap, we have significantly
increased our personal care products segment. For the year ended December 31, 2007, Twincraft had net sales
of approximately $27,800,000, or 42.0 percent of our total net sales.

Based on third-party research, we believe that the U.S. skincare moisturizer market is expected to grow
to approximately $2.5 billion by the end of 2009.

We believe that growth in this market will be driven by an aging population, an increasing number of
image-conscious consumers, and the growth and popularity of spas and body/facial treatment centers.

Medical Products ’ '

The medical products market we target is comprised of orthotic devices and prosthetic products for
non-invasive use. Orthotics are specialized devices to supplement or support abnormal or weakened limbs or
joints. These devices are specially designed to improve function and correct injuries or deformities of existing
limbs or body parts and can be both custom designed to individual patient requirements or pre-fabricated for
off-the-shelf use. Orthotic products range from full body spinal orthoses and custom fabricated arch supports
to braces for the back, shoulder, arm or knee; they may be rigid, semi-rigid, or soft and flexible depending on
the requirement of the patient as evaluated by the doctor treating the patient.

Prosthetics involve the design, fabrication and fitting of artificial limbs for patients who have lost their
limbs due to traumatic injuries, vascular diseases, diabetes, cancer and congenital diseases. Our target market
is comprised of the production and distribution of the components utilized in the fabrication of these pros-
thetic devices. Prosthetic componentry includes external mechanical joints such as hips and knees, artificial
feet and hands, and sheaths and liners utilized as an interface between the amputee’s skin and prosthetic
socket,

Based on third-party research, we believe that the global orthopedic markets that we target are expected
to grow to approximately $3.4 billion by the end of 2009.

We believe that growih of the orthopedic markets we target will be driven by the following factors:

*  Aging Population. By 2010, it is estimated that the number of people in the United States between
the ages of 40 and 60 will grow from approximately 58 million today to more than 64 million. With
longer life expectancy, expanded insurance coverage, improved technology and devices, and greater
mobility, individuals are expected to seek orthopedic rehabilitation services and products more often.

*  Increased Demand for Non-Invasive Procedures. We believe there is growing awareness and
clinical acceptance by patients and healthcare professionals of the benefits of non-invasive solutions,
which should continue to drive demand for non-operative rehabilitation products.

+  Technological Sophistication. of Orthotic and Prosthetic Devices. . In recent years the development
of stronger, lighter and cosmetically appealing materials has led to advancements in design technol-
ogy, driving growth in the orthotic and prosthetic industries. A continuation of this trend should
enable the manufacture of new products that provide greater protection and comfort, and that more
closely replicate the function of natural body parts.

*  Need for Replacement and Continuing Care. Most prosthetic and orthotic devices have useful lives
ranging from three to five years, necessitating ongoing warranty replacement and retrofitting for the
life of the patient.

*  Growing Emphasis on Physical Fitness, Leisure Sports and Conditioning. As a large number of .
individuals participate in athletic activities, many of them suffer strains and injuries, requiring .
non-operative orthopedic rehabilitation products. '




Regal

Through the acquisition of Regal, we entered the market for the direct provision of durable medical
equipment and orthotic and prosthetic supplies directly to patients in consuitation and collaboration with
healthcare professionals in various settings. We are currently targeting the long-term care market, which is
comprised of approximately 48,000 long-term care facilities nationwide; however, we believe that our address-
able market is significantly larger than this because of the existence of other health care settings that prescribe
durable medical equipment but do not presently supply it.

Growth Strategy

»  Gain Access to New Sales Channels to Increase Selling Prices and Improve Profitability. We are
focused on expanding our customer base beyond our traditional core markets and offering an
increasing array of value-added services to increase average selling prices, which we expect to lead
to improved profitability. Our orthotics distribution historically focused on individual podiatry prac-
tices and medical distributors. With the addition of Regal and the provision of certain services, we
are able to offer products and services through healthcare facilities, which increases the compensa-
tion we receive for a given product. In addition, due to the direct nature of the provision of these
services through practitioners and patients, we believe we will have the opportunity to develop the
ability to more directly influence our growth through the addition of licensed, revenue-generating
personnel. Our acquisition of Twincraft is expected to give us new products marketed through new
channeis and improved gross margins.

*  Research, Product, and Process Development. Since 2003, we have introduced over 100 new
products, including the Dura-gel prosthetic liner in September 2005, which led to an 18% increase in
prosthetic product sales in 2006, We also have invested resources in internally developing alternate
gel materials and other thermoplastic elastomer materials in partnership with outside parties that has
increased our competitiveness. During 2006, we completed the conversion of our custom orthotics
manufacturing facilities from traditional manufacturing processes to ‘lean’ manufacturing through
process reengineering, which has led to improved service levels.

*  [nnovation. Qur personal care products group focuses on leveraging the research and development
expertise of both Twincraft and Silipos to provide innovative products to our customers. For
example, Twincraft has successfully commercialized the inclusion of a microsphere encapsulant
within bar soap that incorporates a time-released delivery of an approved OTC active drug ingredi-

"ent. We continuously seek to improve and innovate our gel-based personal care products through the
inclusion of various additives, the formulation of our gels for optimal performance given a particular
application, and the usage of different components, packaging and product construction to meet the
needs of our customers. We believe innovation will be a key to our success in the future and is a
core competency of the personal care products group of the Company. Our sales strategy includes
“partnering” with customers to develop new products and bring them to the market.

»  Strategic Evaluation and Acquisition of Comblemenrary Businesses. We are evaluating strategic
alternatives regarding our operating companies which may include the divestiture of certain assets.
In addition, subject to the availability of financing, we continue to consider targeted acquisitions in
order to gain access to new product groups and customer channels.

Competitive Strengths

Management Team. Our management team has been involved in the acquisition and integration of a
substantial number of companies. Our Chairman of the Board of Directors, Warren B. Kanders, brings a track
record spanning over 20 years of building public companies through strategic acquisitions to enhance organic
growth, W. Gray Hudkins, who became our Chief Operating Officer on Cctober 1, 2004, and our President
and Chief Executive Officer on January 1, 2006, brings a strong investment banking background and has been
involved in the acquisition and integration of acquired companies prior to joining us, and since joining us has
played a-significant role in the acquisition and the integration of Silipos, and the acquisitions of Regal and
Twincraft.




Strong Base Business. As presently constituted, including the recent acquisitions of Twincraft and
Regal, we believe our business represents an increasingly diversified platform upon which to further build our
business. Qur medical products business benefits from a reputation of quality products, approximately
35 patents or patent applications, and quality brands and trademarks; the addition of Regal is expected to
enhance our distribution strength and our ability to directly affect our growth, With the addition of Twincraft,
our personal care products business benefits from a diverse list of blue chip customers in the health and
beauty, direct marketing, amenities and mass market channels, and we believe the combination of Twincraft
with our Silipos skincare business offers the possibility of a number of synergistic revenue and expense
opportunities.

Strength Across Distribution Channels. We believe we maintain strong relationships across various
distribution channels in our two reporting segments.-In our medical products group, this includes over 4,000
individual practitioners, a network of national, regional, independent and international distributors, a number
of national providers of physical therapy rehabilitation services focused on the long-term care market, medical
catalog companies, group purchasing organizations, original equipment manufacturers, specialty retailers, and
consumer catalog companies. In our personal care products group, we enjoy strong relationships with custom-
ers in a number of previously outlined sales channels that provide diversification and the ability to pursue
growth opportunities in a number of different markets focused on a variety of product types and price points.

.

Products

Personal Care Products. We offer a range of skincare products, including bar soap, beauty cleanser,
acne soap and gel-based products such as gloves and sock products that are used for both cosmetic and scar
management purposes, Our personal care products are manufactured in our Winooski, VT and Niagara Falls,
NY facilities. We offer our personal care products to our customers in bulk form, where either they or an
outside party will package the products for sale, and fully packaged so that they can be sold as shipped from,
our facilities.

Orthotics. . We manufacture custom orthotic foot devices, which are contoured molds made from plastic,
graphite, or composite materials, that are placed in the patient’s shoe to correct or mitigate abnormalities in
gait and relieve symptoms associated with foot or postural misalignment. We also manufacture and market a |
line of custom orthotic devices which are used to support the foot/ankle region, (“AFO’s™), which are used
for the more difficult and challenging foot and ankle injuries. We also distribute non-custom orthotics manu-
factured by others.

Gel-Based Orthopedic Products. We manufacture and sell gel-based products for the treatment of
common orthopedic and footcare conditions. These products include digitcare products, diabetes management
products, pressure, friction, and shear force absorption products, products that protect the hands and wrists,
and gel sheeting products for various applications.

Gel-Based Prosthetic Products. 'We manufacture and sell a line of products- that are utilized in the
fabrication of prosthetic devices. For example, we offer sheaths and liners that incorporate a gel interface
between the amputee’s skin and socket, providing protectlon for patients who are subject to significant
pressure between their skin and prosthesis.

PPT® and Other Materials. PPT® is a medical grade soft tissue cushioning material with a high density,
open-celled urethane foam structure, which provides protection against forces of pressure, shock and shear. In
addition to utilizing PPT® in the manufacture of custom orthotics, we have developed and sell a variety of
preducts fabricated from PPT®, including molded insoles, components for orthotic devices and lammaled
sheets.

Orthopedic Soft Goods and Contracture Management Products. We offer a range of products such as
prefabricated rehabilitation products, contracture management braces, compression hose, socks, therapeutic
shoes, resting splints, walkers, and other products for the lower extremities. All of these products are manufac-
tured by third parties, and we market them using the Langer or manufacturer’s brand names.




Sales, Marketing and Distribution

Personal Care

For our personal care product lines, our account representatives interact directly with health and beauty
companies, specialty retailers, cosmetics companies, direct marketing companies, amenities companies, health
clubs and spas, and catalog companies. We will sometimes ship product to customers in bulk for their own
packaging pursuant to private label programs. In other cases, we will package the product ourselves and sell
under our own proprietary brands.

Medical Products

Our sales, marketing and distribution are managed through a combination of national and regional
account managers, field sales representatives, and inside sales representatives who are regionally and nation-
ally based. We utilize international sales and marketing agents and employ representatives in the United
Kingdom, Europe, Asia and Australia. We also utilize educational seminars to educate medical professionals
about our product offerings, followed up with telemarketing efforts. Our custom and prefabricated orthotics, -
AFQ’s, and distributed products have historically been sold to health care practitioners. Our Silipos gel prod-
ucts have historically been sold through medical distributors. To date, we completed the integration of our
medical products sales efforts to combine national account coverage across all of .our brands (Langer, Silipos
and Regal) with field sales support to bring product awareness to the individual practitioner level. Qur PPT®
and materials products have historically been sold to practitioners, manufacturers, and shoe fabricators, as well
as medical distributors, and our gel-based preducts have been sold primarily to medical distributors.

Manufacturing and Sourcing

Manufacturing

We manufacture our custom orthotic product lines in our fabrication facilities in Deer Park, New York
and Montreal, Canada. In our custom orthotic manufacturing process, medical practitioners send plaster casts,
foam impressions, or digital images of the patient’s foot, from which we cast custom orthoses.

We manufacture mineral oil-based gel and gel products in our Niagara Falls, New York facility, including
orthotic and prosthetic products, and gel-based personal care skincare products. This manufacturing process
includes the molding of the gels into specific shapes and sometimes the application of gels to textiles. Our
Niagara Falls facility has obtained ISO 9001 certification, which permits the markctmg of our products in
certain foreign markets, -

We manufacture bar soap in our Winooski, Vermont, facility, with additional warehousing capability in
our Essex, Vermont facility. ‘ .

Sourcing

We source raw materials and components from a variety of suppliers. For bar soap, we source soap base
from a variety of sources in Malaysia and other parts of the Far East and we also source significant amounts
of textiles from various sources in China for our gel-based medical and personal care products. We source
packaging materials both domestically as well as from sources in China and Taiwan. Our prefabricated reha-
bilitation soft goods products such as walkers, resting splints and ankle braces are sourced from contract
manufacturers, some of whom are located in China. We believe that all of our purchased products and
materials could be readily obtained from alternative sources at comparable costs.

Competition

Personal Care

Our personal care products are primarily in the skincare segments. Qur largest individual competitor in
the private label specialty bar soap market is Bradford Soapworks. However, there are a number of other
companies that produce bar soap in larger batch sizes for customers that are typically more focused on the
mass markets. Other skincare products include lotions, creams, water-based gels, oil-based gels, ointments and
other types of products that transmit moisture, vitamins, minerals, and comfort agents to the skin. Personal
care also includes categories in which the Company does not currently participate such as oral care,




ingestibles, and nutraceuticals, among others. The market for high-end skincare products is dominated by a
number of large multinational companies that sell under brands such as Shiseido, LVMH Moet Hennessy
Louis Vuitton, Clarins and Revlon. In addition, a number of specialty retailers and catalog companies that
focus on the skincare market, such as The Body Shop and L’Occname are vemcally integrated and
manufacture their own products.

Medical Products o . y

The markets for our medical products are highly competitive, and we compete with a variety of compa-
nies ranging from small businesses to large corporations. We believe the markets for foot orthotics and
off-the-shelf footcare products are highly fragmented and regional (and .in many instances local) in nature.’
Although a few licensed medical practitioners produce foot orthotics in-house, the custom orthotic market is
serviced primarily by third-party laboratories. Competitors sell nationally in the United States under such
brands as Bergmann Orthotic Laboratory, Foot Levelers, Footmaxx Holdings, KLM Orthotic Laboratories,
Allied OSI Labs, ProLab Orthotics and PAL Health Systems. Included in the markets for off-the-shelf footcare
products are participants such as Dr. Scholls, Implus, Spenco and ProFoot, The market for soft tissue products
such as PPT® includes brand name products such as Spenco®, Sorbothane® and Poron®.

In each of our target markets, the principal competitive factors are product design, innovation and perfor-
mance, efficiencies of scale, quality of engineering, brand’ recogmuon reputation in the mdustry, producnon
c¢apability and capacity, and price and customer relations,

Patents and Trademarks . ‘

We hold or have the exclusive right to use a variety of patems trademarks and copyrights in several’
countries, including the United States. We hold or have the exclusive nght to usc approximately 35 patents
and patent applications in the U.S. and certain foreign jurisdictions and a number of trademarks for technolo-
gies and brands related to our praduct offerings. In addition, we have (i) a non-exclusive, paid up (except for
certain administrative fees) license with Applied Elastomerics, Incorporated, dated as, of November 30, 2001,
as amended (the “AEI License™), to manufacture and sell certain products using mineral oil-based gels which
are manufactured using certain patents; the license terminates upon the expiration of the patents, which expire
between November 16, 2010 and December 3, 2017, and (ii} a license with Gerald Zook effective as of
January 1, 1997, to manufacture and sell certain products' using mineral oil-based gels under certain patents
and know-how in exchange for sales-based royalty payments; the license is exclusive as to certain products
and non-exclusive as to other products, and terminates upon expiration of the underlying patents, which expire
between June 27, 2006 and March 12, 2013. We also have exclusive licenses 1o three types of orthotic devices
which are patented in the United States and several foreign countries. Other than the AEI License and the
Zook license, we believe that none of our dctive patents or licenses are essential to the successful operation of
our business as a whole, although the loss of any patent protection that we have could allow competitors to
utilize techniques developed by us or our licensors. We believe our trademarks and trade names, including
Langer™, Sporthotics™, PPT®, Silipos™, Explorer Gel Liner™, Siloliner™, DuraGel™, and Silopad™,
contribute significantly to brand recognition for our products, and the inability to use one or more of these
names could have a material adverse effect on our business. For the year ended December 31, 2007, revenues
generated by the products incorporating in the technology licensed under the AE] License accounted for
approximately 22.4% of our revenues.

Employees +

As of March 1, 2008, we have 487 employees, of which 217 were located in Winooski, Vermont,
105 were located in Deer Park, New York, 74 were located in Niagara Falls, New York, 1 were located in
New York, New York, 40 were located in Montreal, Canada, 4 were located in Markham, Ontario, Canada,
10 were located'in King of Prussia, Pennsylvania, and 26 are outside salespeople-at various other locations.
None of our employees are represented by unions or covered by any collective bargaining agreements. We
have not experienced any work stoppages or employee-related slowdowns and believe that our relationship
with employees is satisfactory. :




Government Regulation .

Medical Device Regulatwn

United States. Our products and operations are Sub_]eCt to regulatlon by the Food and Drug Administra-
tion, or FDA, the Federal Trade Commission, or FTC, state authorities and comparable authorities in foreign
jurisdictions. The FDA regulates the research, testing, manufacturing, safety, labeling, storage, recordkeeping,
premarket clearance or approval, promotion, distribution and production of medicat devices in the United
States to ensure that medical products distributed domestically are safe and effective for their intended uses, In
addition, the FDA regulates the export of medical devices manufactured in the United States to international
markets. Under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, or FFDCA, medical devices are classified into one
of three classes — Class I, Class IT or Class I (described below) — depending on the degree of risk associ-
ated with each medical device and the extent of control needed to ensure safety and effectiveness. Qur
products are generally Class I devices, with the exception of certain gel sheeting and prosthetic devices which
are Class II devices. The FTC regulates product advemsmg to help ensure that claims are truthful and
non-misleading. . :

Class I devices are subject to’the lowest degree of regulatory scrutiny because they ‘are considered low
risk devices. FDA requires Ciass 1 devices to comply with its General Controls, which include compliance
with the applicable portions of the FDA’s Quality System Regulation, or QSR, facility registration,and product
listing, reporting of adverse medical events, and appropriate, truthful and non-misleading labeling, advertising,
and promotional materials. Most Class I devices are not required to submit 510(k) premarket notifications, but
all are subject to the FDA’s general misbranding and adulteration prohibitions.

Class II devices are subject to the General Controls as well as certain Special Controls such as perfor-
mance standards, post-market surveillance, and patient registries to assure the device's safety and
effectiveness. Class [l devices also typically require the submission and clearance of a 510(k) premarket
notification prior to marketing. Unless a specific exemption applies, 510(k) premarket notification submissions
are subject to user fees. When a 510(k) premarket notification is required, the manufacturer must submit
information to the FDA demonstrating that the device is “substantially equivalent” to a “predicate device”
which is either a device that was legally marketed prior to May 28, 1976 (the date upon which the Medical
Device Amendments of 1976 were enacted) or another commercxally available, snm1lar device that was subse-
quently cleared through the SIO(k) process

If the FDA agrees that the devxce is substamlally equivalent, it will grant a clearance order to allow the
commercial marketing of the device in the U.S. By statute, the FDA is required to clear a 510(k) premarket
notification within 90 days of submission of the application. As a practical matter, clearance often takes
longer. If the FDA determines that the device, or its intended use, is not *‘substantially equivalent” to a
previously-cleared device or use, the FDA will place the device, or the particular use of the device, into
Class III, and the device sponsor must then fulfill more rigorous premarketing requirements which may
include the submission of a premarket approval application or the submission of a.reclassification petition
seeking de novo review of the device and placement into, Class 1 or Class . There can be no assurance that
future device submissions will receive 510(k) clearances within 90 days of submission or that we will be
successful in obtaining 510(k) clearances for any of our preducts, which could have a materially adverse
effect on us. - .

Class [l devices are subject to the highest level of regulatory scrutiny and typically include life support
and life sustaining devices and implants as well as devices with a new intended use or technological charac-’
teristics that are not substantially equivalent to a use or technology currently being legally marketed. A
premarket approval application, or “PMA,” must be submitted and approved by FDA before marketing'in the
UsS.

The FDA will grant a PMA approval if it finds that the safety and effectiveness of the product have been
sufficiently demonstrated and'that the product complies with all applicable regulations and standards. The
FDA may require further clinical evaluation of the product, terminate the clinical trials, grant premarket
approval but restrict the number of devices distributed, or require additional patient follow-up for an indefinite
period of time. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in obtaining a PMA for any. Class LI
products, which is necessary before marketing a Class 111 product in the U.S. Delays in obtaining marketing




approvals and clearances in the U.S. could have a material adverse effect on us. Unless an exemption applies,
PMA submissions also are subject to.user fees.

The FDA, by statute and by regulation, has 180 days to review a PMA application that has been accepted
for ﬁlmg, although the review of an appllcatlorl ‘more often occurs over a significantly longer period of time,
and can take several years. In approving a PMA application or clearing a 510(k) premarket notification appli-
cation, the FDA may also require some form of post-market surveillance when the agency determines it to be
necessary to protect the public health or to provide addmonal safety and effectiveness data for the device. In
such cases, the manufacturer might be requlred to follow certain patient groups for a number of years and to
make periodic reports to the FDA on the clinical status of those patients.

Medical devices can be marketed only for the indications for which they are cleared or approved. Modifi-
cations to a previously cleared or approved device that could significantly affect its safety or effectiveness or
that would constitute a major change in its intended use, désign or manufacture require the submission of a
new S10(k) premarket notification, a premarket approval supplement or a new premarket approval application.
We have modified various aspects of our devices in the past and determined that new approvals, clearances or
supplements were not required or we filed a new 510(k). Nonetheless, the FDA may disagree with our conclu-
sion that clearances or approvals were not required for particular products and may require approvai or
clearances for such past or any future meodifications or to obtain new indications for our existing products.
Such submissions may require the submission of additional clinical or preclinical data and may be time con-
suming and costly, and may not ultimately be cleared or approved by the FDA:

Our manufacturing processes -are required to comply with the applicable portions of the QSR, which
covers the methods and documentation of the design, testing, production, processes, controls, quality assur-
ance, labeling, packaging and shipping of our products. The QSR also, among other things, requires
maintenance of a device master record, device hlstory record, and complaint files. Domestic and foreign
facilities associated with the manufacturing of our products for distribution in the United States are subject to
periodic unscheduled inspections by the FDA to assure compliance with the FFDCA and the regulations
thereunder. Based on internal audits, we believe that our facilities are in substantial compliance with the
applicable QSR regulations. We also are required to report to the FDA if our products cause or contribute to a
death or 'serious injury or malfunction in a way that would likely cause or contribute to death or serious injury
were the malfunction to recur. Although medical device reports have been subtx'_titted in the past 5 years, none
have resulted in a recall of our products or other regulatory action by the FDA. The FDA and authorities in
other countries can require the recall of products in the event of material defects or deficienciés in design or
manufacturing. The FDA can also withdraw or limit our product approvals or clearances in the event of
serious, unanticipated health or safety concerns. We may also be required to submit reports to the FDA of
corrections and removals. Separately, we may on our own choose to conduct a voluntary market withdrawal in
situations that do not regmre a recall, correction or removal. The FDA could disagree with this characteriza-
tion and require the reporting of a cormrection or removal.

The FDA has broad regulatory and enforcement powers. If the FDA determines that we have failed to
comply with applicable regulatory requirements, it can impose a variety of enforcement actions from public
warning letters, fines, injunctions, consent decrees and civil penalties to suspension or delayed issuance of
approvals, seizure or recall of our products, total or partlal shutdown of production, withdrawal of approvals
or clearances already granted, and criminal prosecution. The FDA can also require us to repair, replace or
refund the cost of devices that we manufactured or distributed. If any of these events were to occur, it could
materially adversely affect us.

Legal restrictions on the export from the United States of any medical device that is legally distributed in
the United States are limited. However, there are restrictions under U.S. law on the export from the United
States of medical devices that cannot be legally distributed in the United States, If a Class I or Class 1I device
does not have 510(k) clearance, and the manufacturer reasonably believes that the device could obtain 510(k)
clearance in the United States, then the device can be exported to a foreign country for commercial marketing
without the submission of any type of export request or prior FDA approval, if it satisfies certain limited




criteria relating primarily to specifications of the foreign purchaser and compliance with the laws of the coun-
try to which it is being exported (Importing Country Criteria), We believe that all of our current products -~ *
which are exported to foreign countries currently comply with these restrictions.

International. In many of the foreign countries in which we market our products, we are subject to
similar regulatory requirements concerning the marketing of new medical devices. The regulations affect,
among other things, product standards, packaging requirements, labeling requirements, import restrictions,
tariff regulations, duties and tax requirements. The regulatlon of our products in Europe falls primarily within
the European Economic Area, which consists of the fifteen membeér states of the European Union as well as
Iceland, Lichtenstein and Norway. The legislative bodies of the European Union have adopted three directives
in order to harmenize national provisions regulating the design, manufacture, clinical trials, labeling and '
adverse event reporting for medical devices: the Council Directives 30/385/EEC (Actives Implantables
Directive); 93/42/EEC (Medical Device Directive); and 98/79/EC (In-Vitro-Diagnostics Directive). The mem-
ber states of the European Economic Area have implemented the directives into their respective national law.
Medical devices that comply with the essential requirements of the national provisions and the directives will
be entitled to bear a CE marking. Unless an exemption applies, only medical devices which bear a CE mark-
ing may be marketed ‘within the European Economic ‘Area. There can be no assurance that we will be
successful in obtaining CE marks for our products in a timely manner, if at all, which could have a material
adverse éffect on the market price of our common stock and our business, ﬁnanmal condition and results of
operations.

. . N B ' .
The European Standardization Committees have adopted numerous harmonized standards for specific
types of medical devices. Compliance with relevant standards establishes the presumption of conformity with
the essential requirements for a CE marking and we are subject to conformity audits at any time.

Post market surveillance of medical devices in the European Economic Area is generally conducted on a
country-by-country basis. The requirement within the merber states of the European Economic Area vary.
Due to the movement towards harmonization of standards in the European Union and the expansion of the
European Union, we expect a changing regulatory environment in Europe characterized by a shift from a
country-by-country regulatory system to a European Union- widé smgle regulatory system. The timirg of this
harmonization and its effect on us cannot currently’be predlcted

%

In Canada, the Medical Devices Regulations of the Medical Device Bureau, Therapeutic Products
Directorate of Health Canada (*“TPD”), set out the requirements governing the sale, importation and adver-
tisement of medical devices. The regulations are intended to ensure that medical devices distributed in Canada
are both safe and effective. The Canadian medical device classification system is broadly similar to the classi-
fication systems in place in the European Union and the United States and is based on a Class I to Class IV
risk-based classification system, with Class 1 being the lowest risk and Class 1V being the highest. The TPD
has provided a comprehensive set of rules determining the class1ﬁcat10n of a device, and, ultimately, the
rcsponmbnllty of clasmﬁcanon lies with the manufacturer or importer. The TPD has provided a database of
common devices and their risk classifications for reference. Devices that are Class II, Il and IV are required
to have a device license. Class I devices are not so required. Device licenses must be obtained from the TPD
before the sale of the device, effectively creating a premarket approval regime for these categories. Many
non-invasive devices are classified as Class I devices requiring only an establishment license, while manufac-
turers of Class I1, T and IV devices do not. Effective January i, 2003, new Canadian regulatory quality
systems requirements for medical dev1ces took effect applying cstabhshed quality standards to all Canadian
and foreign manufacturers holding Class II, [1I and IV medical device licenses, and all Canadian and foreign
manufacturers applying for Class II, Il and 1V medical ]1cense;s. These quality system regulations require
Class IT medical devices to be manufactured under CAN/CSA ISO 13488-1998, and Class III and IV medical
devices 10 be designed and manufactured under CAN/CSA 1SO 13485-1998. There are no regulatory quality
system requirements for Class [ medical devices.

Personal Care Product Regulation : |

Our personal care products are subject to regulation by the U.S. FDA, FTC, the Consumer Product Safety
Commission (the ““CPSC”) and various other federal, state, and foreign governmental authorities. Depending
upon product claims and formulation, skincare products may be regulated as consumer products, cosmetics,

10




drugs or devices. The Langer/Silipos skincare products are primarily regulated as cosmetics, with the excep-
tion of the scar management gel sheeting which are medical devices because of their mode of use. Currently
27% of the newly acquired Twincraft business is soap product that is not regulated by the FDA, but by the
CPSC as a consumer product. Currently 68% of the Twincraft business is beauty soap/cleanser that is regu-
lated by FDA as a cosmetic. Currently 5% of the Twincraft business is antimicrobial soap that is regulated by
FDA as an OTC drug product.

Traditional soap products, which are defined as products in which most of the nonvolatile matter consists
of an alkali salt of fatty acid and the detergent properties are due to the alkali-fatty acid compounds, are
regulated by the CPSC under the authority of the Federal Hazardous Substances Act (“FHSA”). The FHSA
requires that certain household products bear cautionary labeling to alert consumers to potential hazards that
those products present. This could include warning labels for soap products if they are viewed as having
irritant properties. If the CPSC believes a consumer product poses a significant hazard, it may demand recall
of the product.

Traditional soap products which are intended not only for cleansing but for other cosmetic uses such as
beautifying, deodorizing, or moisturizing, are regulated by FDA as cosmetics, as are beauty soaps/cleansers
that do not consist primarily of alkali salts of fatty acids. These products would need to meet FDA’s cosmetic
requirements. There are fewer regulatory requirements for cosmetic products than for drugs or medical
devices. Cosmetics marketed in the United States must comply with the FFDCA, the Fair Packaging and
Labeling Act, and the FDA’s implementing regulations. Cosmetics must also comply with the FDA’s ingredi-
ent, quality, and labeling requirements and the FTC’s requiren{ents pertaining to truthful and non-misleading
advertising.

Traditional soap products and beauty soaps/cleansers that include claims to cure, treat, or prevent disease
or to affect the structure or any function of the human body are regulated as drug products. A small percent-
age of the Twincraft soap products are marketed as acne soaps which are regulated by the FDA as OTC drug
products under the final monograph or regulation for topical ‘antimicrobial drug products. Any deviation from
the conditions described in the final monograph would require premarket approval from the FDA. If a product
is marketed beyond the scope of the final monograph, such as making a labeling claim or including an active
ingredient hot covered by the monograph, the FDA will consider the product to be unapproved and mis-
branded and can take enforcement action against the Company or the product. OTC drug products must also
comply with the FTC’s requirements pertaining to truthful and non-misleading advertising.

The FDA, FTC, or CPSC could disagree with our characterization of our skincare products or product
claims. This could result‘in a variety of enforcement actions which could require the reformulation or relabel-
ing of our products, the submission of information in support of the products’ claims or the safety and
effectiveness of our products, or more punitive action, all of which could have a material adverse effect on the
market price of our common stock and our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Pursuant to the FFDCA, the portion of the Twincraft business that is invo']ved with the manufacture of
acne soap products must also comply with the FDA's current good manufacturing practices, or GMPs, for
drugs. As part of its regulatory authority, the FDA may periodically inspect the physical facilities, machinery,
processes, records, and procedures that we use in the manufacture, packaging, storage and distribution of the
drug products. The FDA may perform these inspections at any time and without advanced notice. Twincraft
has a dedicated manufacturing line for soaps that are subject to drug regulations. Based on internal audits of
the Twincraft facility, we believe it is in substantial compliance with the applicable drug GMP regulations.
However, subsequent internal or FDA inspections may require us to make certain changes in our manufactur-
ing facilities and processes. We may be required to make additional expenditures to comply with these orders
or possibly discontinue selling certain products until we comply with these orders. As a result, our business
could be adversely affected.

The portion of Twincraft’s business that involves OTC drug products such as acne soaps and antimicro-
bial drug products must also comply with recently enacted FFDCA provisions requiring serious adverse event
reporting, the maintenance of adverse event report records, and the listing of contact information for adverse
event reporting on product labeling. Failure to comply with these provisions is a *prohibited act” and could
adversely affect our business.
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Federal Privacy and Transaction Law and Regulations -

Nurherous' state, federal dnd international laws and regulations govern the collection, dissemination, use,
privacy, confidentiality, security, availability and integrity of patient health information (“patient informa-
tion”), including the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, In the provision’
of items and services to our customers, we may collect, use, maintain and transmit patient information in .
ways that are subject to many of these laws and regulations. The three rules that were promulgated pursuant
to HIPAA that could most significantly affect our business are the Siandards for Electronic Transactions, or
Transactions Rule; the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information, or Privacy Rule;
and the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health Information, or Security Rule.
The respective compliance dates for these rules for most entities were October 16, 2003, April 14, 2003 and
April 20, 2005. In addition, the Standard for Unique Health Identifiers for Health Care Providers, or National
Provider Identifier Rule, which was effective May 23, 2007, could affect our business. HIPAA applies to
covered entities, which include our business and most healthcare facilities and health plans that contract with
us for the use of our services. Other federal and state laws restricting the use and protecting the privacy of
patient information also apply to us directly by law or indirectly through contractual obligations to our
customers which are directly subject to the laws.

The Transactions Rule establishes format and data content standards for eight of the most common
healthcare transactions. When we perform billing and collection services on behalf of our customers we may
be engaging in one of more of these standard transactions and will be required to conduct those transactions
in compliance with the required standards. The HIPAA Privacy Rule restricts the use and disclosure of patient
information, requires entities to safeguard that information and to provide certain rights to individuals with
respect to that information. The HIPAA Security Rule establishes requirements for safeguarding patient infor-
mation transmitted or stored electronicalty. The Privacy Rule and Security Rule require the development and
implementation of detailed policies, procedures, contracts and forms to assure compliance.

The National Provider Identifier Rule establishes the standard for a unique health identifier for health care
providers for use in the health care system along with implementation specifications for obtaining and using
the identifier. In general, this rule requires a covered health care provider and any subpart of the covered
entity that would be a covered health care provider if it were a separate legal entity, to apply for a provider
identifier and use it in the standard transactions.

The HIPAA rules also require covered entities to contractually obligate certain of their contractors who
may receive protected health information during the course of rendering services on behalf of that entity, to
abide by certain business associate contract requirements. We enter into these contracts as business associates
of our customers who contract for the use of our protocols and services and with vendors who perform ser-
vices on our behalf.

Federal and state consumer laws are being applied increasingly by the Federal Trade Commission, or
FTC, and state attorneys general to regulate the collection, use and disclosure of personal or patient informa-
tion, through web sites or otherwise, and to regulate the presentation of web'site content. Courts may also
adopt the standards for fair information practlces promulgated by the FTC, which concern consumer notice,
choice, security and access.

Numerous other federal and state laws protect the confidentiality, privacy and security of patient informa-
tion. These laws in many cases are more restrictive than and not preempted by the HIPAA rules and may be
subject to varying interpretations by courts and government agencies, creating complex compliance issues for
us and our customers- and potentially exposing us to additional expense, adverse publicity and liability. .

New health information standards, whether implemented pursuant to HIPAA, congressional action or
otherwise, could have a significant effect on the manner in which we must handle healthcare related data, and
the cost of complying with standards could be significant. If we do not properly comply with existing or new
laws and regulations related to patient health information we could be subject to criminal or civil sanctions,

Third-Party Reimbursement

Some of our products are prescribed by physicians or other health care service prowdem and are eligible
for third-party reimbursement, including from federal and state health insurance programs, such as Medicare




and Medicaid. An important consideration for our business is whether third-party payment amounts will be
adequate, since this is a factor in our customers’ selection of our products. The health care industry is continu-
ing to experience a trend toward cost containment as government and private third-party payers seek to
contain reimbursement and utilization rates and to negotiate reduced payment schedules with health care
product suppliers. We believe that third-party payers will continue to focus on measures to contain or reduce
their costs through managed care and other efforts. These trends may result in a reduction from historical
levels in per item revenue received for our products.

Medicare policies are important to our business because many of our products are covered by Medicare
and sold to Medicare beneficiaries. Moreover, third-party payers often model their policies after the Medicare
program’s coverage and reimbursement policies. On December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003, or Modernization Act, was enacted. This legislation, among
other things, substantially revised the manner in which Medicare covers and pays for items of durable medical
equipment and orthotic devices. First, this legislation provided that Medicare will not provide annual inflation
adjustments to payment amounts for orthotic devices during 2004 through 2006, and for and durable medical
equipment during 2004 through 2008, Second, this legislation provided that beginning in 2007, Medicare
would begin paying for certain items of durable medical equipment and orthotics through a competitive bid-
ding program instead of the existing fee schedule payment methodology. Off-the-shelf orthotic devices and
other non-Class I1I devices are subject to the program. The competitive bidding program will begin in ten
high population metropolitan statistical areas in 2007, and then be expanded to 80 metropolitan statistical
areas in 2009, and additional areas thereafter. Payments in regions not subject to competitive bidding may also
be adjusted using payment information from regions subject to competitive bidding. The Centers for Medicare
and Medicaid Services (**CMS”) published final regulations governing the competitive bidding program on
April 10, 2007. Many of our preducts are subject to competitive bidding in the markets where we do business,
and Medicare payment rates for our products will be affected even in markets where competitive bidding is
not implemented, thereby affecting revenue for many of our products, Third, this legislation provided that all
Medicare suppliers must meet new supplier quality standards and be accredited by independent accreditation
organizations. Our suppliers will be subject to these new quality standards and accreditation requirements.
Fourth, this legislation provided that certain products would be required to meet specified clinical conditions
to qualify for Medicare payment.

In recent years, efforts to control Medicare costs have included the heightened scrutiny of reimbursement
codes and payment methodologies. Under Medicare, certain devices used by outpatients are classified using
reimbursement codes, which in turn form the basis for each device’s Medicare payment levels. Changes to the
reimbursement codes describing our products can result i in reduced payment levels or the breadth of produc[s
for which reimbursement can be sought under recognized codes.

On February 11, 2003, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS, made effective an
interim final regulation implementing “inherent reasonableness™ authority, which atlows the agency and
contractors to adjust payment amounts by up to 15% per year for certain items and services when the existing
payment amount is determined to be grossly excessive or grossly deficient. The regulation lists factors that
may be used by CMS and its contractors to determine whether an existing reimbursement rate is grossly
excessive or grossly deficient and to determine a realistic and equitable payment amount. CMS may make a
larger adjustment each year if it undertakes prescribed procedures. The agency’s authority to use its inherent
reasonableness authority was limited somewhat by the Modernization Act. We do not know what impact
inherent reasonableness and competitive bidding would have on us or the reimbursement of our products.

Under current Medicare law, suppliers dispensing orthotics and therapeutic shoes must be qualified to do
so. Legislation enacted in 2000 requires that suppliers of certain orthotics be certified by specified organiza-
tions. CMS and its contractors have at various times sought to require that suppliers of therapeutic shoes be
certified by specified organizations. We believe that we are in compliance with these certification requirements
to the extent that they apply to our employees and the products we sell. Congress or CMS could further revise
these qualification standards in a manner that would affect our ability to participate in the Medicare program.

Considerable uncertainty surrounds the future determination of Medicare reimbursement levels for our
products, [tems reimbursable under the Medicare program are subject to legislative change, administrative
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rulings, interpretations, discretion, governmental funding restrictions and requirements for utilization review.
Such matters, as well as more general governmental budgetary concerns, may significantly reduce payments
available for our products under this program.

In addition to Medicare-related changes, numerous legislative proposals have been introduced in the U.S.
Congress and in various state legislatures over the past several years that could cause major reforms of the
U.S. health care system.

State Administrative Prerequisites

Many states require that suppliers of orthotics and therapeutic shoes register with the state prior to fur-
nishing such items in those states. In addition, in order for Regal to collect revenues for sales of durable
medical goods to patients in long-term care facilities, we must be enrolled with the state Medicaid program
and state Medicaid Insurance providers. We must also be accredited by an independent accrediting agency to
provide the services. More states could enact such requirements; states with such requirements could further
revise these requirements in a manner that would affect our ability to conduct our business in these states.

Fraud and Abuse

We are subject to various federal and state laws pertaining to healthcare fraud and abuse, including
anti-kickback laws and physician self-referral laws. Violations of these laws are punishable by criminal and
civil sanctions, including, in some instances, exclusion from participation in federal and state healthcare
programs, including Medicare, Medicaid, Veterans Administration health programs and TRICARE. We believe
that our operations are in material compliance with such laws. However, because of the far-reaching nature of
these laws, there can be no assurance that we would not be required to alter one or more of our practices to
be deemed to be in compliance with these laws. In addition, there can be no assurance that the occurrence of
one or more violations of these laws or regulations would not result in a material adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations.

Anti-kickback and Fraud Laws

Our operations are subject to federal and state anti-kickback laws. Certain provisions of the Social Secu-
rity Act, which are commonly known collectively as the Medicare Fraud and Abuse Statute, prohibit persons
from knowingly and willfully soliciting, receiving, offering or providing remuneration directly or indirectly to
induce either the referral of an individual, or the furnishing, recommending, or arranging for a good or ser-
vice, for which payment may be made under a federal healthcare program such as Medicare and Medicaid.
The definition of “remuneration” has been broadly interpreted to include anything of value, including such
items as gifts, discounts, waiver of payments, and providing anything at less than its fair market value. Health
and Human Services (*HHS$”) has issued regulations, commonly known as safe harbors that set forth certain
provisions which, if fully met, will assure healthcare providers and other parties that they will not be pros-
ecuted under the Medicare Fraud and Abuse Statute. Although full compliance with these provisions ensures
against prosecution under the Medicare Fraud and Abuse Statute, the failure of a transaction or arrangement o
fit within a specific safe harbor does not necessarily mean that the transaction or arrangement is illegal or that
prosecution under the Medicare Fraud and Abuse Statute will be pursued. The penalties for violating the
Medicare Fraud and Abuse Statute include imprisonment for up o five years, fines of up to $25,000 per
violation and possible exclusion from federal healthcare programs such as Medicare and Medicaid. Many
states have adopted prohibitions similar 1o the Medicare Fraud and Abuse Statute, some of which apply to the
referral of patients for healthcare services reimbursed by any source, not only by the Medicare and Medicaid
programs.

HIPAA created two new federal crimes: healthcare fraud and false statements relating to healthcare
matters. The healthcare fraud statute prohibits knowingly and willfully executing or attempting to execute a
scheme or artifice to defraud any healthcare benefit program, including private payers. The false statements
statute prohibits knowingly and willfully falsifying, concealing or covering up a material fact or making any
materially false, fictitious or fraudulent statement or representation in connection with the delivery of or
payment for healthcare benefits, items or services. This statute applies to any health benefit plan, not just
Medicare and Medicaid. Additionally, HIPAA granted expanded enforcement autherity to HHS and the United
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States Department of Justice, or DOJ, and provided enhanced resources to support the activities and responsi-
bilities of the OIG and DOJ by authorizing large increases in funding for investigating fraud and abuse
violations relating to healthcare delivery and payment.

Physician Self-Referral Laws

We are also potentially subject to federal and state physician self-referral laws. Federal physician self-
referral legislation (commonly known as the Stark Law) prohibits, subject to certain exceptions, physician
referrals of Medicare and Medicaid patients to an entity providing certain *‘designated health services™ if the
physician or an immediate family member has any financial relationship with the entity. The Stark Law also
prohibits the entity receiving the referral from biiling any good or service furnished pursuant to an unlawful
referral, and any person collecting any amounts in connection with an unlawful referral is obligated to refund
such amounts. A persen who engages in a scheme to circumvent the Stark Law’s referral prohibition may be
fined up to $100,000 for each such arrangement or scheme. The penalties for violating the Stark Law also
include civil monetary penalties of up to $15,000 per service and possible exclusion from federal healthcare
programs such as Medicare and Medicaid. Various states have corollary laws to the Stark Law, including laws
that require physicians to disclose any financial interest they may have with a healthcare provider to their
patients when referring patients to that provider. Both the scope and exceptions for such laws vary from state
to state.

False Claims Laws

Under separate statutes, submission of claims for payment that are “‘not provided as claimed” may lead
to civil money penalties, criminal fines and imprisonment, andfor exclusion from participation in Medicare,
Medicaid and other federal healthcare programs and federally funded state health programs. These false claims
statutes include the federal False Ciaims Act, which prohibits the knowing filing of a false claim or the know-
ing use of false statements to obtain payment from the federal government, When an entity is determined to
have violated the False Claims Act, it may be liable for up to three times the actual damages sustained by the
government, plus mandatory civil penalties of between $5;000 and $10,000 for each separate false claim. Suits
filed under the False Claims Act, known as “qui tam™ actions, ¢an be brought by any individual on behalf of
the government and such individuals (known as *‘relators™ or, more commonly, as *“‘whistieblowers”) may
share in any amounts paid by the entity to the government in fines or settlement. In addition, certain states
have enacted laws modeled after the federal False Claims Act. Qui tam actions have increased significantly in
recent years, causing greater numbers of healthcare companies to have to defend a false claim action, pay
fines or be excluded from the Medicare, Medicaid or other federal or state healthcare programs as a result of
an investigation arising out of such action. In addition, the Deficit Reduction Action of 2005 (“*DRA”) encour-
ages states to enact state-versions of the False Claims Act that establish liability to the state for false and
fraudulent Medicaid claims and that provide for, among other things, claims to be filed by qui tam relators.

Seasonality

Revenue derived from our sales of orthotic devices in North America has historically been significantly
higher in the warmer months of the year. Other factors which can result in quarterly variations include the
timing and amount of new business generated by us, the timing of new product introductions, our revenue
mix, the timing of additional selling, general and administrative expenses to support the anticipated growth
and development of new business units and the competitive and fluctuating economic conditions in the
orthopedic and skincare industries.

Inflation

We have in the past been able to increase the prices of our products or reduce overhead costs sufficiently
to offset the effects of inflation on wages, materials and other expenses. There can be no assurance that we
wili be able to continue to do so. :




Special Note Regarding Forward-looking Statements

Certain statements contained or incorporated by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, in other
SEC filings by the Company, in press releases, and in presentations by the Company or its management -may
constitute *‘forward-looking statements™ within the meaning of the Federal securities laws. Forward-looking
statements include statements concerning our plans, objectives, goals, strategies, future events, future revenues
or performance, capital expenditures, financing needs, plans or intentions relating to’acquisitions, our
competitive strengths and weaknesses, our business strategy and the trends we anticipate in the industry and
economies in which wé operate and other information that is not historical information. Words or phrases such
as “‘estimates,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “projects,” *‘plans,” “intends,” “believes” and variations of such
words or simitar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These statements reflect our
current views about future events based on information currently available and assumptions we make. These
forward-looking and other statements, which are not historical facts, are based largely upon our current expec-
tations and assumptions and are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results
to differ materially from those contemplated by such forward-looking statements.

LI LAY ELNYY

These risks and uncertainties include, among others:

*  Qur history of net losses and the possibility of contiﬁuing net losses beyond 2007.
*  We may not be able to manage our growth.

»  Risks associated with our strategy of acquiring and integrating businesses.

*  The risk that we may not be able to raise adequate financing to fund our operations and growth
prospects.

Accordingly, we advise you to carefully review the information set forth in Iem 1A, “Risk Factors.”

We cannot guarantee our future performance nor can we assure you that we will be successfut in the
implementation of our growth strategy or that any such strategy will result in our future profitability, Our
failure to successfully implement our growth strategy could have a material adverse effect on the market price
of our common stock and our business, financial condition and results of operations. You also should be aware
that, other than as required by law, we have no obligation to, and do not intend to, update any forward-
looking statements to reflect events or circumstances occurring after the date of this prospectus that may cause
our actual results or performance to differ from those expressed in the forward-looking statements.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to other information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the following risk factors should be
carefully considered in evaluating our business, because such factors may have a significant impact on our
business, operating results, liquidity and financial condition. As a result of the risk factors set forth below,
actual results could differ materially from those mentioned in any forward-looking statemeats. Additional risks
and uncertainties not presently known to us, or that we currently consider to be immaterial, may also impact
our business, operating results, liquidity and financial condition. If any of the following risks occur, our busi-
ness, operating results, liquidity and financial condition, and the price of our common stock, could be
materially adversely affected. You should also consider risk factors set forth in documents incorporated herein
by reference.

Risks Related to Our Operations ‘
We have a history of net losses and may incur additional losses in the future.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, the Company had consolidated net
losses of $4,517,977, $4,853,489, and $4,557,268 respectively. We face the risk that these losses may continue
beyond 2007. In order for us to achieve and maintain consistent profitability from our operations, we must
continue to achieve product revenue at or above current levels. We may increase our operating expenses as we
attempt to expand our product lines and acquire other businesses and products. As a result, we may need to
increase our revenues significanily to achieve sustainable profitability. We cannot assure you that we will be
able to achieve sustainable profitability. Any such failure could have a material adverse effect on the market
price of our common stock and our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Our business plan relies on certain assumptions for the markets for our products which, 1f incorrect, may
adversely affect our profitability.

We believe that various demographics and industry-specific trends will help drive growth in the medical
and personal care markets, including:

*  an aging population with broad medical coverage, increased disposable income and longer life
expectancy,

= a growing emphasis on physical fitness, leisure sports and conditioning, which will continue to lead
to increased injuries;

*  increasing awareness and use of non-invasive devices for prevention, treatment and rehabilitation
purposes; and

*  an increase in the utilization of personal caré products for various applications, including cleansing,
cosmetic and for the treatment of various conditions.

These demographics and trends are uncertain, The projected demand for our products could materially
differ from actual demand if our assumptions regarding these factors prove to be incorrect or do not material-
ize, or if alternative treatments to those offered by our products gain widespread acceptance.

There are significant risks associated with our strategy of acquiring and integrating businesses.

A key element of our strategy is the acquisition of businesses and assets that will compiement our current
business, increase size, expand our geographic scope of operations, and otherwise offer growth opportunities,
We may not be able to successfully identify attractive acquisition opportunities, obtain financing for acquisi-
tions, make acquisitions on satisfactory terms, or successfully acquire and/or integrate identified targets.
Additionally, competition for acquisition opportunities in our industries may escalate which would increase the
costs to us of completing acquisitions or prevent us from making acquisitions. Our ability to implement our
acquisition strategy is also subject to other risks and costs, including:

*  loss of key employees, customers or suppliers of acquired businesses;

+  diversion of management’s time and atiention from our core businesses;

« adverse effects on existing business relationships with suppliers and customers;

*  our ability to realize operating efficiencies, synergies, or other benefits expected from an acquisition;
= risks associated with entering markets in which we have limited or no experience: and -

= assumption of contingent or undisclosed liabilities of acquisition targets.

In addition, in connection with our acquisitions of Regal and Twincraft, Inc. in 2007, we face the risk of
incurring potential liabilities of those companies which may not be covered by the limited indemnification in
the relevant acquisition agreements,

The above risks could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock and our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

We may not be able to adéquately manage our growth.

We have expanded, and may continue to expand, our business. This growth has placed significant
demands on our management, administrative, operating and financial resources. The continued growth of our
customer base, the types of products offered and the geographic markets served can be expected to continue to
place a significant strain on our resources. Personnel qualified in the production and marketing of our products
are difficult 1o find and hire, and enhancements of information technology systems to support growth are
difficult to implement. Our future performance and profitability will depend in large part on our ability to
attract and retain additional management and other key personnel. Any failure to adequately manage our
growth could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock and our business,
financial condition and results of operations. :
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The growth of our personal care business depends on the successful development and introduction of new
products and services.

The growth of our personal care business depends on the success of existing products and services,
including the manufacturing capabilities of our Twincraft subsidiary, as well as the successful development
and introduction of new products manufacturing services, which face the uncertainty of customer acceptance
and reaction from competitors. In addition, our ability to create new products and new manufacturing services,
and to sustain existing products and services, is affected by whether we can:

+ develop and fund technological innovations;
*  receive and maintain necessary patent and trademark protection;
¢ obtain governmental approvals and registrations of regulated products and manufacturing operations;

«  comply with Food and Drug Administration (FDA), Consumer Product Safety Commission, and
other governmental regulations; and

«  successfully anticipate consumer needs.

The failure to develop and launch successful new products and provide new and competitive manufactur-
ing services could hinder the growth of our business. Also, any delay in the development or launch of a new
product could result in our not being the first to market, which could compromise our competitive position,

Changes in the requirements of our personal care customers and increasing dependence on key customers
may adversely affect our business.

Our personal care products are sold in a highly competitive global marketplace which is experiencing
increased trade concentration. With the growing trend toward consolidation, we are increasingly dependent on
key customers, and some of these customers have greater bargaining strength than we do. They may use this
strength to demand lower prices, higher trade discounts, ailowances or slotting fees, which could lead to
reduced sales or profitability. We may also be negatively affected by changes in the requirements of our
customers, such as inventory de-stocking, and other conditions.

Rising material and other costs and our increasing dependence on key suppliers could adversely impact our
profitability.

Raw and packaging material commodities are subject to wide price variations. Increases in the costs of
these commodities and other costs, such as energy costs, may adversely affect the Company’s profit margins if
we are unable to pass along any higher costs in the form of price increases or otherwise achieve cost
efficiencies,

A write-off of intangible assets may adversely affect our results of operations.

At December 31, 2007, our total assets include intangible assets of $36,414,000, including goodwill
acquired in connection with the acquisitions of Benefoot, Bi-Op, Silipos, Twincraft, and Regal representing
the excess of cost over the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired. We may incur additional goodwill in
connection with other acquisitions we make in the future. We evaluate on a regular basis whether events and
circumstances have occurred that indicate that all or a portion of the carrying amount of the gooedwill or other
intangible assets may no longer be recoverable, in which case a charge 1o earnings would be required. In the
year ended December 31, 2007, we recorded a loss of approximately $176,000 associated with the disposal of
Langer UK which included an impairment on goodwill allocated of approximately $463,000. In the year
ended December 31, 2005, we recorded a provision for impairment totaling $2,102,000, with regard to certain
identifiable intangible assets. In the future we may need to record additional provision(s) for impairment, and
such provision(s) may be material.

Our business is highly competitive. If we fail to compete successfully, our sales and operating results may
be negatively affected and we may not achieve future growth.

The orthopedic, orthotic, prosthetic, skincare and personal care markets are highly competitive. Certain of
our competitors in these markets have more resources and experience as well as more recognizable trademarks
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for products similar to those sold by us. In addition, the market for orthopedic devices and related products is
characterized by new product development and corresponding obsolescence of existing products. Our competi-
tors may develop new techniques, therapeutic procedures or alternative products that are more effective than
our current technology or products or that render our technology or products obsolete or uncompetitive, which
could cause a decrease in orders for our custom orthotic products. Such decreases would have a material
adverse effect on the market price of our.common stock and our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

We may not be able to develop, successful new products or enhance existing products, obtain regulatory
clearances and approval of such products, and market such products in a commercially viable manner or gain
market acceptance for such products. Failure to develop, license or market new products and product enhance-
ments could materially and adversely affect our competitive position, which could cause a significant decline
in our sales and profitability.

We expect that the level of competition faced by us may increase in the future. Some competitors have
substantially greater financial, marketing, research and iechnical resources than us. There can be no assurance
that we will be able to compete successfully in the erthopedic, orthotic, prosthetic, skincare and personal care
markets. Any such failure could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock and
our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We may not be able to raise adeguate financing to fund our operations and growth prospects.

Our acquisition and product expansion programs, debt servicing requirements, and existing operations
will require substantial capital resources. We cannot assure you that we will be able to generate sufficient
operating cash flow or obtain sufficient additional financing to meet these requirements. We negotiated and
executed a $20 million asset-based lending facility with Wachovia Bank, National Association. However, this
facility, alone, may not be adequate to supply the amount of capital that may be required in the event of any
material acquisition. As of February 29, 2008, our availability under the credit facility was approximately
$6.2 million. Any material acquisition is subject to the approval of Wachovia. If we do not have adequate
resources and cannot obtain additional capital on terms acceptable to us or at all, we may be required to
reduce operating costs by altering and delaying our business plan or-otherwise radically altering our business
practices. Failure to meet our future capital requirements could have a material adverse effect on the market
price of our common stock and our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Substantially all our assets are pledged to a secured lender.

On May 11, 2007, we entered into a loan and security agreement with Wachovia Bank, National Associa-
tion, under which we have obtained a credit facility for loans and other financial accommedations of up to a
maximum of $20 million, of which $6.2 million is available as of February 29, 2008. The amount of funds
available to us under the credit facility is based primarily on our levels of eligible accounts receivable and
eligible inventory, and as of the date of this report, we have not borrowed any funds under the facility. Sub-
stantially all our assets, including assets acquired in the future, are pledged to the lender to secure our
obligations to the lender. If we draw down funds under the credit facility and are unable to repay the funds
when due, or are otherwise in default of the financial covenants and related obligations under the credit facil-
ity, the lender would have the right to foreclose upon our assets, which would have a material adverse effect
on our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

We may be adversely affected by legal actions or proceedings.

On or about February 13, 2006, Dr. Gerald P. Zook filed a demand for arbitration with the American
Arbitration Association, naming Langer, Inc., and Silipos as 2 of the 16 respondents. {Four of the other
respondents are the former owners of Silipos and its affiliates, and the other 10 respondents are unknown
entities.) The demand for arbitration alleges that Silipos is in default of obligations to pay royalties in accor-
dance with the terms of a license agreement between Dr. Zook and Silipos dated as of January 1, 1997, with
respect to seven patents owned by Dr. Zook and licensed to Silipos. Silipos has paid royalties to Dr. Zook, but
Dr. Zook claims that greater royalties are owed. The demand for arbitration seeks an award of $400,000 and
reserves the right to seek a higher award after completion of discovery. Dr. Zook has agreed to drop Langer,
Inc. (but not Silipos) from the arbitration, without prejudice. The proceeding is in the discovery stage.
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Additionally, in the normal course of business, we may be subject to claims and litigation in the areas of
general liability, including claims of employees, and claims, litigation or other liabilities as a result of acquisi-
tions we have completed. The results of legal proceedings are difficult to predict and we cannot provide you
with any assurance that an action or proceeding will not be commenced against us, or that we will prevail in
any such action or proceeding. An unfavorable outcome of the arbitration proceeding commenced by
Dr. Gerald P. Zook against Silipos may adversely affect our rights to manufacture and/or sell certain products
or raise the royalty costs of those certain products.

An unfavorable resolution of any legal action or proceeding could materially adversely affect the market
price of our common stock and our business, results of operations, liquidity or financial condition.

We rely heavily on our relationships with healthcare practitioners, agents and distributors for marketing
our products, and our failure to maintain these relationships could adversely affect our business.

The sales of our products depend significantly on the prescription or recommendation of such products by
podiatrists, orthopedists, orthopedic surgeons, dermatologists, cosmetic and plastic surgeons, occupational and
physical rehabilitation professionals, prosthetists, orthotists and other healthcare professionals. Failure of our
products to retain the support of these surgeons and other specialists, or the failure of our products to secure
and retain similar support from leading surgeons and other specialists, could have a material adverse effect on
the market price of our common stock and our business, financial condition and results of operation.

Our marketing success also depends largely upon arrangements with agents and distributors. Our success
depends upon our agents and distributors sales and service expertise and their relationships with the customers
in the marketplace. Qur failure to maintain relationships with our agents and distributors for marketing our
products could have an adverse effect on the market price of our commen stock and our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We enter info multi-year contracts with customers that can impact our results.

We enter into multi-year contracts with some of our customers which include terms affecting our pricing
flexibility. There can be no assurance that these restraints will not have an adverse impact on our margins and
operating income. While we have a diverse customer base, and no customer or distributor constituted more
than 2.4% of our consolidated revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007, we do have customers and
independent, third-party distributors, the loss of which could have a material negative effect on our consoli-
dated results of operations.

The nature of our business could subject us to potential product liability and other claims.

The sale of orthotic and prosthetic products and other biomechanical devices and personal care products
entails the potential risk of physical injury to patients and other end users and an inherent risk of product
liability, lawsuits and product recalls. We currently maintain product liability insurance with coverage limits of
$1 million per occurrence and for an annual aggregate maximum subject to a deductible of $25,000. However,
we cannot assure you that this coverage would be sufficient to cover the payment of any potential claim. In
addition, we cannot assure you that this or any other insurance coverage will continue to be available or, if
available, will be obtainable at a reasonable cost. Our existing product liability insurance coverage may be
inadequate 10 protect us from any liabilities we might incur, and we will continue to be exposed to the risk
that our claims may be excluded and that our insurers may become inselvent. A product liability claim or
series of claims brought against us for uninsured liabilities or liabilities in excess of our insurance coverage
could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock and our business, financial
condition and results of operations. In addition, as a result of a product Hability claim, our reputation could be
harmed and we may have to recall some of our products, which could result in significant costs to us and
have a material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock and our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

Health care regulations could materially adversely affect the market price of our common stock and our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Qur businesses are subject to gevernmental regulation and supervision in the United States at the federal
and state levels and abroad. These regulations include regulations of the FDA of our medical and personal
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care products, and regulations regarding Medicare, Medicaid and physician self-referrals for certain of our
medical devices, products and services. Any time we acquire a new company, we are subject to certain disclo-
sure, enrollment and other requirements regarding the acquired Company’s ongoing operations. In connection
with the acquisition of Regal we only recently acquired the membership interests of Regal Medical Supply,
LLC. in order 1o effectuate the original intent of the parties and ensure that its provider numbers and taxpayer
identification number were effectively acquired with the Company’s purchase of Regal. In addition, Twincraft,
our newly acquired soap manufacturing business (which is part of our personal care segment) is also subject
to far reaching regulation by the Consumer Product Safety Commission which may require us to alter one or
more of our practices to be in compliance with these laws such as obtaining regulatory approvals and other-
wise comply with regulations regarding safety, quality and efficacy standards of our medical products, and
safety and manufacturing practices of our soap products.

If we fail to obtain these approvals or otherwise comply with applicable regulatofy requirements, it could
result in government authorities taking punitive actions against us, including, among other things, imposing
fines and penalties on us or preventing us from manufacturing or selling our products. In addition, health care
fraud and abuse regulations are complex, and even minor or inadvertent irregularities in submissions can
potentially give rise to claims that the statute has been violated. No assurance can be given that the federal
government will interpret these requirements, which are often highly technical and subject to interpretation, in
the same manner as the Company has, or that regulatory authorities will not question the manner in which
Regal was conducted prior to acquisition of the membership interests of Regal Medical Supply, LLC. Any
violations of these laws, including those relating to Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement for the period prior
to the acquisition of the membership interests of Regal Medical Supply, LLC, could result in claims for
repayment of prior reimbursements or otherwise have a material adverse effect on the market price of our
common stock and our business, financial condition and results of operations. Moreover, we cannot assure you
that these laws and regulations will not change or be interpreted in the future in a manner which restricts or
adversely affects our business activities or relationships with providers of orthotic and biomechanical products.

Changes in government and other third-party payer reimbursement levels could adversely affect the
revenues and profitability of our medical segment.

Our medical products are sold by us through our network of national, regional, independent and interna-
tional distributors, hospitals, doctors and other healthcare providers, many of whom are reimbursed for the
healthcare services provided to their patients by third-party payers, such as government programs, including
Medicare and Medicaid, private insurance plans and managed care programs. Many of these programs set
maximum reimbursement levels for certain of the products sold by us in the United States. We may be unable
to sell our products through our distribution channels on a profitable basis if third-party payers deny coverage
or reduce their current levels of reimbursement, or if our costs of production increase faster than increases in
reimbursement levels. The percentage of our sales dependent on Medicare or other insurance programs may
increase as the portion of the United States population over age 65 continues to grow, making us more vulner-
able to reimbursement level reductions by these organizations. Reduced government reimbursement levels
could result in reduced private payer reimbursement levels because of indexing of Medicare fee schedules by
certain third-party payers. Furthermore, the healthcare industry is experiencing a trend towards cost contain-
ment as government and private insurers seek to contain healthcare costs by imposing lower reimbursement
rates and negotiating reduced contract rates with service providers.

Outside the United States, reimbursement systems vary significantly by country. Many foreign markets
have government-managed health care systems that govern reimbursement for new devices and procedures.
The ability of hospitals supported by such systems to purchase our products is dependent, in part, upon public
budgetary constraints. Canada and some European countries, for example, have tightened reimbursement rates.
If adequate levels of reimbursement from third-party payers outside of the United States are not obtained,
international sales of our products may decline, which could adversely affect our net sales and could have a
material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock and our business, financial condition and
results of operations.
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Our business is subject to substantial government regulation relating to medical products and services that
could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Government regulation in the United States and other countries is a significant factor affecting the
research, development, formutation, manufacture and marketing of our products. In the United States, the
FDA has broad authority to regulate the design, manufacture, formulation, marketing and sale of medical
devices, and other medical products, and many of our personal care products. FDA’s regulation of personal
care products includes ingredient, quality, and labeling requirements. The Consumer Products Safety
Commission has authority over our non-cosmetic soap products and could require cautionary labeling for
products viewed as having irritant properties. The FTC has broad authority over all product advertising to
ensure statements are truthful and noa-misleading. Overseas, these activities are subject to foreign governmen-
tal regulation, which is in many respects similar to regulation in the United States but which vary from
country to country. United States and foreign regulation continues to evolve, which could result in additional
burdens on our operations. If we fail to comply with applicable regulations we may be subject to, among
other things, fines, suspension or withdrawai of regulatory approvals, product recalls, operating restrictions,
and criminal prosecution. Additionally, the cost of maintaining personnel and systems necessary to comply
with applicable regulations is substantial and increasing.

Some of our medical products may require or will require regulatory clearance or approval prior to being
marketed. The process of obtaining these clearances or approvals can be lengthy and expensive. We may not
be able to obtain or maintain necessary clearances or approvals for testing or marketing our products. More-
over, regulatory clearances and approvals, if grhmed, may include significant limitations on the indicated uses
for which our products may be marketed or other restrictions or requirements that reduce the value to us of
the products. Regulatory authorities may also withdraw product clearances or approvals if we fail to comply
with regulatory standards or if any problems related to our products develop following initial marketing. We
are also subject to strict regulation with respect to our manufacturing operations. This regulation includes
testing, control and documentation requirements, and compliance with the Quality Systems Regulation and
current good manufacturing practices, which is monitored through inspections by regulatory authorities,

Our profitability depends, in part, upon our and our distributors’ ability to obtain and maintain all neces-
sary certificates, permits, approvals and clearances from the United States and foreign regulatory authorities
and to operate in compliance with applicable regulations. Delays in the receipt of, or failure to receive neces-
sary approvals, the loss of previously obtained clearances or approvals, or failure to comply with existing or
future regulatory requirements could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock
and our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The portion of our personal care business that involves the sale of acne soaps and antimicrobial drug
products is subject to substantial government regulation that could have a material adverse effect on our’
business. o

Drug products are. subject to substantial government regulation in the United States thart affects the
research, development, formulation, manufacture, storage, distribution, labeling, and marketing of the products,
This includes strict regulation of all facets of the manufacturing process including production and process
controls, packaging and labeling controls, holding and distribution, testing, and documentation. Compliance
with current good manufacturing practice (GMP) regulations and adverse event reporting and recordkeeping
requirements are monitored through FDA inspections. We are also subject to state requirements and licenses
applicable to manufacturers of drug products. Comparable

Twincraft has a dedicated manufacturing line for soaps that are subject to drug regulations. Failure to
pass a GMP inspection or to comply with these and other applicable regulatory requirements could result in
disruption of our operations and manufacturing delays. Failure to take adequate corrective action could result
in, among other things, significant fines, seizures or recalls of products, operating restrictions and criminai
prosecution. We cannot assure you that the FDA or other governmental authorities would agree with our
interpretation of applicable regulatory requirements or that we have in all instances fully complied with all
applicable requirements. Any failure 10 comply with applicable requirements could adversely affect our prod-
uct sales and profitability and could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock
and our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Twincraft’s acne soaps are subject to FDA regulation as OTC drug products under the final monograph or
regulation for topical antimicrobial drug products. Any deviation from the specific ingredients, labeling
requirements, or conditions described in the final monograph or the general drug regulations could misbrand
the product and render it an unapproved new drug. This could result in a variety of enforcement actions
against the Company and/or the product as well as the reformulation or relabeling of our products, all of
which could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock and our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

If the FDA, FTC, or CPSC disagrees with our characterization of our other skincare products or product
claims and determines that they are drug products, this could result in a variety of enforcement actions which
could require the reformulation or relabeling of our products, the submission of information in support of the
products’ claims or the safety and effectiveness of our products, or more punitive action, all of which could
have a material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock and our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

Modifications to our marketed devices may require FDA regulatory clearances or approvals and may
require us to cease marketing or recall the modified devices until such clearances or appmvals are
obtained.

The medical products we market in the United States have obtained market clearance through the Pre-
market Notification process under Section 510(k) of the FFDCA or are exempt from the 510(k) Premarket
Notification requirements. We have modified some of our products and product labeling since obtaining 510(k)
clearance. We believe those changes did not trigger the requirement for a new 510(k) filing, but if FDA were
to disagree, we would be required to submit new 510(k) Premarket Notifications for the modifications to our
existing products. We may be subject to enforcement action by the FDA for failure to file the 510(k) submis-
sions for the product changes and be required to stop marketing the products while the FDA reviews the new
510(k) Premarket Notification submissions. If the FDA requires us to go through a lengthier, more rigorous
examination than we expect, our product introductions or modifications could be delayed or canceled, which
could cause our sales to decline or otherwise adversely impact our growth. In addition, the FDA may deter-
mine that future products will be subject to the more costly, lengthy and uncertain Premarket Approval, or
PMA, process. Products that are approved through the PMA process generally need FDA approval before they
may be modified. '

Our products may be subject to product recalls even after receiving clearance or approval, which would
harm our reputation and our business.

The FDA, the Consumer Products Safety Commission and foreign regulatory authorities have the author-
ity to request and, in some cases, require the recall of products if they violate the FFDCA, or the comparable
foreign law, and pose a risk of injury or gross deception. Typical reasons for recalls are material deficiencies,
design defects or manufacturing defects or consumer complaints which are substantiated by the Consumer
Products Safety Commission. A government-mandated or voluntary recall by us could occur as a result of
component failures, manufacturing errors, design defects, adulteration, misbranding, or any other incidents
related to our medical devices or personal care products, including, but not limited to, adverse event reports,
cease and desist communications and any other product liability issues related to our products. Any product
recall would divert managerial and financial resources and harm our reputation with customers and our
business. '

If our medical device products fail to comply with the FDA’s Quality System Regulation, our
manufacturing could be delayed, and our product sales and profitability could suffer.

Qur device manufacturing processes are required to comply with the FDA’s Quality System Regulation,
which covers the procedures concerning {and documentation of) the design, testing, production processes,
controls, quality assurance, labeling, packaging, storage and shipping of our devices. We also are subject to
state requirements and licenses applicable to manufacturers of medical devices. In addition, we must engage in
extensive recordkeeping and reporting and must make available our manufacturing facilities and records for
periodic unscheduled inspections by governmental agencies, including the FDA, state authorities and compa-
rable agencies in other countries. Moreover, failure to pass a Quality System Regulation inspection or to
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comply with these and other applicable regulatory requirements could result in disruption of our operations
and manufacturing delays. Failure to take adequate corrective action could result in, among other things,
significant fines, suspension of approvals, seizures or recalls of products, operating restrictions and criminal
prosecution. We cannot assure you that the FDA or other governmental authorities would agree with our
interpretation of applicable regulatory requirements or that we have in all instances fully complied with all
applicable requirements. Any failure to comply with applicable requ1remenls could adversely affect our
product sales and profitability.

Loss of the services of key management personnel could adversely affect our business.

Our operations are dependent upon the skill, experience and performance of a relatively small group of
key management and technical personnel, including our Chairman, our President and Chief Executive Officer
and head of our personal care business segment. The unexpected loss of the services of one or more of key
management and technical personnel could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our common
stock and our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our Chairman devotes only as much of his time as is necessary to the affairs of the Company and also
serves in various capacities with other public and private entities, including blank check companies and not-
for-profit entities affiliated with Kanders & Company, an entity owned and controlled by Mr. Kanders. If
appropriate as a result of strategic changes in the nature of the Company’s business, arrangements with certain
executive officers of the Company may be adjusted so they only devote as much as is necessary to the affairs
of the Company and serve other public and private entities including Kanders & Company in various capaci-
ties. While management believes any such non-exclusive arrangements involving Kanders & Company will
benefit the Company by availing itself of certain of the resources of Kanders & Company, the other business
interests of these individuals could limit their ability to devote time to our affairs.

Our business, operating results and financial condition could be adversely affected if we become involved in
{itigation regarding our patents or other intellectual property rights.

The orthopedic, orthotic, prosthetics and personal care product industries have experienced extensive
litigation regarding patents and other intellectual property rights, and companies in this industry have used
intellectual property litigation in an attempt to gain a competitive advantage. Our products may become
subject to patent infringement claims or litigation or interference proceedings declared by the United States
Patent and Trademark Office (the ““USPTO™), or the foreign equivalents thereto to determine the priority of
inventions, by competitors or other companies. The defense and prosecution of intellectual property suits,
USPTO interference proceedings or the foreign equivalents thereto and related legal and administrative pro-
ceedings are both costly and time consuming. An adverse determination in litigation or interference
proceedings to which we may become a party could:

*  subject us to significant liabilities to third-parties;

*  require disputed rights to be licensed from a third-party for royalties that may be substantial;
. reqﬁirc us to cease manufacturing, using or selling such products or technology; or

= result in the invalidation or loss of our patent rights.

Any one of these outcomes could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our common
stock and our business, financial condition and results of operations. Furthermore, we may not be able to
obtain necessary licenses on satisfactory terms, if at all. Even if we are able 10 enter into licensing arrange-
ments, costs associated with these transactions may be substantial and could include the long-term payment of
royalties. Accordingly, adverse determinations in a judicial or administrative proceeding or our failure to
obtain necessary licenses could prevent us from manufacturing and selling our products, or from using certain
processes to make our products which would have a material adverse effect on the market price of our com-
mon stock and our business, operating results and financial condition. Moreover, even if we are successful in
such litigation, the expense of defending such claims could be material.

In addition, we may in the future need to litigate to enforce our patents, to protect our trade secrets or
know-how-or to determine the enforceability, scope and validity of the proprietary rights of others. Such
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enforcement of our intellectual property rights could involve counterclaims against us, Any future litigation or
interference proceedings may result in substantial expense to us and slgmﬁcant diversion of effort by our
technical and management personnel.

Intellectual property litigation relating 10 our products could also cause our customers or polential cus-
tomers to defer or limit their purchases of our products, or cause healthcare professionals, agents and
distributors to cease or lessen their support and marketing of our products.

We may not be able to maintain the conﬁden'tiali!y, or assure the protection, of our proprietary technology.

We hold or have the exclusive right to use a variety of patents, trademarks and copyrights in several
countries, including the United States that we are dependent on, including approximately 35 patents and patent
applications in the U.S. and certain foreign jurisdictions and a number of trademarks for technologies and
brands related to our product offerings. The ownership of a patent or an interest in a patent does not always
provide significant protection. and the patents and patent applications in which we have an interest may be
challenged as to their validity or enforceability. Others may independently develop similar technologies or
design around the patented aspects of our technology. Challenges may result in potentially significant harm to
our business. We are also dependent upon a variety of methods and technologies that we regard as proprietary
trade secrets, In addition, we have (i) a non-exclusive, paid up (except for certain administrative fees) license
with Applied Elastomerics, Incorporated (the “AEIl License™) dated as of November 30, 2001, as amended, to
manufacture and sell certain products using mineral oil based gels under certain patents, during the life of
such patents, and (ii) a license with Gerald Zook (the “Zook License”), effective as of January 1, 1997, to
manufacture and sell certain products using mineral oil based gels under certain patents and know how, during
the life of such patents, in exchange for sales based royalty payments, that is exclusive as to certain products
but is non-exclusive as to others. We also have exclusive licenses to three types of orthotic devices which are
patented in the United States and several foreign countries. We believe our trademarks and trade names,
including Langer™, Sporthotics™, PPT™, Silipos™, Explorer Gel Liner™, Siloliner™, and Silopad™,
contribute sngmﬁcamly to brand recognition for our products, and the inability to use one or more of these
names could have a material adverse affect on our business. For the years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006, revenues generated by the products incorporating, the technology licensed under the AEI License
accounted for approximately 22.4% and 36.4% of our revenues. For the years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006, revenues generated by products covered by the Zook License, as we understand the Zook License,
accounted for approximately 4.3% and 8.7% of our revenues. In 2006, Dr. Gerald P. Zook, the licensor of the
Zook License, commenced an arbitration proceeding alleging that a broader range of products sold by us are
covered by the Zook License and that more license fees are payable by us under the Zook License, but he
subsequently discontinued the arbitration against the Company with prejudice. See Item 3, “Legal
Proceedings.”

We rely on a combination of trade secret, copyright, patent, trademark, unfair competition and other
intellectual property laws as well as contractual agreements to protect our rights to such intellectual property.
Due to the difficulty of monitoring unauthorized use of and access to intellectual property, however, such
measures may not provide adequate protection. There can be no assurance that courts will always uphold our
intellectual property rights, or enforce the contractual arrangements that we have entered into to protect our
proprietary technology and trade secrets.

Further, although we seek to protect our trade secrets, know-how and other unpatented proprietary tech-
nology, in part, with confidentiality agreements with certain of our employees and consultants, we cannot
assure you that:

+  these confidentiality agreements will not be breached;
«  we will have adequate remedies for any breach;

»  we will not be required to disclose such information to the FDA or other governmental agency in
order for us to have the right to market a product; or

+  trade secrets, know-how and other unpatented proprietary technology will not otherwise become
known to or independently developed by our competitors.
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Any finding of unenforceability, invalidity, non-infringement, or misappropriation of our intellectual
property could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock and our business,
financial condition and results of operations. In addition, if we bring or become subject to litigation to defend
against claimed infringement of our rights or of the rights of others or to determine the scope and validity of
our intellectual property rights, such litigation could result in substantial costs and diversion of our resources.
Unfavorable results in such litigation could also result in the loss or compromise of our proprietary rights,
subject us to significant liabilities, require us to seek licenses from third parties, or prevent us from selling our
products, which could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock and our busi-
ness, financial condition and results of operations, '

In addition, our licenses, including the AEI License and the Zook License, could be terminated under a
variety of circumstances including for material breach of the license agreements or in the event of the bank-
ruptcy or insclvency of the licensor. Any such termination could have a material adverse effect on the market’
price of our common stock and our business, financial condition and results of operations.

A portion of our revenues and expenditures is subject to exchange rate fluctuations that could adversely
affect our reported resulis of operations.

While a majority of our business is denominated in United States dollars, in 2008 we maintain operations
in Canada that require payments in the local currency and payments received from customers for goods sold
in these countries are typically in the local currency. Consequently, fluctuations in the rate of exchange
between the United States dollar and certain other currencies may affect our results of operations and period-
to-peried comparisons of our operating results. For example, the value of the U.S. dollar has fallen over the
last year relative to the Canadian dollar (which is the principal foreign currency material to our business)
causing an increase in our reported revenues when we convert the higher valued foreign currencies into U.S.
dollars. If the value of the U.S. dollar were to increase in relation to that currency in the future, there could be
a negative effect on the value of our sales in that market when we convert amounts to dollars when we pre-
pare our financial statements. We do not engage in hedging or similar transactions to reduce these risks.

We may be liable for contamination or other harm caused by hazardous materials that we use.

Qur research and development and manufacturing processes involve the use of hazardous materials. We
are subject to federal, state and local regulation governing the use, manufacture, handling, storage and disposal
of hazardous materials or waste. We cannot completely eliminate the risk of contamination or injury resulting
from hazardous materials or waste, and we may incur liability as a result of any contamination or injury. In
addition, under some environmental laws and regulations, we could also be held responsible for all of the
costs relating to any contamination at our past or present facilities and at third-party waste disposal sites even
if such contamination was not caused by us. We may incur significant expenses in the future relating to any
failure to comply with environmental laws. Any such future expenses or liability could have a significant
negative impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations,

Our quarterly operating results are subject to fluctuations.

Our revenue and operating results have fluctuated and may continue to fluctuate from guarter to quarter
due to seasonal factors and for other reasons. Revenues derived from our sales of orthotic devices has histori-
cally been significantly higher in North America in the warmer months of the year. Qur experience has also
been that physical activities in general tend to increase in warmer weather and that many patients of our
customers in the healthcare profession tend to defer healthcare purchases until the spring months. Other
factors which can result in quarterly variations include the timing and amount of new business generated by
us, the timing of new product introductions, our revenue mix, acquisitions, the timing of additional selling and
general and administrative expenses to support the anticipated growth and development of new business units
and the competitive and fluctuating economic conditions in the orthopedic industry.

Quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our operating results are not necessarily meaningful and should not be
relted upon as indications of likely future performance or annual operating results. Reductions in revenues or
net income between quarters could result in a decrease in the market price of our common stock.
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We may be unable to realize the benefits of our net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards.

NOLs may be carried forward to offset federal and state taxable income in future years and eliminate
income taxes otherwise payable on such taxable income, subject to certain adjustments, Based on current
federal corporate income tax rates, our NOL could provide a benefit to us, if fully utilized, of significant
future tax savings. However, our ability to use these tax benefits in future years will depend upon the amount
of our otherwise taxable income. If we do not have sufficient taxable income in future years to use the tax
benefits before they expire, we will lose the benefit of these NOL carryforwards permanently. Additionaily,
future utilization of net operating losses may be limited under existing tax law due to the change in control of
Langer in 2001 and may be further limited as a result of pending or future offerings of our common stock.

The amount of NOL carryforwards that we have claimed to date of approximately $11.4 million has not
been audited or otherwise validated by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service {the *IRS™). The IRS could chal-
lenge our calculation of the amount of our NOL or any deductions or losses included in such calculation, and
provisions of the Internal Revenue Code may limit our ability to carry forward our NOL to offset taxable
income in future years. If the IRS were successful with respect to any challenge in respect of the amount of
our NOL, the potential tax benefit of the NOL carryforwards to us could be substantially reduced.

Changes in accounting standards regarding stock option plans, which became applicable to the Company
as of January I, 2006, could limit the desirability of granting stock options, which could harm our ability
to attract and retain employees, and could also negatively impact our results of operations.

A change in accounting standards (Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (*SFAS™) No. 123(R),
“Share-Based Payment’"), which replaces SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and
supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“ABP”) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employ-
ees,” and related Interpretations require all public companies to account for the fair value of stock options
granted to employees as an expense effective as of the beginning of the first fiscal year beginning after
June 15, 2005. In 2007 and 2006, these amounts were $281,661 and $186,322, respectively. Prior to 2006, we
were generally not required to record stock compensation expense in connection with stock option grants,
since grants had an exercise price equal to or greater than market. However, in 2005, the Company did have
substantial non-cash charges due to certain stock option modifications. The requirement to expense stock
options may reduce the atiractiveness to us of granting stock options because of the additional expense associ-
ated with these grants, which would negatively impact our reported results of operations. For example, if we
had been required to expense stock option grants in accordance with the revised rule, our recorded net loss for
the year ended December 31, 2005 of approximately $4,557,000 would have been increased by approximately
$2.837.000 (of which approximately $766,000 would have represented periodic expense relating to employee
stock options granted and $2,071,000 would have represented expenses relating to the acceleration of the
vesting of certain options to a net loss of approximately $7,394,000. Nevertheless, stock options are an impor-
tant employee recruitment and retention tool, and we may not be able to attract and retain key personnel if we
reduce the scope of our employee stock option program. Accordingly, when we grant options in the future,
our future results of operations will be negatively impacted, as could our willingness to use stock options as
an employee recruitment and retention tool.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

One stockholder has the ability to significantly influence the election of our directors and the outcome of
corporate action requiring stockholder approval.

As of March 24, 2008, Warren B. Kanders, our Chairman of the Board of Directors, in his capacity as
sole manager and voting member of Langer Partners, LLC (*‘Langer Partners™) and the sole stockholder of
Kanders & Company, Inc., may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of 3,100,884 shares, or approximately
27.8% of our outstanding common stock. Of this amount, 2,041,856 shares are issued and outstanding, and the
balance is acquirable under options, warrants and convertible notes. (This amount does not include a restricted
stock award of 500,000 shares, which presently will vest only if and when the Company has earmings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization of at least $10,000,000 in any period of four consecutive fiscal
quarters, commencing with the quarter beginning January I, 2007). As of March 24, 2008, current executive
officers and directors, including Mr. Kanders, beneficially own an aggregate of 4,684,767 shares, or approxi-
mately 42.0% of our outstanding common stock. Consequently, Mr. Kanders, acting alone or together with our
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other officers and directors, has the ability to significantly influence all matters requiring stockholder approval,
including the election of our directors and the outcome of corporate actions requiring stockholder approval,
such as a change in control.

The price of our common stock has been and is expected to continue to be volatile, which could affect a
stockholder’s return on investment.

There has been significant volatility in the stock market and in particutar in the market price and trading
volume of securities of orthopedic and other health care companies, which has often been unrelated to the
performance of the companies. The market price of our common stock has been subject to significant fluctua-
tions, and we expect it to continue to be subject to such fluctuations for the foresesable future. We believe the
reasons for these Auctuations include, in addition to general market volatility, the relatively thin level of
trading in our stock, and the relatively low public float. Therefore, variations in financial results, announce-
menis of material events, technological innovations or new products by us or our competitors, our quarterly -
operating results, changes in general conditions in the economy or the health care industry, other develop-
ments affecting us or our competitors or general price and volume fluctuations in the market are among the
many factors that could cause the market price of our common stock to fluctuate substantially.

Shares of our common stock have been thinly traded in the past.

The trading volume of our common stock has not been significant, and there may not be an active trad-
ing market for our common stock in the future. As a result of the thin trading market or *float™ for our stock,
the market price for our common stock may fluctuate significantly more than the stock market as a whole.
Without a large float, our common stock is less liquid than the stock of companies with broader public owner-
ship and, as a result, the trading prices of our common stock may be more volatile. In the absence of an
active public trading market, an investor may be unable to liquidate his investment in our commaon stock.
Trading of a relatively small volume of our common stock may have a greater impact on the trading price for
our stock than would be the case if our public float were larger. We cannot predict the prices at which gur
common stock will trade in the future. Our common stock is currently traded on The NASDAQ Global
Market.

If our shares of common stock are removed from listing on the Nasdaq Global Market, our stock price and
business opportunities may be adversely affected.

Our common stock is currently listed on the Nasdag Global Market. To continue to be listed on the
Nasdaq Global Market, we must continue to satisfy certain “continued listing criterig,” including a minimum
stock price of $1.00, minimum market value of our listed shares of not less than $5,000,000, minimum of
400 shareholders holding at least 100 shares, and a minimum of at least 2 registered market makers, and a
majority of our directors must be *‘independent” as defined in the Nasdaq rules. At the present time, we
satisfy all these requirements, except with respect to independent directors, as to which we have a grace
period for compliance until June 2008. However, our stock price has been declining steadily, from $4.50 on
November 7, 2007 to $1.88 on March 14, 2008. If our share price continues to decline, or if market makers
do not continue to make a market in our shares, we may fall out of compliance with the continued listing
criteria of the Nasdaq Global Market. If our common stock were delisted from the Nasdaq Global Market, the
delisting may have an adverse impact on the price of our shares of common stock, the volatility of the price
of our shares, and/or the liquidity of an investment in our shares common stock. This may have the further
adverse effect of impairing our ability to use our common stock as a portion of the consideration for potential
future acquisitions or similar transactions.

We may issue a substantial amount of our common stock in the future which could cause dilution to
investors and otherwise adversely affect our stock price.

A key element of our growth strategy is to make acquisitions. As part of our acquisition strategy, we may
issue additional shares of common stock as consideration for such acquisitions. These issuances could be
significant. To the extent that we make acquisitions and issue our shares of commeon stock as consideration,
stockholders’ interest may be diluted. Any such issuance will also increase the number of outstanding shares
of common stock that will be eligible for sale in the future. Persons receiving shares of our common stock in
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connection with these acquisitions may be more likely to sell off their commen stock than other investors,
which may influence the price of our common stock. In addition, the potential issuance of additional shares in
connection with anticipated acquisitions could lessen demand for our commen stock and result in a lower
price than might otherwise be obtained. We may issue common stock in the futare for other purposes as well,
including in connection with financings, for compensation purposes, in connection with strategic transactions
or for other purposes.

In January and May, 2007, we issued an aggregate of 1,068,356 shares of our common stock as part of
the consideration we paid for the Twincraft acquisition, and we may issue additional shares in 2009 if
Twincraft achieves certain performance targets which entitle the sellers of Twincraft to additional consider-
ations, We also issued 333,483 shares in connection with the Regal acquisition in 2007,

A key element of our compensation strategy is to base a portion of the compensation payable to manage-
ment and our directors on restricted stock awards and other equity-based compensation, to align the interests
of directors and management with the interests of the stockholders. In 2007, we have issued restricted stock
awards for an aggregate of 955,000 shares to 7 officers and directors, of which restricted stock awards for
880,000 shares to 6 officers remain, These awards will vest if and when the Company achieves certain finan-
cial and operating targets or, in some cases, upon a change of control. None of the restricted stock awards
granted in 2007 is presently vested. '

We have a significant amount of convertible indebtedness outstanding and may issue a substantial amount
of our common stock in connection with these and other outstanding securities and in connection with
future acquisitions and our growth plans; any such issuances of additional shares could adversely affect
our stock price.

On December 8, 2006, we sold $28,880,000 of our 5% Convertible Notes in a private placement. At the
date of issuance, the 5% Convertible Notes were convertible into 6,080,000 shares of our common stock at a
conversion price of $4.75 per share. As a result of the anti-dilution provisions of the 5% Convertible Notes
and the issuance of 1,068,356 shares of common stock in the Twincraft acquisition and 333,483 shares in the
Regal acquisition, the 5% Convertible Notes are now convertible into 6,195,165 shares ‘of our common stock,
at a conversion price, as adjusted, of $4.66017 per share, subject to further adjustment in certain circumstances.
The conversion of the 5% Convertible Notes could result in dilution in the value of the shares of our out-
standing stock and the voting power represented thereby. The effect of the conversion of all of our outstanding
5% Convertible Notes would be to increase outstanding shares and dilute current shareholders by approxi-
mately 55.5% at March 24, 2008. In addition, the conversion price of our 5% Convertible Notes may be
lowered under the conversion price adjustment provisions of the notes in certain circumstances, including if
we issue common stock at a net price per share less than the conversion price then in effect or if we issue
rights, warrants or options entitling the recipients to subscribe for or purchase shares of our common stock at
a price per share less than the conversion price (after taking into account any consideration we received for
such rights, warrants or options). A reduction in the conversion price would result in an increase in the num-
ber of shares issuable upon the conversion of our 5% Convertible Notes. We also have a significant number of
stock options and warrants outstanding, and restricted stock awards which would vest if we achieve certain
performance targets.

We anticipate issuing additional shares of our common stock and may also issue additional securities
convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for common stock to finance acquisitions or for other reasons
in the future. The number of outstanding shares of our common stock that will be eligible for sale in the
future is, therefore, likely to increase substantially. Persons receiving shares of our common stock in connec-
tion with these acquisitions or financings may be more likely to sell large quantities of their common stock,
which may adversely affect the price of our common stock. In addition, the potential issuance of additional
shares in connection with anticipated acquisitions could lessen demand for our common stock and result in a
lower price than would otherwise be obtained. If our security holders sell substantial amounts of our common
stock in the public market, the market price of our common stock could fall. These sales might make it more
difficult for us to sell equity securities in the future at a time and price that we deem appropriate and may
require us to issue greater amounts of our common stock to finance acquisitions. Additional shares sold to
finance acquisitions and conversions, exercises and exchanges of other securities for common stock may also
dilute our earnings per share. :
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Qur certificate of incorporation, our bylaws and Delaware law contain provisions that could discourage,
delay or prevent a takeover attempt.

We are subject to the anti-takeover provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law.,
In general, Section 203 prohibits pubiicly-held Delaware corporations to which it applies from engaging in a
“business combination”™ (generally including mergers, consolidations and sales of 10% or more of the corpo-
ration’s assets) with an “interested stockholder™ {(generaily defined as a person owning 15% or more of the
outstanding voting stock of the corporation, subject to certain exceptions) for a period of three years after the
date of the transaction in which the person became an interested stockholder, unless the business combination
is approved in a prescribed manner. This provision could discourage others from bidding for our shares and
could, as a result, reduce the likelihood of an increase in our stock price that would otherwise occur if a
bidder sought to buy our stock.

It could also discourage, delay or prevent another company from merging with us or acquiring us, even if
our stockholders were to consider such a merger or acquisition to be favorable,

Additionally, our Board of Directors has the authority to issue up to 250,000 shares of preferred stock,
and to determine the price, rights, preferences and restrictions, including voting and conversion rights, of those
shares without any further action or vote by the stockholders. The rights of the holders of common stock will
be subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the rights of the holders of preferred stock that may be issued
in the future. Such provisions could adversely affect the holders of common stock in a variety of ways,
including by potentially discouraging, delaying or preventing a takeover of us and by diluting our earnings per
share.

We do not expect to pay dividends in the foreseeable future.

We currently do not intend to pay any dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain any
earnings for working capital, repayment of indebtedness, capital expenditures and general corporate purposes.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

We are headquartered in Deer Park, New York and operate manufacturing facilities in Deer Park,
New York, Niagara Falls, New York, Montreal, Canada and Winooski, Vermont. We also have sales offices in
New York, New York, King of Prussia, Pennsylvania, and Markham, Ontario (Canada). The following table
sets forth information about our real properties where our manufacturing, warehouse, sales and office space
are located:

2008 Lease Size
Annual Owned/ Termination {Square
Location Use Rent Leased - Date Feet)
Deer Park, New York Corporate headquarters, $377.434 Leased July 31, 2009 44,500
manufacturing and distribution
Montreal, Canada Manufacturing and distribution — Owned Not Applicable 7,800
Niagara Falls, New York Manufacturing and distribution $432,511 Leased May 31, 2018@ 40,000
Niagara Falls, New York Manufacturing $ 32,632 Leased February 1, 2009 5,250
New York, New York Sales $565,002 Leased April 30, 2017 13,500
Markham, Ontario Sales and administration $ 13,565 Leased April 30, 2010 1,933
King of Prussia, Sales and distribution $ 96,310 Leased December 31, 2012 24,000
Pennsylvania
Winooski, Vermont Manufacturing and distribution $444,958 Leased January 22, 20149 90,500
Essex, Vermont Distribution and warehousing $303,600 Leased Octaber 1, 2010¢ 80,100

(1) In January 2005, we exercised our option to extend the lease to July 31, 2009. The rent under the lease
increases 4% annually commencing with each August payment.

(2) The rent increases each year throughout the lease.
(3) The lease was renewed to February, 2009.
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(4) On December 19, 2005, we entered into a lease {as tenant) with 41 Madison, L.P. (the “Landlord™) of
certain space, for use as sales, marketing and executive offices. The lease, which will run for 10 years, 8
months, commenced July 5, 2006. Management anticipates that we will vacate the premises in May 2008
and find new, smaller, and lower cost office space.

(5} Assumes a conversion rate of .93 U.S. dollars to 1.00 Canadian dollar.

(6) Regal and Twincraft are businesses that were acquired in January 2007,

We believe that our manufacturing, warehouse and office facilities are suitable and adequate and afford
suffictent capacity for our current and reasonably foreseeable future needs. We believe we have adequate
insurance coverage for our properties and their contents, '

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On or about February 13, 2006, Dr. Gerald P. Zook filed a demand for arbitration with the American
Arbitration Association, naming the Company and Silipos as 2 of the 16 respondents. (Four of the other
respondents are the former owners of Silipos and its affiliates, and the other 10 respondents are unknown
entities.) The demand for arbitration alleges that the Company and Silipos are in default of obligations to pay
royalties in accordance with the terms of a license agreement between Dr. Zook and Silipos dated as of
January 1, 1997, with respect to seven patents owned by Dr. Zook and licensed to Silipos. Silipos has paid
royalties to Dr. Zook, but Dr. Zook claims that greater royaities are owed. The demand for arbitration seeks an
award of $400,000 and reserves the right to seek a higher award after completion of discovery. Dr. Zook has
agreed to drop Langer, Inc. (but not Silipos) from the arbitration, without prejudice. The case remains in the
discovery stage.

On or about February 13, 2006, Mr. Peter D. Bickel, who was the executive vice president of Silipos,
Inc., until January 11, 2006, alleged that he was terminated by Silipos without cause and, therefore, was
entitled, pursuant to his employment agreement, to a severance payment of two years’ base salary. On or
about February 23, 2006, Silipos commenced an action in New York State Supreme Court, New Yerk County,
against Mr, Bickel seeking, among other things, a declaratory judgment that Mr. Bickel is not entitled to
severance pay or other benefits, on account of his breach of various provisions of his employment agreement
with Silipos and his non-disclosure agreement with Silipos, and that he voluntarily resigned his employment
with Silipos. Silipos also sought compensatory and punitive damages for breaches of the employment agree-
ment, breach of the non-disclosure agreement, breach of fiduciary duties, misappropriation of trade secrets,
and tortious interference with business relationships. On or about March 22, 2006, Mr. Bickel removed the
lawsuit to the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York and filed an answer denying
the material allegations of the complaint and counterclaims seeking a declaratory judgment that his non-
disclosure agreement is unenforceable and that he is entitled to $500,000, representing two years’ base salary,
in severance compensation, on the ground that Silipos did not have “cause” to terminate his emplayment. On
August 8, 2006, the Court determined that the restrictive covenant was enforceable against Mr, Bickel for the
duration of its term (which expired on January 11, 2007) to the extent of prohibiting Mr. Bickel from solicit-
ing certain key customers of the Company with whom he had worked during his employment with the
Company. The Company has withdrawn, without prejudice, its claims for compensatory and punitive damages
for breaches of the employment agreement, breach of the non-disclosure agreement, breach of fiduciary duties,
misappropriation of trade secrets, and tortious interference with business relationships. On October 12, 2007,
the court issued an opinion and order dismissing all of Mr. Bickel’s claims against Silipos, denying
Mr. Bickel's motion to dismiss the remaining claims of Silipos against him, and allowing Silipos to proceed
with its claims against Mr. Bickel for breach of fiduciary duty and disloyalty.

Additionally, in the normal course of business, the Company may be subject to claims and litigation in
the areas of general liability, including claims of employees, and claims, litigation or other liabilities as a
result of acquisitions we have completed. The results of legal proceedings are difficult to predict and we
cannot provide you with any assurance that an action or proceeding will not be commenced against us, or that
we will prevail in any such action or proceeding. An unfavorable ontcome of the arbitration proceeding com-
menced by Dr. Gerald P. Zook against us and Silipos, may adversely affect our rights to manufacture and/or
sell certain products or raise the royalty costs of those certain products.
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An unfavorable resolution of any legal action or proceeding could materially adversely affect the market
price of our common stock and our business, results of operations, liquidity or financial condition.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year

covered by this Annual Report.

[Remainder of page is intentionally left blank.]
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Regiétrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securitiés '

Price Range of Common Stock .

Our common stock, par value $0.02 per share, has been traded on the NASDAQ Global Market since
August 23, 2005 under the symbol “GAIT”. For more then two years prior thereto, our common stock was
traded on the NASDAQ Small Cap Market. The following table sets forth the high and low bid prices for the
conmmon stock as reported on the NASDAQ Global Market.

The last reported sale prlce on March 24, 2008, was $1.94. On such date, there were approximately
217 holders of record of our common stock. This figure excludes all owners whose stock is held beneficially
or in “street” name.

Year Ended December 31, 2008 o . '  High Low

First Quarter (January 1 -March 24) ............. e $2.95 $1.76
Year Ended December 31, 2007 ’ . ) , . . High _ Low,

First Quarer . . .. .. e e $6.24 $3.76
Second QUAEL . . . .. . it ittt e e e e e $6.00 $4.62
Third Quarter ... .................... e $6.00 $4.52
Fourth Quarter ... ......... e e e " $5.18 $2.00
Year Ended December 31, 2006 High Low

First Quarter . ... .......... e e e $5.30 $3.35
Second QUAIEr . .. ... i e e e $5.09 $3.25
Third Quarter . ... ... ... .t et $4.15 $3.02
Fourth QUarter . .. ... ... ... ittt P $4.87 $3.58

Dividend Policy

We have not declared any cash dividends on our common stock in the past, and we do not presently’
anticipate declaring or paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. We currently anticipate that we
will retain all future earnings for use in our business. The payment of dividends in the future wili be at the
discretion of our Board of Directors and wilt depend upon, among other things, our results of operations,
capital requirements, general business conditions, contractual restrictions on payment of dividends, if any,
legal and regulatory restrictions on payment of dividends, and other factors our Board of Directors deems
relevant.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On January 8, 2007, the Company issued an aggregate of 379,167 shares of its common stock in
exchange for the Regal business, which was initially valued at approximately $1,600,000. In accordance with
the terms of the agreement with respect to the acquisition of the Business, the purchase price was adjusted
based on a post-closing audit, 45,684 shares were returned to the Company on or about March 20, 2007. None
of the foregoing shares were registered under the Securities Act of 1933, in reliance upon the exemption from
registration provided by Section 4(2) of that Act and Regulation D promulgated under that section, which
exempts transactions by an issuer not involving any public offering. (The foregoing shares are covered by the
Company's Registration Statement No. 333-139882, which has not been declared effective.)

On January 23, 2007, the Company issued an aggregate of 999,375 shares of its common stock to the
stockholders of Twincraft, Inc., a Vermont corperation, in exchange for all the issved and outstanding capital
stock of Twincraft, which were valued for purposes of the transaction at $4.00 per share. The total price
payable on such date for the Twincraft capital stock was $26.7 million, and the balance of the purchase price
was paid in cash. On or about May 15, 2007, pursuant to the post-closing adjustment provisions of the agree-
ment for the purchase of the Twincraft capital stock, the Company issued an additional 68,981 shares of
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common stock to the former stockholders of Twincraft. None of the foregoing shares were registered under
the Securities Act in reliance upon the exemptlon from registration provided by Section 4(2) of that Act and
Regulation D promulgated under that section, which exempts transactions by an issuer not mvo]vmg any
public offering. (The foregoing shares are covered by the Company’s registration Statement No. 333-139882,

which has not been declared effective.)

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with our consoli-
dated financial statements and the related notes thereto in ltem 8 and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,”

in Item 7. We derived the consolidated statements of

operations data for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, from our audited financial statements not
included in this Annual Report. We derived the consolidated statements of operations data for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2007 and
2006 from our audited financial statements included herein. For the year ended December 31, 2007 and for
the prior years included below, the operations of Langer UK, Limited have been classified as discontinued
operations in our consolidated financial statements. As a result, the information reported below may be differ-
ent than amounts reported previously. The historical results are not necessarily indicative of the operating

results to be expected in the future.

Consolidated Statements of
Operations;
Netsales ......................
Operating (loss) income from continving
operations .. ..................
Change in fair value of Put Option . .. ..
Change in fair value of Protection
Payment ................ PRI
{Loss) income before taxes from
continuing operations . ...........
(Loss) income from continuing operanons
(Loss) income from discontinued
OPErations: . . .. .. v vt
Net (loss} income per common share:
Basic and diluted:
Loss from continuing operations . . . . .
Loss from discontinued operations . . . .
Basic and diluted loss per share . .. ..
Weighted average number of common
shares:
Basic ......... ... ... ... ..
Diluted ................o.....

Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Working capital . .................
Total assets . ....................
Long-termdebt . .............. ...
Stockholders’ equity . ..............

Year Ended
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Year Ended  Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
Dec. 31, Dec, 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{In Thousands, Except per Share Data)
$62,912 $32,699 $37.404 $27,348 $22,139
(2,272) (3,984) (4,529) 832 326
- — 1,750 603 —
—~ — — (223) —~
(3,840) (3,964) (4,681Y 534 69
(4,075) (4,467) (4,453) 378 a7
(443) (387) (104) @), 73
$(036) $ (045 3% (061) $ 001 .S (002)
(0.04) (0.04) {0.02) — 0.02
$ (040 § (049 % (063) § 0.01 § —
11,484 9,978 7,277 4,395 4,374
11,484 9,978 7,277 4,793 4,374
Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec, 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
$13,953 $33,527 $ 9,366 $ 1,577 $ 7.634
73,691 68,849 57,172 47,807 24,023
31,303 3L732 2,700 24 847 14,589
31,888 33,181 5,215 3,775




As set forth in Item 1, Business, *Acquisition History”, we have completed five acquisitions since
May 6, 2002. See Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulis of
Operations, “QOverview” and “Results of QOperations,” for information regarding the effect of .acquisitions on
our results of operations. : ) :

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The discussion in this ltem 7 should be read in conjunction with-our consolidated financial statements
and the related notes to those statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report. In addition to historical
consolidated financial information, the following discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements
that involve risks, uncertainties and assiumptions. Qur actual results and timing of specific events may differ
materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a:result of many factors, including,
but not limited 10, those discussed in Item 1A, Risk Factors, and elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Overview '

We design, manufacture and distribute high-quality medical products and services targeting the long-term
care, orthopedic, orthotic and prosthetic markets. Through our wholly-owned subsidiaries, Twincraft, Inc., and
Silipos, Inc., we also offer a diverse line of personal care products for the private label retail, medical, and
therapeutic markets. We sel} our medical products primarily in the United States and Canada, as well as in
more than 30 other countries, to.national, regional, and international distributors, directly to heaithicare profes-
sionals, and directly to patients in instances where we also are providing product fitting services. We sell our
personal care products primarily in North America to branded marketers of such products, specialty retailers,
direct marketing companies, and companies that service various amenities markets. We acquired Twincraft, a
leading designer and manufacturer of bar soap, and Regal, which is a provider of contracture management
products and services to patients in long-term care and other rehabilitation settings, in January 2007.

Our broad range of over 500 orthopedic products, including custom foot and ankle orthotic devices,
pre-fabricated foot products, rehabilitation products, and gel-based orthopedic and prosthetics products, are
designed to correct, protect, heal and provide comfort for the patient. Through Regal, we aiso provide patient
services in long-term care settings by assisting facility personnel in product selection, order fulfillment, prod-
uct fitting and billing services. Our line of personal care products includes bar soap, gel-based therapeutic
gloves and socks, scar management products, and other products that are designed to cleanse and moisturize
specific areas of the body, often incorporating essential oils, vitamins and nutrients to improve the appearance
and condition of the skin.

Since l;"ebruary 2001, we have consummated the following acquisitions:

. Twincraft. On January 23, 2007, we acquired Twincraft, our largest acquisition to date, a designer
and manufacturer of bar soap focused on the health and beauty, direct marketing, amenities and
mass market channels. We acquired Twincraft to expand into additional product categories in the
personal care market, to increase our customer exposure for our current line of Silipos gel-based
skincare products, and to take advantage of potential commonalities in research and development
advances between Twincraft’s and our product grounds. The aggregate consideration paid by us in
connection with this acquisition was approximately $30.6 million, including transaction costs, paid
in cash ($25,938,353) and common stock ($4,701,043, valued at $4.40 per share} of the Company.
The sellers of Twincraft can earn additional deferred compensation in 2008 based upon achievement
of specific EBITDA targets per the terms of the Twincraft purchase agreement. ‘ .

*  Regal. On January 8, 2007, we acqmred Regal, a prov1der of contracture management products and
services to patients in long-term care and other rehabilitation settings. We acquired Regal as part of
an effort to gain access to the long-term care market, to gain a captive distribution channel for
certain custom preducts we manufaCture into a market we previously had been unable to penetrate,
to obtain higher average selling prices for these products, and to establish a national network of
service professionals to enhance our customer relationships in our core markets and new markets.
The initial consideration for Regal was approximately $1.7 million, which has since been reduced to
approximately $1.4 million due to a shortfall in the amount of working capital delivered at closing.
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Silipos. - On September 30, 2004, we acquired Silipos,-Inc., a leading designer, manufacturer and
marketer of gel-based products focusing on the orthopedic, orthotic, prosthetic, and skincare markets.
We acquired Silipos because of its distribution channels and proprietary products, and to enable us
to expand into additional product lines that are part of our market focus. The aggregate consider-
ation paid by us in connection with this acquisition was approximately $17.3 million, including
transaction costs of approximately $2.0 million, paid in cash and notes.

Bi-Op. On January 13, 2003, we acquired Bi-Op Laboratories, Inc. (**Bi-Op”’), which is engaged
in the design, manufacture and sale of footwear and foot orthotic devices as well as orthotic and
prosthetic services. We acquired Bi-Op to gain access to additional markets and complementary
product lines. The aggregate consideration, including transaction costs, was approximately

$2.2 million, of which approximately $1.8 million was paid in cash, and the remaining portion was
paid through the issuance of 107,611 shares of our commen stock.

Benefoor. On May 6, 2002, we acquired the net assets of Benefoot, Inc., and Benefoot Professional
Products, Inc. (together, “Benefoot’’). Benefoot designed, manufactured and distributed custom
orthotics, custom Birkenstock®; sandals, therapeutic shoes, and prefabricated orthotic devices to
healthcare professionals. We acquired Benefoot to gain additional scale in our core custom orthotics
business as well as to gain access to complementary product lines. The aggregate consideration,
including transaction costs, was approximately $7.9 million, of which approximately $5.6 million
was paid in cash, $1.8 million was paid through the issuance of 4% promissory notes, and approxi-
mately $0.5 million was paid through the issuance of 61,805 shares of commen stock. In connection
with this acquisition, we also assumed certain liabilities of Benefoot, including approximately

$0.3 million of long-term indebtedness which was paid at closing.

Recent Developments:

In January 2007, we made two acquisitions, Twincraft and Regal. See **Acquisition History,” above.

In November 2007 we began a study of strategic alternatives available to us with regard to our
various operating companies. We continue to consider acquisitions in our target markets, as well as
examine the possibility of divesting certain assets.

Langer UK: On January 18, 2008 we sold all of the outstanding capital stock of the Company’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, Langer (UK) Limited (“Langer UK™) to an affiliate of Sele Solutions, a
retailer of specialty footwear based in the United Kingdom. The sale price was £587,500, or
approximately $1,155,000, of which £475,000 was paid at the closing and £112,500 is in the form of
a note with 8%2% interest due in full in two years. Upon closing the Company entered into an
exclusive sales agency agreement and a distribution services agreement by which Langer UK will
act as sales agent and distributor for Silipos products in the United Kingdom, Europe, Africa, and
Israel. In 2007, we recognized a net loss of approximately $176,000 associated with the disposal of
Langer UK, due to a realized goodwill impairment,

As of December 31, 2007, Langer UK is reflected in the financial statements as a discontinued
operation and the loss of apporoximately $176,000 associated with the sale of Langer UK is
recorded in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007.

. Common Stock Repurchase Program. On December 6, 2007, we announced that our Board had

authorized the purchase of up to $2,000,000 of our outstanding common stock, using whatever
means the Chief Executive Officer may deem appropriate. In connection with this matter, the Com-
pany's senior lender, Wachovia Bank, National Association, has waived, until March 31, 2008, the
provisions of the credit facility that would otherwise preclude the Company from making purchases
of its common stock. Through March 17, 2008, the Company made one purchase consisting of
342,352 shares at a cost of $694,975 (or $2.03 per share) including commissions paid.

We sell our medical products directly to health care professionals and also to wholesale distributors.
Custom orthotic products are primarily sold directly to health care professionals. Other products sold in our
orthopedic business are sold both directly to health care professionals and to distributors. We sell our persenal
care products primarily in North America to branded marketers of such products, specialty retailers, direct
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marketing companies and companies that service various amenities markets. We derive other revenues by
distributing durable medical goods to patients in long-term care facilities. Revenue from product sales is
recognized at the time of shipment. Our most significant expense is cost of sales. Cost of sales consists of
materials, direct labor and overhead, and related shipping costs. General and administrative expenses consist
of executive, accounting and administrative salaries and employee-related expenses, insurance, bank service
charges, stockholder relations and amortization of identifiable intangible assets with definite lives. Selling
expenses consist of advertising, promotions, commissions, conventions, postage, travel and entertainment,
sales and marketing salaries and related expenses.

For each of the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, we derived approximately 98.1% and 89.1%
of our revenue from North America, and approximately 1.9% and 10.9% of our revenue from outside North
America. Of our revenue derived from North America for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
approximately 94.8% and approximately 90.8%, respectively, was generated in the United States and approxi-
mately 5.2% and 8.2% respectively, was generated from Canada.

We operate in three segments, medical products, personal care products, and Regal services. Prior to
January 1, 2007, the medical products segment was called the orthopedic segment and the person care seg-
ment was called the skincare segment. We consummated two acquisitions (Twincraft and Regal) in
January 2007. The operations from the Twincraft acquisition are included in the personal care segment, and
the operations from the Regal acquisition are included in a distinct segment. In addition, the medical products
segment includes the orthopedic products of Silipos.

For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, we reported custom orthotics and distributed products
as a single segment called orthopedics, and reported a second segment called skincare. The orthopedics seg-
ment also included the orthopedic' products of Silipos. For 2007, we refer to our orthopedic segment as our
medical products segment, we refer to our skincare segment as our personal care products segment, and we
added a new operating segment for the activities of Regal. The operations of Twincraft were included as part
of the skincare segment.

The acquisition of Twincraft had a dramatic impact on the mix of our segment revenues. For the year
ended December 31, 2007, our personal care segment represented 53.3% of our total revenue, compared to
8.3% of total revenues for the vear ended December 31, 2006. Our medical products revenue, on the other
hand, represented 40.8% of total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007, as compared to 91.7% of
our total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006. Regal, acquired January 2007 is operating as a
separate segment, with 5.9% of our total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our accounting policies are more fully described in Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial State-
ments. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and labilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Future events and
their effects cannot be determined with absolute certainty. Therefore, the determination of estimates requires
the exercise of judgment. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or
conditions.

Accounting Estimates. We believe the most significant accounting estimates inherent in the preparation
of our consolidated financial statements include estimates associated with our determination of liabilitics
related to warranty activity and estimates associated with our reserves with respect to collectibility of accounts
receivable, allowances for sales returns, inventory valuations, valuation allowance for deferred tax assets and
impairment of goodwill and identifiable intangible assets. Various assumptions and other factors underlie the
determination of these significant estimates. The process of determining significant estimates is fact specific
and takes into account factors such as historical experience, current and expected economic condition$, and
product mix. We constantly re-evaluate these significant factors and make adjustments where facts and circum-
stances dictate. Historically, actual results have not significantly deviated from those determined using the
estimates described above.
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Warranty Reserve. Warranty reserves represent our estimate of future costs associated with our warranty
of fabricated products and are based upon historical experience, During the year ended December 31, 2003,
we increased the reserve by approximately $290,000 and charged approximately $290,000. The warranty
reserve at December 31, 2005 was $70,000. During the year ended December 31, 2006, we increased the
reserve by approximately $154,000 and charged approximately $154,000. The warranty reserve at
December 31, 2006 was $70,000. During the year ended December 31, 2007, we increased the reserve by
approximately $99,000 and charged approximately $109,000. The warranty reserve at December 31, 2007 is
approximately $60,000. If future costs incurred were to differ from our estimates, we may need to increase or
decrease our reserve.

Revenue Recognition. Revenue from the sale of our products is recognized upon shipment. We gener-
ally do not have any post-shipment obligations to customers other than for product warranties associated with
our manufactured medical products. We generally warrant these products against defects in materials and
workmanship for a peried of 6 months. We record provision for estimated future costs associated with our
warranties of fabricated products/custom orthotics when we ship such products, based on historical experience.
We also offer extended warranty contracts which we record as deferred revenue and recognize over the lives
of the contracts (24 months) on a straight-line basis. See *“Warranty Reserve,” above. Revenue from shipping
and handling fees is included in net sales in the consolidated statements of operations. Costs incurred for
shipping and handling is included in the cost of sales in the consolidated statements of operations.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. OQur allowance for doubtful accounts was 14.3% of accounts receiv-
able at December 31, 2007, compared to 12.8% of accounts receivable at December 31, 2006. Management
believes that the overall allowance, as a percentage of accounts receivable at December 31, 2007 is appropri-
ate based upon the consolidated collection and write-off history as well as the average age of the consolidated
accounts receivable. During the year ended December 31, 2007, we increased the reserve by approximately
$1,358,000 and wrote off, net of recoveries, approximately $430,000 against the allowance. As of
December 31, 2007, the altowance for doubtful accounts was approximately $1,467,000. During the year
ended December 31, 2006, we added approximately $223,000 to the allowance and wrote off, net of recover-
ies, approximately $182,000. At December 31, 2006, the allowance for doubtful accounts was approximately
$539,000. Tf future payments by our customers were different from our estimates, we may need to increase or
decrease our allowance for doubtful accounts.

Inventory Reserve. During the year ended December 31, 2005, we added approximately $453,000 of
additional reserves and wrote off approximately $258,000 in excess or obsolete inventory, which was disposed
of during the year. During 2005, we reviewed our inventory levels and aging relative to current and expected
usage and determined the requirement for additions to the reserve. The inventory reserve for ohsolete inven-
tory at December 31, 2005 was approximately $564,000. During the year ended December 31, 2006, we
added approximately $468,000 of additional reserves and wrote off approximately $147,000 in excess or
obsolete inventory which was disposed of during the year. The reserve for obsolete inventory was approxi-
mately $885,000 at December 31, 2006. During the year ended December 31, 2007, we added approximately
$1,181,000 of additional reserves and wrote off approximately $504,000 in excess or obsolete inventery. The
reserve for obsolete inventory was approximately $1,562,000 at December 31, 2007. If the inventory quality
or usage relative to quantities held were to deteriorate or improve in the future, we may need to increase or
decrease our reserve for excess or obsolete inventory.

Inventory write-downs represent the estimated loss of value of certain slow-moving inventory or inven-
tory that has been damaged or spoiled. Inventory usage is analyzed using turnover analysis, and an allowance
for obsolescence is provided when inventory quantity exceeds its normal cycle. The percentage of allowance
is based upon actual usage, historical data and experience. Most of these reserves are associated with raw
materials used in the fabrication process and either represent items no longer utilized in the process or signifi-
cant excess inventory. Inventory for which a reserve has been provided was approximately $2,186,000 and
approximately $1,643,000, on an original cost basis, at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Certain of
the raw material inventory for which a reserve was provided have subsequently been used in fabrication, with
the related reserve being reversed. However, we re-evaluate the reserve as of the end of each reportmg period
based upon the age of the existing inventory and the usage analysis.
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Valuation' Allowance — Deferred Tax Assets. During the year ended December 31, 2005, the valuation
allowance was increased by approximately $2,112,000.t0 approximately $4,680,000. During 2006, the valua-
tion allowance was increased by approximately $2,038,000 to approximately $6,718,000. We believe this
valuation allowance is required because it is more likely than not that these deferred tax assets will not be
realized. During 2007, the valuation allowance was decreased by approximately $3,959,000 to approximately
$2,759,000. The acquisition of Twincraft during 2007 resulted in approximately $5,557,000 of deferred tax
liabilities being provided as a result of the carrying value of fixed assets and identifiable intangibles for finan-
cial reporting purposes exceeding the related tax basis of 'such assets. These deferred tax liabilities resulted in
a corresponding reduction to the tax valuation allowance relating to the Company’s net deferred tax assets. In
addition, the valuation allowance was increased by approximately $1,417,000 to reserve a corresponding
amount of income tax benefits which more likely than not will not be realized. In addition, in the year ended
December 31, 2006, we recorded an adjustment of approximately $275,000 for the pricr year under-accrual of
deferred taxes related to an mtanglble impairment,

Goodwill and Identifiable lmang;ble Assets Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over fair
value of identifiable net assets of acquired businesses. Identifiable intangible assets primarily represent alloca-
tions of purchase price to identifiable intangible assets of acqunred businesses. Because of our strategy of
growth through acquisitions, goodwill and other identifiable mtang1ble assets comprlse a substantial portion
{49.1% as of December 31, 2007 and 28.5% as of December 31, 2006) of our total assets. Furthermore, the
manner in which we distinguish our reporting units is an important factor as it is the basis for which the
entities are valued for purposes of determining goodwill impairment.

During 2005, 2006 and 2007, impairment tests of goodwill and indefinite-lived identifiable intangible
assets were performed in accordance with SFAS No. 142 and an evaluation of identifiable intangible assets
with definite lives pursuant to SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets.” As the result of the impairment test completed as of October 1, 2005 in accordance with
SFAS No. 142, for the year ended December 31, 2005, we recognized a loss on impairment of identifiable
intangible assets with indefinite lives of $1,600,000 and recorded a loss on impairment of $502,000 with
respect to identifiable intangible assets with definitive lives in accordance with SFAS No. 144. No impairment
was recorded in the year ended December 31, 2006. In December 2007, the Company recorded an impairment
of $175,558 related to the allocated portion of goodwill related to Langer UK as a result of the net loss
associated with the sale of Langer UK in January 2008. Such impairment is included in loss from operations
of discontinued subsidiary.

Goodwill and identifiable intangible assets, net, at December 31, 2007 were approximately $21,956,000
and $14.458,000, respectively. Goodwill and identifiable intangible assets, net, at December 31, 2006 were
approximately $14,119,000 and approximately $5,961,000, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, goodwill increased by approximately $7,837,000. This
increase was attributable to approximately $7,022,000 of goodwill attributable to the acquisition of Twincraft
and approximately $1,278,000 of goodwill attributable to the acquisition of Regal. Goodwill was reduced by
approximately $463,000 as a result of the allocation of goodwill to Langer UK, whose assets and liabilities
are classified as assets held for sale in the consolidated balance sheets. During the year ended December 31,
2007, identifiable intangible assets had a net increase of approximately $8,497,000 resulting from the repeat
customer base and trade names of Twincraft, which was offset by a decrease of approximately $1,346,000 as a
result of amortization expenses for the year. During the year ended December 31, 2006, there was no change
to goodwill, and identifiable intangible assets decreased by approximatély $643,000 as a result of amortization
expenses for the year. C '

Goodwill is tested annually using a methodology which requires forecasts and assumptions about the
reporting units growth and future results. If factors change or if assumptions are not met, it could have a
material effect on operating results.

Stock-Based Compensation. We estimate the fair value of stock options granted using the Black-Scholes
option pricing formula and a multiple option award approach. This fair value is thén amortized over the
requisite service periods of the awards. This option pricing model requires the input of highly subjective
assumptions, including the options’ expected lives, price volatility of the underlying stock, risk-free interest
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rate and expected dividend rate. As stock-based compensation expense is based on awards ultimately expected
to vest, it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

(*SFAS’") No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and
revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Forfeitures were
estimated based on historical experience.

\

We evaluate the assumptions used to value awards on a grant by grant basis. If factors change or if we
use a different model, future period estimates of stock-based compensation expense may differ significantly
and could have a material effect on operating income, net income and earnings per share.

Adoption of FIN 45. We adopted Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”
(“Fin 48”) on January 1, 2007. We performed a thorough review of our tax returns not yet closed due to the
statute of limitations and other currently pending tax positions of the Company. We reviewed and analyzed
our tax records and documentation supporting tax positions for purposes of determining the presence of any
uncertain tax positions and confirming other tax positions as certaint under FIN 48. We reviewed and analyzed
our records in support of tax positions represented by both permanent and temporary differences in reporting
income and deductions for tax and accounting purposes. We maintain a policy, consistent with principals
under FIN 48, to continually monitor past'and present tax positions. No uncertain tax positions were identified
as a result of this review, ' ‘ :

Results of Operations

The following tables present (i) selected consolidated statements of operations data, and (ii) selected
consolidated statements of operations data as a percentage of net sales:

1

Years Ended December 31,

. 2007 2006 2005

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:

Netsales .. ........ .. .. .. ... $62,912,298  $32,699,304 $37,403,853
Costofsales . ....... ... .. ... ., 40,523,793 20,055,605 20,489,589
Grossprofit ... ..... ... ... .. e, 22,388,503 12,643,699 16,914,264
Selling expenses .. .......... ... ... .. ... 9,418,661 6,035,326 7,079,229
General and administrative expenses . ......... 14,066,476 9,726,270 11,498,704
Research and development expenses . . ... ... ... 837,934 528,421 469,971
Provision for impairment of identifiable intangible

ASSELS . . . — — 2,102,000

Operating (I0s8) . .. ... vt (1,934,566) (3,646,318) (4,235,640}
Other (expense):

Jnterest income ... ... e 257,964 629,409 441,517

Interest expense . . ........... e (2,186,100} (943,629) (2,689,638)

Change in fair value of Put Option .. .. ... ... — — 1,750,000

Other income (expense) ................. 22,329 (3,731) 52,875

Other {expense), net . . .................. (1,905,807) (317,951) (445,246)
Loss from continuing operations before income - '

TAXES .t i i e e (3,840,373) (3,964,269) (4,680,886)
(Pro'visio'n for) benefit from income taxes ....... (234,771) (502,396) 227,391
Net loss from continuing operations . .......... (4,075,144) (4,466,665) (4,453,495)
Discontinued operations:

Loss from operations of discontinued

subsidiary . ............ ... ... ..., (442,833) (443,127 (77,542)
Income tax benefit (provision) ............. — - 56,303 (26,231)
Loss from discontinued operations . . . ... ... (442,833) (386,824} (103,773)
Netloss .ot vt e e $(4,853,489) $(4,557,268)
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Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 - 2005
Consolidated Statements of Operations Data: '
Netsales .o n i et et e e e © 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costofsales.............. PP e - 644 613 . 548
Gross Profit . ....... ... ... ... ... . ... 35.6 387 452
Selling expenses . . ....... ... .. 15.0 18.5 18.9
General and administrative expenses .. ........ 224 29.7 30.7
Research and development expenses . . . ..... ... 1.3 1.6 1.3
Provision for 1mpamnem of identifiable mtanglble,
CASSEES L L L e e e = = _ 56
Operating (loss) income .. . . . .. e ER)) (11.1) (11.3)
Other income (expense):
Interest INCOME . .. ..ot e ot i n 04 1.9 1.2
Interest expense . . ........ ..., ) (3.5) 29 (1.2)
Change in fair value of Put Option . ... ... ... — — 4.7
Other income (expense} . ................ _ 00 (0.0 _ 01
Other expense, net . ............c.con.n-. _@3.bH (19 _(1.2)
[.oss from continuing operations before income
BAXES . o ot e (6.2) (12.1) (12.5)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes ....... (0.4 _(L5) 06
Net loss from continuing operations . ........ _(6.6) (13.6) (11.9)
Discontinued operations:
Income (loss) from operations of discontinued ' ' . ,
subsidiary . .. ... ... 07 (1.4) (0.2)
Income tax benefit (provision) ............. = _ 02 _0.1)
Loss from dlscontmued operations . .. ...... (0.7 _(1.2) _0.3)
Netloss .......... _(1.3)% (14.8)% (12.2)%

Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2007 was approximately $(4,518,000), or $(0.40) on a fully-
diluted basis, compared to net loss of approximately $(4,853,000), or $(0.49) per share on a fully diluted basis
for the year ended December 31, 2006. The principal reasons for the decline in the net loss for the year ended
December 31, 2007 over 2006 were an increase in sales of approximately $30,213,000, which resulted in an
increase of approximately $9,745,000 in gross profit, and a reduction in income taxes of approximately
$268.000. These factors were partially offset by increases in general and administrative expenses, selling
expenses, and research and development expenses of approximately $4,340,000, $3,383,000, and $310,000
respectively, as well as an increase in net interest expense of approximately $1,614,000, which is primarily
related to the Company’s issuance of its 5% Convertible Notes on December 8, 2006.

In January, 2008, the Company sold its Langer (UK) Limited business, and therefore has reclassified the
operating activities of this business as discontinued operations as of December 31, 2007 and for prior years. In
the year ended December 31, 2007, net operating loss of this business was approximately $267,000 as com-
pared to a net operating loss of approximately $443,000 in the year ended December 31, 2006. In addition, in
2007, we included in discontinued operations the loss of approximately $176,000 associated with the disposal
of Langer UK. The loss associated with disposal of Langer UK is based upon the selling price of approxi-
mately $1,155,000 less net assets sold of approximately $742,000, transactions costs of approximately
$126,000, and goodwill allocated to Langer UK of $463,000. ’ ;

The significant factors impacting our operating results are discussed in more detail below.

.Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2007 were approximately $62,912,000 as compared to net
sales of approximately $32,699,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of approximately
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$30,213,000 or 92.4%. Twincraft and Regal, acquired in January 2007, are the primary reason for the increase
in net sales, contributing approximately $27,775,000 and $3,752,000 respectively to sales in the year ended
December 31, 2007.

With the acquisition of Twincraft, the Company underwent a dramatic change in our mix of segment
revenues. For the year ended December 31, 2007, our personal care segment represented 53.3% of our total
revenue, compared to 9.0% of total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006. Our medical products
revenue, on the other hand, represented 40.8% of total revenues for the vear ended December 31, 2007, as
compared to 91.0% of our total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006. Regal, acquired January 2007,
is operating as a separate segment, with 5.9% of our total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Net sales of personal care products increased eleven-fold by approximately $30,573,000, from approxi-
mately $2,935,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006 to approximately $33,508,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2007. Twincraft contributed approximately $27,775,000 of the increase and the balance of
approximately $2,798,000 was attributable to increases in sales of Silipos’ personal care products.

Net sales in our medical products segment decreased approximately $4,113,000 or 13.8%, from approxi-
mately $29,765,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006 to approximately $25,652, 000 for the year ended
December 31, 2007. The primary reasons for the decrease in net sales in the medical products segment were
our decision to discontinue the manufacture and distribution of sandals, resulting in an estimated revenue
decrease of $351,000, declines in the sales of distributed products of approximately $921,000 where competi-
tion is increasing, and the balance of the decrease is a result of the closure of our Anaheim, California
manufacturing facility and certain other factors.

On a consolidated basis, cost of sales increased from approximately $20,056,000 or 61.3% of net sales
for the year ended December 31, 2006, to approximately $40,524,000 or 64.4% of net sales for the year ended
December 31, 2007. This increase is primarily attributable to the acquisitions of Twincraft and Regal, which
had cost of sales of approximately $21,195,000 and $1,115,000, respectively. For the year ended
December 31, 2007, Twincraft’s cost of goods sold as a percentage of sales was approximately 76.3%, which
contributed to the increase in the overall cost of goods sold as percentage of sales for the consolidated entity.

In our personal care segment, cost of sales was approximately $23,775,000, or 71.0% of net sales of
personal care products of approximately $33,508,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to
approximately $1,238,000, or 42.2% of net sales of personal care products of approximately $2,935,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2006. Excluding Twincraft’s cost of sales of approximately $21,195,000, Sl]lpOS
cost of sales increase of approx1mately $1,341,000 for its personal care products was attnbutable to its
increase in net sales of personal care products of approximately $2,798,000. )

Cost of sales in the medical products segment were approximately $15,634,000, or 60.9% of medical
products net sales for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to approximately $18,818,000 or 63.2%
of medical products net sales for the year ended December 31, 2006. This 2.3%-decrease in cost of sales asa
percentage of net sales, is due to improved overhead absorption.

Cost of sales for custom orthotics was approximately $9,445,000, or 72.4% of net sales of custom orthot-
ics for the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared 1o cost of sales for custom orthotics for the year
ended December 31, 2006 of approximately $11,273,000 or 78.5% of net sales. Reductions in the cost of sales
are primarily due to the closure of our Anaheim production facility in June 2007, which reduced our overhead
associated with the production of custom orthotics. Cost of sales of historic distributed products were approxi-
mately $2,029,000 or 60.3% of net sales of distributed products in the medical products business for the year
ended December 31, 2007, compared to approximately $2,858,000 or 66.7% of net sales of distributed prod-
ucts in the medical products business for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Cost of sales of Silipos’ branded medical products were approximately $4,159,000, or 45.0% of net sales
of Silipos’ branded medical products of approximately $9,245,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007,
compared to approximately $4,686,000 or 42.2% of net sales of Silipos’ branded medical products of approxi-
mately $11,108,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006. The increase in cost of sales is due to increases in
certain material costs used in the manufacturing process as well as increases in freight and customs charges.
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Consolidated gross profit increased approximately $9,745,000 or 77.1% to approximately $22,389,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to approximately $12,644,000 for the year ended December 31,
2006. Consolidated gross profit as a percentage of net sales for the year ended December 31, 2007 was
35.6%, compared to 38.7% for the year ended December 31, 2006. The consolidated gross profit percentage
decreased for year ended December 31, 2007, compared to the year ended December 31, 2006, due to a lower
average gross profit margin in our new Twincraft business. The principal reason for the nominal increase in
gross profit was the gross profit contributions of Twincraft and Regal of approximately $6,579,000 and
$2,638,000, respectively.

Gross profit generated by our personal care segment was approximately $9,733,000, or 29.1% of net sales
in the personal care segment for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to approximately $1,697,000
or 57.8% of net sales in the personal care segment for the year ended December 31, 2006. This increase in
gross profit is primarily the result of the additional gross profit contribution of approximately $6,579,000 of
Twincraft. The principal reason for the decrease in the overall gross profit'percentage for this segment is the
lower average gross profit margin in our new Twincraft business, which was 23.7% in the year ended
December 31, 2007. The gross profit generated by Silipos’ personal care segment was approximately
$3,154,000, or 55.0% of Silipos’ net sales in the personal care segment for the year ended December 31,

2007, compared to approximately $1,697,000 or 57.8% of Silipos’ net sales in their personal care segment for
the year ended December 31, 2006.

Gross profit for ‘the medical products segment was approximately $10,018,000, or 39.1% of net sales of
the medical products segment for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to approximately
$10,947,000, or 36.8% of net sales of the medical products segment for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Gross profit for custom orthotics was approximately $3,596,000, or 27.6% of net sales of custom orthot-
ics for the year ended December 31-, 2007, compared to approximately $3,096,000 or 21.5% of net sales of
custom orthotics for the year ended December 31, 2006. This improvement in gross profit was primarily due
to the closure of our Anaheim production facility in June 2007 and the resulting consolidation of manufactur-
ing activities, which reduced our overhead costs. Gross profit for our historic distributed products was
approximately $1,337,000, or 39.7% of net sales of distributed products in the medical products business for
the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to approximately $1,429,000 or 33.3% of net sales of distrib-
uted products in the medical products business for the year ended December 31, 2006. The decrease in gross
profit in distributed products from our historical business was primarily attributable to a decrease in net sales
of our therapeutic footwear distributed products.

Gross profit generated by Silipos’ branded medical product sales was approximately $1,360,000, or
55.0% of net sales of Silipos’ branded medical products for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to
approximately $1,861,000, or 57.8% of net sales of Silipos’ branded medical products for the year ended
December 31, 2006. .

General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2007 were approximately
$14,066,000, or 22.4% of net sales, compared to approximately $9,726,000, or 29.7% of net sales for the year
ended December 31, 2006. Twincraft and Regal generated approximately $2,229,000 and $373,000 respec-
tively of general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2007. The remaining increase
of $1,738,000 was attributable to an increase in professional fees of approximately $1,222,000 which includes
fees paid to a financial service consulting firm of approximately $876,000 and consulting fees paid for assis-
tance with Sarbanes-Oxley compliance of approximately $125,000, an increase in amortization of identifiable
intangible assets of approximately $703,000, an increase in the pension provision of approximately $60,000
related to the retirement of our pension plan, lease abandonment costs of approximately $72,000 related to the
closing of our Anaheim, California facility, one-time recruitment fees of $70,000 related for our new Chief
Financial Officer, an increase in stock-based compensation of approximately $95,000, an increase in director’s
fees of approximately $62,000, all of which were offset by decreases in other general and administrative
expenses of approximately $546.000.

Selling expenses increased approximately $3,383,000, or 56.0%, to approximately $9,419,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2007, compared to approximately $6,035,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006.
Selling expenses as a percentage-of net sales were 15.0% for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to
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18.5% for the year ended December 31, 2006. Twincraft and Regal incurred selling expenses of approximately
$3,008,000 and $2,313,000, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2007. The remaining decrease of
approximately $1,938,000 is primarily attributable to the consolidation of personnel and related selling
expenses in our medical products businesses and our continuing effort to reduce selling expenses as we expe-
rience sales declines in our medical products business.

Research and development expenses were approximately $838,000 for the year ended December 31,
2007, an increase of approximately $310,000, or 58.7%, which was attributable to the inclusion of Twincraft’s
research and development expenses of approximately $364,000, which was offset by a decrease of approxi-
mately $54,000 of Silipos’ research and development expenses.

Interest income was approximately $258,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to
approximately $629,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006. For the year ended December 31, 2006, the
Company generated interest income related to the investment of approximately $14,500,000 until these funds
were used on August 31, 2006 to repay the 4% Convertible Notes.

Interest expense was approximately $2,186,000 for the vear ended December 31, 2007, compared to
approximately $944,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of approximately $1,242,000. The
principal reason for the increase was that 2007 included interest expense of approximately $1,443,000 associ-
ated with the $28,880,000 principal amount of 5% convertible subordinated notes due December 7, 2011
(the ““5% Convertible Notes™), compared to interest expense of approximately $385,000 associated with the
$14,589,000 principal amount of 4% convertible subordmated notes (the “4% Convertible Notes™), which
were paid in full on August 31, 2006.

In the year ended December 31, 2007, the provision for income taxes was approximately $235,000 as
compared to a provision of approximatety $502,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006. The primary
reason for the decrease is the fact that a $275,000 provision was recorded in 2006 to adjust the under-accrual
of deferred taxes related to an intangible impairment.

Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, the operations of Langer UK, Limited have been
classified as discontinued operations in our consolidated financial statements, as a result of the sale of Langer
UK in January 2008. As a result, assets and liabilities from continuing opera[mns as discussed below, may be
different from values reported in prior years.

Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2006 was approximately $(4,853,000), or $(0.49) per share on
a fully diluted basis, compared to net loss of approximately $(4,557,000), or $(0.63) per share on a fully
diluted basis for the year ended December 31, 2005. The principal reasons for the increase in net loss for the
year ended December 31, 2006 over 2005 were (i) a decrease in net sales of approximately $4,705,000, or
12.6%, which resulted in a decrease in gross profit of approximately $4,271,000, or 25.2%; (ii) an increase of
approximately $730,000 for provision for income taxes; (iii) that the operating results for the year ended
December 31, 2005 included a non-recurring nen-cash gain recorded on the expiration of the Put Option
{as in hereafter defined) of $1,750,000, and, an increase in the loss from Langer UK, our business which was
discontinued in January 2008 of approximately $366,000. These increases in net loss in 2006, compared to
2005, were partially offset by a reduction in interest expense in 2006, compared to 2005 of approximately
$1,746,000 due primarily to the interest expense incurred in 2005 with respect to debt issued in connection
with the Silipos acquisition of approximately $1,472,000 (including amortization of debt discount associated
with warrants issued, amortization of debt placement costs, and the amortization of interest cost related to the
increasing-rate debt and Protection Payment (as described below) in the $7.5 Million Note, and net of the
realization of the call option of $500,000) and the write-off of the unamortized debt discount of $572,000 in
connection with the repayment of the $5,500,000 principal amount of 7% senior subordinated notes due
September 30, 2007 (the “7% Subordinated Notes”), and approximately $58,000 as the write-off of the
related debt placement fees (both of which were included in interest expense in the unaudited condensed
consolidated statements of operations), Additionally, selling expenses and general and administrative expenses
decreased by approximately $1,044,000 and approximately $1,728,000, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2006, compared to the year ended December 31, 2005, as we continued to rationalize selling
expenses and instituted cost containment measures for general and administrative expenses. The decrease in
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general and administrative expenses was primarily attributable to decreases in stock option compensation
expense of approximately $1,071,000 of which related to stock options for consulting services and approxi-
mately $1,046,000 of which related to 2 modification to a stock option agreement, and a decrease in
stock-based compensation expense of approximately $742,000. These decreases in general and administrative
expenses were offset by a number of significant expenses incurred in 2006 including a non-cash charge related
to an unrecognized pension loss triggered by the withdrawal of a significant portion of pension assets by a
founder of the Company of approximately $397,000, an increase in the allowance for inventory obsolescence
of approximately $321,000, the cost to implement the lean manufacturing process in our custom orthotic
production facilities of approximately $195,000, lease abandonment costs of approximately $236,000,
employee severance costs of approximately $201,000, a fee paid to a lender to obtain a lending facility that
we decided not to pursue of $50,000, and fees paid to a financial service consulting firm of approximately
$50,000. In addmon research and development expenses increased approximately $58,000 in the year ended
December 31, 2006, compared to 2005, which was primarily attributable to the costs associated with the
development of alternative gel formulauons

Net sales for the year ended December 31 2006 were appr0x1mately $32,699,000, compared to approxi-
mately $37,404,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005, a decrease of approximately $4,705,000, or
12.6%. The principal reason for the decrease was the decrease in Silipos’ net sales of approximately
$3,462,000, or 19.8%, from approximately $17,505,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005, to approxi-
mately $14,043,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006, and a decline in net sales i in our orthotics business
before the Silipos acquisition of approximately $1,243,000, or 6.2%, from approximately $19,899,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2005, to approximately $18,656,000 for the year ended Decémber 31, 2006. The
declines were attributable to several factors described below.

Net sales in our medical products segment were approximately $29,765,000 in the year ended
December 31, 2006, compared to approximately $32,907,000 in the year ended December 31, 2005, a
decrease of approximately $3,142,000, or 9.5%. This decrease was due to the net sales decrease of approxi-
mately $1,897,000 from the orthopedic segment of Silipos, and-a reduction in net sales in our orthotics
business before the Silipos acquisition of approximately $1,245,000, discussed in more detail below.

Approximately $762,000 of such reduction in sales is the result of the loss of certain of Canadian orthot-
ics customers, attributable primarily to the termination of our relationship with our Canadian sales
representative in March 2005.

t

Also within the medical products segment, net sales of distributed products for the year ended
December 31, 2006 were approximately $4,287,000, compared to approximately $4,084,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2003, a decrease of approximately $203,000, or 5.0%. This decrease was primarily
attributable 1o a decrease in the sales of our therapeutic footwear program of approximately $352,000.
Additionally, net sales of other distributed products and PPT®;, a proprietary product, decreased by approxi-
mately $66,000 and $64,000, respectively, in the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to the year ended
December 31, 2005,

Net sales of Silipos branded orthopedic products were approximately $11,108,000 in the year ended
December 31, 2006, compared to approximately $13,007,000 in the year ended December 31, 2005, a
decrease of approximately $1,899,000, or 14.6%, which was attributable to the loss of several customers in
the three months ended March 31, 2006, but was partially offset by new business generated in the nine
months ended December 31, 2006. ’ '

We generated net sales of approximately $2,935,000 in our personal care segment in the year ended
December 31, 2006, compared to $4,500,000 in the year ended December 31, 2005, a decrease of approxi-
mately $1,565,000, or 34.8%. Net sales in the personal care segment represented 20.9% of Silipos’ net sales
for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to 25.7% for the year ended December 31, 2005, and
represented 8.3% of fotal net sales for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to 11.2% of total net
sales for the year ended December 31, 2005. The reason for the decrease in net sales in the personal care
segment is the loss of certain customers and high inventory levels of customers, thereby reducing their
re-order requirements.
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Cost of sales, on a consolidated basis, decreased approximately $434,000, or 2.1%, to approximately
$20,056,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to approximately $20,490,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2005. Cost of sales did not decline as much as net sales because manufacturing over-
head, which is primarily comprised of fixed expenses, and direct labor of which was fairly consistent with the
prior year, more than offset the reduction in material costs (variable) in 2006, compared to 2005. -

Cost of sales in the medical products segment were approximately $18,818,000, or 63.2% of medical
products net sales in the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to approximately $18,771,000, or 63.1%
of medical products net, sales in the year ended December 31, 2005. '

Costs of sales for custom orthotics were approximately $11,273,000, or 78.5% of net sales of cuqtom
orthotics for the year ended December 31, 2006, ‘compared to approximately $11, 349,000, or 71.8% of net
sales of custom orthotics for the year ended December 31, 2005. Cost of sales of historic distributed products
were approximately $2,858,000, or 66.7% of net sales of distributed products in the orthotics business for the
year ended December 31, 2006, compared to approximately $2,452,000, or 60.0% of net sales of distributed
products in the orthotics business for the year ended December 31, 2005,

Cost of sales for Silipos’ branded orthopedic products were approximately $4,686,000, or 42.4% of net
sales of Silipos’ branded orthopedic products of approximately $11,108,000 in the year ended December 31,
2006, compared to approximately $4,970,000, or 38.2% of net sales of Silipos’ branded orthopedic products of
approximately $13,007,000 in the year ended December 31, 2005, because of a change in the mix of products,
which carry different gross margins,

Cost of sales for personal care products were approximately $1,238,000, or 42.2% of net sales of per-
sonal care products of approximately $2,935,000 in the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to .
approximately $1,718,000, or 41.1% of net sales of personal care products of approximately $4,497,000 in the
year ended December 31, 2005. The reason for the decrease of approximately $480,000, or 27.9%, is
explained above in cost of sales, on a consolidated basis.

Consolidated gross profit decreased approximately $4,270,000, or 25.2%, to approximately $12,644,000
for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to approximately $16,914,000 in the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2005. Consolidated gross profit as a percentage of net sales for the year ended December 31, 2006
was 38.7%, compared to 45.2% for the year ended December 31, 2005. The principal reason for the decrease
in consolidated gross profit was the gross profit decrease at Silipos of approximately $2,697,000. Silipos’
blended gross profit (including both medical products and personal care) as a percentage of its net sales for
the year ended December 31, 2006 was 57.8%, compared to 61.8% for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Gross profit for the 'medical products segment was approximately $10,947,000, or 36.8% of net sales of
the medical products segment in the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to approximately $14,136,000,
or 43.0% of net sales of the medical products segment in the year ended December 31, 2005.

Gross profit for custom orthotics was approximately $3,096,000, or 21.5% of net sales of custom orthot-
ics for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to approximately $4,465,000, or 28.2% of net sales of
custom orthotics for the year ended December 31, 2005. Gross profit for our historic distributed products was
approximately $1,429,000, or 33.3% of net sales of distributed products in the medical products business for
the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to approximately $1,632,000, or 40.0% of net sales of distrib-
uted products in the medical products business for the year ended December 31, 2005. The decrease in gross
profit in custom medical products was attributable to increases in overhead expenses, as well as a slight
increase in certain material prices. The decrease in gross profit in distributed products from our historical
business was atmbulable to a decrease in the net sales of hlstonc distributed products.

Gross profit generated by Silipos’ branded orthopedic sales was approxmlate]y $6,422,000, or 57.8% of
net sales of Silipos’ branded orthopedic products for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to approxi-
mately $8,037,000,.or 61.8% of net sales of Silipos’ branded orthopedic products for the year ended
December 31, 2005.
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Gross profit generated by our personal care segment was approximately $1,697,000, or 57.8% of net sales
in the personal care segment for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to approximately $2,779,000,
or 61.8% of net sales in the personal care segment for the year ended December 31, 2005.

General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006 were approximately
$9,726,000, or 29.7% of net $ales, compared to approximately $11,499,000, or 30.7% of nét sales for the year
ended December 31, 2005, representing a decrease of approximately $1,773,000. This decrease was attribut-
able to decreases in stock option-compensation expense of approximately $1,071,000, which related to stock
options for consulting services and approximately $1,046,000 which related to a modification to a stock option
agreement, a decrease in stock-based compensation-expense of approximately $742,000, a decrease in profes-
sional fees of approximately $660,000 and a decrease in other net general and administrative expenses of
approximately $89,000. These decreases were partially offset by an increase of approximately $397,000 due to
a loss on pension settlement, an increase in rent expense of approximately $547,000 recognized with respect
to the new New York City office lease, an increase in consulting fees of approximately $314,000 incurred
primarily with respect to our lean manufacturing initiative, an increase of approximately $236,000 due to the
loss on abandonment of certain New York City office space, an increase in consulting fees (primarily informa-
tion technology related) of approximately $153,000, and an increase of approximately $61,000 due to the
write-off of certain assets,

Selling expenses decreased approximately $1,044,000, or 14.7%, to approximately $6,035,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2006, compared to approximately $7,079,000 for the year ended December 31,
2005. Selling expenses as a percentage of net sales were 18.5% in the year ended December 31, 2006, com-
pared to 18.9% in the year ended December 31, 2005. Silipos’ selling expenses decreased by approximately
$1,155,000, from approximately $4,005,000 in the year ended December 31, 2005, to approximate]y
$2,850,000 in the year ended December 31, 2006. Selling expenses in our medial products business before the
Silipos acquisition increased by approximately $268,000, from approximately $3,398,000 in the year ended
December 31, 2005, to approximately $3,666,000 in the year ended December 31, 2006. The overall decrease
of approximately $887,000 is due to decreases in sales and sales related salaries of approximately $535,000,
which includes certain reclassifications of personnel (net of commissions paid to our former Canadian repre-
sentative), royalties of approximately $262,000, advertising and promotions of approximately $109,000, and -
other related selling expenses of approximately $169,000, which was offset by increases in consulting and
professional fees of approximately $127,000, and severance and severance related expenses of approximately
$61,000. Silipos, which sells primarily to distributors, allocates more resources, both in absolute amounts and
as a percentage of net sales, into sales, marketing, and sales-related expenses, including royalties and sales
commissions, than our medical products business before the Silipos acquisition.

Research and development expenses increased from approximately $470,000 in the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2005, to approximately $528,000 in the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of approXimately
$58,000, or 12.3%, which was primarily attributable to the costs associated with the development of alterna-
tive gel formulations. '

* During 2005 and 2006, the Company performed impairment tests of goodwill and indefinite-lived intan-
gible assets in accordance with SFAS No. 142, and evaluation of the useful lives of acquired intangible assets
subject to amortization were performed in accordance with SFAS No. 144, “*Accounting for the impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” As a result of the impairment test completed as of October 1, 2005, we
recognized a loss on impairment of identifiable intangible assets with indefinite lives of $1,600, 000 and
recorded a loss on impairment of $502,000 with respect to identifiable intangible assets with definitive lives.

Interest income increased from approximatety $442,000 in the year ended December 31, 2005, to .
approximately $629,000 in the year ended December 31, 2006. This increase of approximately $187,000 was
due to the liquidity that was available through the August 2006 repayment of the 4% Convertible Notes,
discussed below. This liquidity resulted from the net proceeds from our public offering.that closed in
June 2005, which were available for investment in short-term cash equivalents for eight months in 2006.
Additionally, the increase in interest income in 2006, compared to 2003, is attributable to the increase in
short-term interest rates. . ' : - ‘
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Interest expense was approximately $944,000 in the year ended December 31, 2006, compared 1o
approximately $2,690,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005, a decrease of approximately $1,746,000.
The principal reasons for the decrease in 2006 were that the year ended December 31, 2005 included:

(i} Interest expense of approximately $547,000 associated with the various components of the acquisi-
tion indebtedness incurred in connection with the Silipos acquisition, which was repaid in full in
June and July 2005 and thus was not outstanding at any time in the year ended December 31, 2006;

(ii) Interest amortization of the estimated fair value of the warrants (debt discount) issued in connection
with the 7% Subordinated Notes, which aggregated approximately $106,000, and the amortization of
. the related debt placement costs of approximately $12,000;

(iii) Amortization of interest expense of approximately $677,000 associaled with the increasing-rate debt
and interest costs related to the Protection Payment included in the $7.5 Million Note (see Note 11,
“Long-Term Debt,” in the financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report); and

(iv) The write-off of approximately $572,000 of unamortized debt discount and the write-off of approxi-
mately $58,000 of the related debt placement fees in connection with the repayment of the 7%
Subordinated Notes.

These amounts were partially offset in the year ended December 31, 2005 by the realization of the call
option of $500,000 which was recorded as a reduction in interest expense in the year ended
December 31, 2005. \

We recorded the expiration of the Put Option on February 16, 2005 as an additional non-cash gain of
31,750,000 from the change in the estimated fair value of the Put Option in the vear ended December 31,
2005. No such amount was recorded in the year ended December 31, 2006.

The provision for income taxes was approximately $443,000 in the year ended December 31, 2006,
compared to a benefit for income taxes of approximately $(221,000) in the year ended December 31, 2005. In
the year ended December 31, 2006, we provided for current federal income taxes of approximately $23,000,
current foreign income taxes of approximately $89,000 and a deferred income tax expense totaling approxi-
mately $331,000 (approximately $64,000 of which relates to foreign income taxes). In the year ended
December 31, 2005, we provided for current foreign income taxes of approximately $113,000 and a deferred
income tax benefit totaling approximately $(340,000). The Company recorded an adjustment of approximately
$275,000 for prior year under-accrual of deferred taxes related to an intangible impairment in the year ended
December 31, 2006. '

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Working capital as of December 31, 2007, was approximately $13,953,000, compared to approximately
$33,527,000 as of December 31, 2006. Cash balances at December 31, 2006 were approximately $29,608,000,
which was attributable to the receipt of proceeds from the sale on December 8, 2006 of the 5% Convertible
Notes totaling $28,880,000 before payment of offering expenses. In January 2007, the Company deployed the
proceeds from the 5% Convertible Notes to purchase Twincraft. For the year ended December 31, 2007,
accounts receivable increased approximately $4,548,000 and inventory increased $3,823,000, primarily as a
result of the acquisition of Twincraft in January 2007. In addition, current liabilities increased by approxi-
mately $2,360,000 during the year, also as a result of the acquisition of Twincraft,

In January 2008, the Company sold its Langer UK operations, which is reflected as a loss from discontin-
ued operations of approximately $436,000 in 2007, consisting of a loss from operations for the year ended
December 31, 2007 of approximately $267,000 and a loss due to a goodwill impairment of approximately
$176,000. The impairment of approximately $176,000 is based upon the sale price of $1,155,000, less the
basis of assets sold of approximately $742,000 and transaction costs of approximately $126,000 and goodwill
allocated to Langer UK of approximately $463,000.

' :

In the year ended December 31, 2007, we generated a net loss of approximately $4,518,000, which
included a provision for income taxes of approximately $235,000, depreciation of property and equipment and
amortization of identifiable intangible assets of approximately $4,118,000, and amortization debt acquisition
costs, debt discount, and unearned stock compensation of approximately $688,000, and a loss on pension
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settlement of approximately $143,000. Changes in our operating assets and liabilities generated an additional
$1.102,000 in cash. As a result of the above, our net cash provided from operating activities was approxi-
mately $1,533,000. Net cash used in operating activities was approximately $341,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2006, resulting primarily from decreases in accounts receivable, inventory and prepaid
expenses, and an increase in accounts payable and other current liabilities and loss on pension due to settle-
ment.

Net cash used in investing activities was approximately $28,690,000 for the year ended December 31,
2007. Net cash used in investing activities reflects the net cash used for the purchase of Twincraft of approxi-
mately $25,901,000, an addition to the increase in restricted cash held in escrow required for this acquisition
totaling $1,000,000, the payment of acquisition costs of $419,823, and the purchase of property and equip-
ment, net of disposals, of approximately $1,339,000, principally related to purchases of production equipment,
and the purchase of a new consolidation and financial reporting software system. Net cash used in investing
activities was approximately $2,030,000 in the year ended December 31, 2006, which reflects the cash pay-
ment of costs totaling approximately $507,000 associated with acquisitions finalized in January 2007, and
office equipment and leasehold improvements for a new facility in New York City totaling approximately
$1,685,000.

Net cash used in financing activities was approximately $258,000. Net cash used in financing activities in
the year ended December 31, 2007 includes approximately $267,000 in banking and professional fees paid in
connection with the establishment of our Credit Facitity with Wachovia Bank. In the year ended December 31,
2006, we generated cash flows from financing activities of approximately $13,255,000, which represents the
gross proceeds of approximately $46,000 relating to the exercise of stock options and warrants plus
$28,880,000 from the sale of the 5% Convertible Notes less expenses paid through December 31, 2006 of
approximately $1,215,000, less the repayment of approximately $14,439,000 of the 4% Convertible Notes on
August 31, 2006. '

On May 11, 2007, we entered into a $20 million secured revolving credit facility agreement (the “Credit
Facility”) with Wachovia Bank, National Association, expiring on September 30, 2011, which bears interest at
the lender’s prime rate or, at the Company’s election, at 2 percentage poinis above an Adjusted Eurodollar
Rate, as defined. The obligations under the Credit Facility are guaranteed by the Company’s domestic subsid-
iaries and are secured by a first priority security interest in all the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries.
The Credit Facility requires compliance with various covenants including but not limited to a Fixed Charge
Coverage Ratio of not less than 1.0 to 1.0 at all times when excess availability is less than $3 million. As of
December 31, 2007, the Company has not made any draws on the Credit Facility and has approximately
$5.9 million available under the Credit Facility. Availability under the Credit Facility is reduced by 40% of the
outstanding letters of credit related to the purchase of eligible inventory, as defined, and 100% of all other
outstanding letters of credit. At December 31, 2007, the Company had outstanding letters of credit related to
the purchase of eligible inventory of approximately $87,000, and other outstanding letters of credit of approxi-
mately $571,000.

Our 2008 plan for capital investments is to approve additions to property and equipment as the need may
arise to support growth of revenues and provide for needed equipment replacement.

We believe that, based upon current levels of operations and anticipated growth, cash to be generated
from operations, together with other available sources of liquidity, including borrowings available under our
new Credit Facility, will be sufficient for the next twelve months to fund anticipated capital expenditures and
make the required payments of interest on the 5% Convertible Notes. There can be no assurance, however,
that our business will generate cash flow from operations sufficient 1o enable us to fund our liquidity needs. In
addition, to continue our growth strategy which contemplates making additional acquisitions, we may need to
raise additiona! funds for this purpose. In such event, we would likely need to raise additional funds through
banks or other institutional lenders or debt financings, or through public or private equity offerings. We cannot
assure you that any such funds will be available to us on favorable terms, or at all.

Changes in Significant Balance Sheet Accounts — December 31, 2007

Accounts receivable, net, increased from approximately $4,216,000 at December 31, 2006 to approxi-
mately $8,764,000 at December 31, 2007, an increase of approximately $4,474,000. The net accounts
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receivable of Twincraft and Regal at December 31, 2007 were approximately $3,730,000 and $1,009,000,
respectively, ‘which is the primary reascen for the increase. The allowance for doubtful accounts and returns
and allowances increased by approximately $928,000 over the year ended December 31, 2007, which corre-
lates with the increase in overall receivables outstanding.

Inventories, net, increased from approximately $2,858,000 at December 31, 2006 to approximately
$6,680,000 at December 31, 2007, an increase of approximately $3,822,000. The net inventories of Twincraft
and Regal at December 31, 2007 were approximately $3,852,000 and $60,000, respectively, which is the
primary reason for the increase.

Assets held for sale of approximately $1,502,000, along with liabilities related to assets held for sale of
approximately $472,000, represent the assets and liabilities of L.anger UK, which were sold in January 2008.

Property and equipment, net, increased from approximately $8,042,000 at December 31, 2006 to approxi-
mately $14,593,000 at December 31, 2007, an increase of approximately $6,551,000. This increase is due to
the addition of assets acquired from Twincraft and Regal of approximatety $7,722,000 and $25,000 respec-
tively, purchases of new property and equipment during the year of approximately $1,522.000, and
depreciation expense during the year of $2,801,000. Included in depreciation expense is $115,886, which
represents the additional expense associated with the acceleration of the term of the depreciation of leasehold
improvements on our 41 Madison Avenue, New York City corporate headquarters and sales office. Manage-
ment anticipates that we will vacate the premises in May 2008 and find new, smaller and lower cost office
space.

Identifiable intangible assets, net, increased from approximately $5,961,000 at December 31, 2006 to
approximately $14,458,000 at December 31, 2007, an increase of approximately $8,497,000. This increase is
attributable to the addition of approximately $7,215,000 related to the Twincraft repeat customer base and
approximately $2,629,000 of trade names used by Twincraft, less amortization of intangible assets in the year
ended December 31, 2007 of approximately $1,347,000.

Goodwill increased from approximately $14,119,000 at December 31, 2006 to approximately $21,956,000
at December 31, 2007, an increase of approximately $7,837,000. The increases were as a result of the acquisi-
tions of Twincraft with associated goodwill of $7,022,000 and Regal with associated goodwill of $1,278,000,
which is offset by the approximately $463,000 decrease in goodwill associated with Langer UK’s disposed
operations.

Accounts payable increased from approximately $1;106,000 at December 31, 2006 to approximately
$3,149,000 at December 31, 2007, an increase of $2,043,000. This increase is attributable to the additions to
accounts payable from our newly-acquired subsidiaries, Twincraft and Regal, who had accounts payable at
December 31, 2007 of approximately $1,880,000 and $178,000, respectively.

Changes in Significant Balance Sheet Accounts — December 31, 2006

Accounts receivable, net, decreased from approximately $4,690,000 at December 31, 2005, to approxi-
mately $4,216,000 at December 31, 2006, a decrease of approximately $474,000. The decrease is primarily
attributable to a decrease in accounts receivable relating to our custom orthotics business of approximately
$482,000, along with a net increase in our allowance for doubtful accounts of approximately $41,000.

Inventories, net, decreased from approximately $3,738,000 at December 31, 2005, to approximately
$2,858,000 at December 31, 2006, a decrease of approximately $880,000, which was attributable partially to
the net increase in the reserve for excess or obsolete inventory from approximately $564,000 at December 31,
2005 to approximately $885,000 at December 31, 2006 and partly to our focus to reduce certain excess inven-
tory levels, principally in the distributed products group of our medical products segment. '

Prepaid expenses and other current assets increased from approximately $778,000 at December 31, 2005,
to approximately $816,000 at December 31, 2006, an increase of approximately $38,000. The increase was
primarily attributable to increases in prepaid insurance, which was partially offset by ‘decreases in prepaid
medical premiums, prepaid convention expenses and prepaid supplies due to the establishment of certain cost
containment initiatives, and the write-off of certain assets.
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Property and equipment, net, increased from approximately $6,857,000 at December 31, 2005, to
approximately $8,042,000 at December 31, 2006, an increase of approximately $1,185,000. The change was
primarily attributable to the investment in property and equipment of approximately $2,360,000, offset by
depreciation expense of approximately $1,147,000 in the year ended December 31, 2006. The increase is
priman'ly attributable to the leasehold improvements and furnishings made to the new New York City lease
office space totaling approximately $1,685,000, plus other additions of approximately $675,000.

Identifiable intangible assets, net, decreased from approximately $6,604,000 at December 31, 2005, to
approximately $5,961,000 at December 31, 2006, a decrease of approximately $643,000, of which was attrib-
utable to amortization expense recorded for the year ended December 31, 2006,

Other assets increased from approximately $460,000 at December 31, 2005, to approximately $1,989,000
at December 31, 2006, an increase of approximately $1,529.000. The increase was contributed principally by
a net increase in deferred costs of approximately $1,734,000, offset by the amortization of debt acquisition
costs of approximately $144,000, and the decrease of approximately $61,000 due to the write-off of certain
assets.

Goodwill was approximately $13,656,000 at both December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2006, which
excludes approximately $463,000 of goodwill attributable to Langer UK, which is classified as assets held for
sale.

Accounts payable increased from approximately $970,000 at December 31, 2005, to approximately
$1,106,000 at December 31, 2006, an increase of approximately $136,000, which was consistent with our
level of operation.

Other current liabilities decreased from approximately $3,395,000 at December 31, 2005, to approxi-
mately $3,212,000 at December 31, 2006, a decrease of approximately $183,000. The change was primarily
attributable to decreases in accrued professional fees of approximately $396,000, accrued severance of
approximately $219,000, accrued bonuses of approximately $126,000, and accrued interest with respect to our
capital lease of approximately $104,000. These decreases were partially offset by increases in certain accrued
liabilities such as accrued acquisition costs of approximately $473,000 relating to our acquisitions finalized in
January 2007, and costs relating to the loss on abandonment of certain New York City office space of approxi-
mately $200,000. ’

Deferred income taxes payable increased by approximately $362,000, from approximately $1,309,000 at
December 31, 2005, to approximately $1,671,000 at December 31, 2006. The increase was primarily attribut-
able to the income tax effect of the amortization deducted for income tax purposes related to goodwill and
trade names, which are not amortizable for financial reporting purposes,
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Contractual Obligations

Certain of our facilities and equipment are leased under noncancelable operating and capital leases.
Additionally, as discussed below, we have certain long-term and short-term indebtedness. The following is a
schedule, by fiscal year, of future minimum rental payments required under current operating and capital
leases and debt repayment requirements as of December 31, 2007 measured from the end of our current fiscal
year (December 31):

Paymen_ts Due by Period (In Thousands)

Less Than ) More Than
Contractual Obligations Total Year 1 -3 Years 4 - 5 Years 5 Years
Operating Lease
Obligations . ...... . £10,941 $2,009 $3,192 $ 2,409 33,331
Capital Lease Obligations 5,147 432 897 948 2,870
Interest on Long-term
C o Debt ..., 6,427 1455 ° 4,351 621 —
5% Convertible Notes due
December 7, 2011 . . .. 28,880 —_ — 28,880 —
Note Payable to Landlord 149 36 86 27 —
Severance Obligations . . . 10 10 — — —
Total ............. $51,554 33,942 $8.526 $32,885 $6,201

Long-Term Debt

On December &, 2006, the Company entered into a note purchase agreement for the sale of $28,880,000
of 5% convertible subordinated notes due December 7, 2011 (the “5% Convertible Notes™). The 5% Convert-
ible Notes are not registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The shares of the Company’s
common stock acquirable upon conversion of the 5% Convertible Notes, which may include additional num-
ber of shares of common stock as may be issuable on account of adjustments of the conversion price under
the 5% Convertible Notes. The Company filed a registration statement with respect to the shares acquirable on
conversion of the 5% Convertible Notes (the “Underlying Shares™) and has filed Amendment No. 1 of the
registration statement on November 19, 2007. The Company has received a comment letter from the Securities
and Exchange Commission dated December 18, 2007, and expects to file Amendment No. 2 thereof in
April 2008.

The 5% Convertible Notes bear interest at the rate of 5% per arinum, payable in cash semiannually on
June 30 and December 3t of each year, commencing June 30, 2007. For the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2006 the Company recorded interest expense related to the 5% Convertible Notes of approximately
$1,443,000 and $97,000, respectively. Subject to the agreements of certain holders of the 5% Convertible
Notes described at the end of this paragraph, at the date of issuance, the 5% Convertible Notes were convert-
ible at the rate of $4.75 per share, subject 10 certain reset provisions. At the original conversion price at
December 31, 2006, the number of Underlying Shares was 6,080.000. Since the conversion price was above
the market price on the date of issuance and there were no warrants attached, there was no beneficial conver-
sion. Subsequent to December 31, 2006, on January &, 2007 and January 23, 2007, in cenjunction with
common stock issuances related to two acquisitions, the conversion price was adjusted to $4.6706, and the
number of Underlying Shares was thereby increased to 6,183,359, pursuant to the anti-ditution provisions
applicabie to the 5% Convertible Notes, On May 15, 2007, as a result of the issuance of an additional
68,981 shares of common stock to the Twincraft sellers on account of upward adjustments to the Twincraft
purchase price, and the surrender to the Company of 45,684 shares of common stock on account of downward
adjustments in the Regal purchase price, the conversion price under the 5% Convertible Notes was reduced to
$4.6617, and the number of Underlying Shares was increased to 6,195,165 shares. This resulted in a debt
discouni of $476,873, which is amortized over the term of the 5% Convertible Notes and is recorded as
interest expense in the consolidated statements of operations. The charge to interest expense relating to the
debt discount for the years ended December 31, 2007 was approximately $86,000,

52




The principal of the 5% Convertible Notes is due on December-7, 2011, subject to the earlier call of the
5% Convertible Notes by the Company, as follows: (i) the 5% Convertible Notes may not be called prior to
December 7, 2007, (ii} from December 7, 2007, through December 7, 2009, the 5% Convertible Notes may be
called and redeemed for cash, in the amount of 105% of the principal amount of the 5% Convertible Notes
(plus accrued but unpaid interest, if any, through the call date); (iii) after December 7, 2009, the 5% Convert-
ible Notes may be called and redeemed for cash in the amount of 100% of the principal amount of the 5%
Convertible Notes (plus accrued but unpaid interest, if any, through the call date; and (iv) at any time after
December 7, 2007, if the closing price of the Commen Stock of the Company on the NASDAQ Stock Market
(or any other exchange on which the Company’s common stock is then traded or quoted)} has been equal to or
greater than $7.00 per share for 20 of the preceding 30 trading days immediately prior to the Company’s
issuing a call notice, then the 5% Convertible Notes shall be mandatorily converted into Common Stock at the
conversion price then applicable. The Company has obtained agreements from holders of approximately
$24,000,000 in principal amount of the 5% Convertible Notes not to convert their notes prior to the approval
by the stockholders of the issuance of the common stock issuable upon conversion of the notes. The Company
had a Special Meeting of Stockholders on April 19, 2007, to obtain such approval, and holders of approxi-
mately 50% of the Company’s common stock agreed to vote in favor of such approval at any meeting of
stockholders held prior to July L, 2007

In the event of a default on the 5% Convertible Notes, the due date of the 5% Convertible Notes may be
accelerated if demanded by holders of at least 40% of the 5% Convertible Notes, subject to a waiver by
holders of 51% of the 5% Convertible Notes if the Company pays all arrearages of interest on the 5% Con-
vertible Notes. Events of default are defined to inctude change in control of the Company.

The payment of interest and principal of the 5% Convertible Notes is subordinate to the Company’s
presently existing capital lease obligations, in the amount of $2,700,000 as of December 31, 2007. The 5%
Convertible Notes would also be subordinated to any additional debt which the Company may incur hereafter
for borrowed money, or under additional capital lease obligations, obhgatlons under letters of credit, bankers’
acceptances or simtlar credit transaétions.

In connection with the sale of the 5% Convertible Notes, the Company paid a commission of $1,338,018
based on a rate of 4% of the amount of 5% Convertible Notes sold, excluding the 5% Convertible Notes sold
to members of the Board of Directors and their affiliates, tc Wm Smith & Co., who served as placement agent
in the sale of the 5% Convertible Notes. The total cost of raising these proceeds was $1,338,018, which will
be amortized through December 7, 2011, the due date for the payment on the 5% Convertible Notes. The
amertization of these costs for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $262,700.

On Octaber 31, 2001, the Company completed the sale in a private placement, of $14,589,000 principal
amount of its 4% convertible subordinated notes due and paid in full, ptus accrued interest, on’ August 31,
2006. The amertization of acquisition costs associated with these notes for the year ended December 31, 2006
was $127,853, and was included in interest expense in the consolidated statements of operations. Interest
expense on the 4% Convertible Notes for the year ended’ December 31, 2006 was $385,040. The notes were
paid in full on the due date, August 31, 2006.

In June 2006,.the Company elected, pursuant to its option under the lease of space at 41 Madison
Avenue, New York, N.Y,, to finance $202,320 of leasehold improvements by delivery of a note payable to the
landlord (the “Note”). The Note, which matures in July 2011, provides for interest at a rate of 7% per annum
and 60 monthly installments of principal and interest totaling $4,006, commencing August 2006, The Note is
secured by a $202,320 increase to an unsecured letter of credit originally provided to the landlord at lease
commencement. The amount of the revised unsecured letter of credit is $570,992. The current portion of the
Note, $35.541, is included in other current liabilities, including current installments of note payable, and the
non-current portion of the Note of $113,309 at- December 31, 2007.

Seascnality

Revenue derived from our sales_of orthotic devu:es in North America has hlstoncal]y been significantly
higher in the warmer months of the year. Other factors which can result in quarterly variations include the
timing and amount of new business generated by us, the timing of new product introductions, our revenue
mix, the timing of additional selling, general and administrative expenses to support the anticipated growth
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and development of new business units and the competitive and fluctuating economic conditions in the medi-
cal products, personal care, and durable medical goods industries.

Inflation

We have in the past been able to increase the prices of our products or reduce overhead costs sufficiently
to offset the effects of inflation on wages, materials and other expenses, and anticipate that we will be able to
continue to do so in the future.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

On September 15, 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years.
SFAS No. 157 provides guidance related to estimating fair value and requires expanded disciosures. The
standard applies whenever other standards require {or permit) assets or liabilities to be measured at fair vatue.
The standard does not expand the use of fair value in any new circumstances. In February 2008, the FASB
provided a one year deferral for the implementation of SFAS No. 157 for non-financial assets and liabilities
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a non-recurring basis. The Company is
evaluating SFAS No. 157 and its impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements, but it is not
expected to have a 51gn|ﬁcant impact.

On February 22, 2007, the FASB: issued SFAS No. 159, *“The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities.”” This statement gives entities the option to carry most financial assets and liabilities at
fair value, with changes in fair value recorded in earnings. This statement, which will be effective in the first
quarter fiscal 2009, is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial posi-
tion or results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), “Business Combinations”™
{“SFAS No. 141 (R)"). which requires an acquirer to recognize the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed,
and any noncontrolling interest of an acquiree at the acquisition date, measured at their fair values as of that
date, with limited exceptions. SFAS No.141 (R) applies prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after Decem-
ber 15, 2008. Earlier application is prohibited. We anticipate this will have a material effect on future
acquisitions upon adoption.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements,” which requires {1) ownership interests in subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent to be
clearly identified, labeled, and presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within equity, but
separate from the parent’s equity; (2) the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to
the non-controlling interest be clearly identified and presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
income; and (3) changes in a parent’s ownership interest while the parent retains its controlling financial
interest in its subsidiary be accounted for consistently as equity transactions. SFAS No. 160 applies prospec-
tively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Earlier application is prohibiied. The adoption of
SFAS No. 160 is not expected to have a material impact on our results of operations or our financial position.

Unaudited Quartérly Financial Data

Set forth below is certain unaudited quarterly financial data for each of the last eight quarters, and such
data expressed as a percentage of our revenue for the respective quarters. The information has been derived
from unaudited financial statements thar, in the opinion of management, include all adjustments {consisting
only of normal recurring adjustments) necessary to faitrly present such quarterly information in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. The operations of Langer UK, Limited have been classified as
discontinued operations in our consolidated financial statements. As a result, the information reported below
may be different than amounts reported previously. The operating results for any quarter are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be expected for any future period.
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Grossprofit .. .......... '

Selling expenses . . .°. . .. ...
General and administrative
EXPEMSES . . . . . . v
Research and development
EXPENnsSEs . . . L. ... e
Operating (loss) income
Other Income (Expense)
Interest income . . . .. ....
Interest expense .-. . .., . ..
Other income (expense) . . . .
Other expense, net . . . . ...
Loss from continuing
operations before income taxes
(Provision for} benefit from
income taxes . . ... .....
Loss from continuing
operations . . . .........
Discontinued operations:
(Loss) from operations of
discontinued
subsidiary . . . . ... .. ..
Income tax benefit
(provision} . . ... .....
Loss from discontinued opera-
tons . . ... ... 0.
Netloss ... ...........

Net loss per share:
Basic and diluted:

Loss from continuing
operations . ., ......

Loss from discontinued
operations . . . . . e
Basic and diluted loss per

share . . .. ... .. ..
Netsales . ... ..........
Costofsales . . . .........
Grossprofit . . ..........
Selling expenses . . .. ......
General and administrative
EXPENSES . . . .. ... ...
Research and development
EXPENSES . . . . ... a e ...
Provision for impairment of
identifiable intangible assets. . .
Operating (loss) income . . .
Other Income (Expense)

Interest income . . . . .. ..

Interest expense . . . . ...

Other income
{expense) . . .. ... ...

Other expense, net . . . . . .

Loss from continuing
operations before income taxes
(Provision for) benefit from
income taxes . ... ... ...
Net toss from continuing opera-
tons . ... ... L.
Discontinued operations:

Income (loss) from opera-
tions of discontinued
subsidiary . .. ......

Income tax benefit {provi-
sion) ... ...

Loss from discontinued
operations . . ... ....

Netloss . .............

Mar. 31, - June 30, Sep. 30, Dec. 31, - Mar. 31, June 30, Sep. 30, Dec. 31,
2006 2006 2006 2006 2007 2007 2007 2007
' (In Thousands, Except per Share Data)
$ 7,787 38,541 $8,373 $ 7,998 $14,321 $16,598 $16,611 $15,383
4,923 4,921 4,862 5,350 . 9.030 10,817 10,384 10,292
2,864 3,620 3,511 2,648 5,291 5,781 6,227 5,091
1,741 1,573 1,443 1,278 2,098 2,468 2,476 2376
,2,185 2,206 2,321 3,013 3,244 3,394 3.689 3,739
123 142 152 111 197 211 224 208
(L,185) (30D (405) (1,754) (248) (292) (162) (1,232)
159 211 151 108 132 73 22 30
(303) Q7D 217 (147 (526) (548) (556) (556)
(8) 28 3 (26) €} {11} 4 36
(152) (38) (63) (635) (401} (486) (530) (490)
(1,337) (339) (468) (1,819) {649) (778) (692) (1,722}
() (6) 21 (510) (63) (44) (102) (24)
(1,344 (345} (447 (2,329 (712) _(822) (794) {1.746)
(81) (136) (106) (121} (72) (28) (43) 301
(0 57
{82) (136) (106} (64) (72) (28) (43) (3013
$(1,426) 3 (48 $ (553 $(2,393) 3 (784) 5 (850) 3 (83D $ 2047
$ (0.14) $(0.03) $(0.04) $ (0.23). $ (0.06) $ (0,07 < § (007 $ (0.15)
{0.01) (0.01} (0.01) 0.01) {0.01) {0.00} {0.00) (0.03)
3 0.15 $(0.04) $(0.05) 3 g0'.24) 3 56.07) 3 007D $. {0.07) 3 0.18)
100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
63.2 57.6 58.1 60.9 63.1 65.2 62.5 66.9
368 424 419 33.1 369 34.8 37.5 33.1
24 18.4 17.2 16.0 14.6 14.9 14,9 15.4
29.1 26.8 287 387 232 . 21.0 2217 24,9
1.6 1.7 1.8 14 1.4 1.3 1.3 14
(15.3) _(3.5) (4._8) (22.0) (13 (I._S) (0.9) (8.0}
2.0 2.5 1.3 i4 09 0.4 IO.I 0.2
(3.9 (3.2} (2.6) (1.8) (3.7 3.3) 3.3 3.6)
0.1 0.3 0.0 (0.3) (0.0 .0 0.0 0.2
(2.0} {0.4) (0.8) 0.7) (2.8) (3.0 (3.2} (3.2)
(17.3) (3.9) (3.6) (220 (4.6) (4.8) {4.1) (11.2)
(0.1) (0.1) (0.3) (6.4) (0.4} (0.3) (0.6) (0.2)
{17.4) (4.0} {5.3) (29.1) 3.0 (5.1} 4.7 {11.4)
1.0y (1.6) (1.3) (1.5) (0.5) (0.2) (0.3) (1.9
(0.0) — — 0.7 — — — —
(i.1} (1.6) (1.3) 0.8 (0.5) 0.2) (0.3} (1.9
(18.3)% (5.00% (6.6)% (29.9% (3.5)% (5.)% 5.00% (13.3)%
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(1) Included in the operating results for the quarter ended December.31,.2006 were:
(2) an additional provision for inventory obsolescence of approximately $286,000;
(b) a pension settlement loss of approximately $397,000;
(c) the loss on abandonment of certain New York City office space of approximately $112,000; and
(d) a provision for income taxes of approximately $437,000.
(2) Included in the discontinued operations for the quarter ended December 31, 2007 were:
(a) an accrual for the loss on the sale of Langer UK of approximately $176,000.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The following discussion about our market risk involves forward-looking statements. Actual results could
differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements.

In general, business enterprises can be exposed to market risks, including fluctuation in commodity and
raw materials prices, foreign currency exchange rates, and interest rates that can adversely affect the cost and
results of operating, investing, and financing activities. In seeking to minimize the risks and/or costs associ-
ated with such activities, the Company manages exposure to changes in commodities and raw material prices,
interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates through its regular operating and financing activities. The
Company does not utilize financial instruments for trading or other speculative purposes, nor does the Com-
pany utilize leveraged financial instruments or other derivatives.

The Company’s exposure to market rate risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Compa-
ny’s short-term monetary investments. There is a market rate risk for changes in interest rates earned on
short-term money market instruments. There is inherent rollover risk in the short-term money market instru-
ment$ as they mature and are renewed at current market rates. The extent of this risk is not quantifiable or
predictable because of the variability of future interest rates and business financing requirements. However,
there is no risk of loss of principal in the short-term money market instruments, only a risk related to a poten-
tial reduction in future interest income. Derivative instruments are not presently used to adjust the Company’s
interest rate risk profile.

The majority of the Company’s business is denominated in United States dollars. There are costs associ-
ated with the Company’s operations in foreign countries, primarily the United Kingdom and Canada, which
require payments in the local currency, and payments received from customers for goods sold in these coun-
tries are typically in the local currency. The Company partially manages its foreign currency risk related to
those payments by maintaining operating accounts in these foreign countries and by having customers pay the
Company in those same currencies. '

v
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Langer, Inc. '
Deer Park, New York .

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Langer, Inc. and Subsidiaries {the
“Company”’) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stock-
holders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007. We have
also audited the schedule in connection with our audits of the financial statements, listed in the accompanying
Index at Item 15. These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s manage-
ment. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur-
ance about whether the financial statements and schedule are free of material misstatement. The Company is
not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting.
Qur audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements and schedule, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overal} presentation of the financial statements and schedule. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Langer, Inc. and Subsidiaries at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2007, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1(p) to the consolidated financial statements, in 2006, the Company changed their
method of accounting for stock-based compensation in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.”

Also, in our opinion, the schedule when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial state-
ments taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

(Signed BDO Seidman, LLP)

Melville, New York
March 28, 2008
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LANGER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents. . .. . ..., ........ .. ....... P
Restricted cash — escrow . ... ..... [
Accounts receivable, net of allowances for doubtful accounts and returns
and allowances aggregating $1,048,837 and $539,321, respectively . . .
Inventories, et . . . . .. ..t e e e e e
Assets held forsale ... ......... e
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . ... ..........c.onvun..
Total current assets .. . .. ... .. e
Property and equipment, net . . . .. .. e e e
Identifiable intangible assets, met . . .. .. ... ... ... .. ... ... ... ...
Goodwill . ... e

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities; '
Accounts payable . ... . ... ... ..
Liabilities related to assets held forsale .......... .. e
Other current liabilities, including current installment of note payable . . .

Uncarned revenue .. ............. ... iuiii i .

Total current liabilities
Long-terﬁl debt: . "
5% Convertible Notes, net of debt discount of $390,771 at
December 31, 2007 . .. ... . e
Notes payable . . . .. ... . . . e
Obligation under Capital lease . .. :. .. ... ... .. ... ............
Unearned revenue . . . ... ......... e e e
Deferred income taxes payable . . . ...... ... .. ... ... .. ... ... ..
Other liabilities '

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $1.00 par value; authorized 250,000 shares; no shares
IssUed . L e e e e

Common stock, $.02 par value; authorized 50,000,000 shares; issued
11,588,512 and 10,156,673 respectively

Additional paid in capital

Accumulated deficit

Treasury stock at cost, 84,300 shares . . . .......... ... ... . ... ...,
Total stockholders’ equity . .. ... ... ... . ... ... ...
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

December 31,
2007

December 31,
006

$ 2422453

$ 29.608,479

1,000,000 —
8,764,401 4,216,016
6,680,353 2,857,570
1,501,717 1,241,368
1,156,333 815,513

21,525,257 38,738,946

14,592,616 8,041:808

14,457,669 5,960,590

21,956.430 14,119,213
1,158,697 1,988,913

$ 73,690,669

$ 68.849,470

$ 3,148921

$ 1,105,509

472318 501,907
3,614,462 3,212,415
336,232 " 392,215
7,571,933 5,212,046
28,489,229 28,880,000

113,309 151,970
2,700,000 2,700,000

83,682 - 100,438
1,801,653 1,670,529
1,043,288 1,117,623
41,803,094 . 39,832,606

231,771 203,134
53,800.139 46,951,501
(22,713,086)  (18,195,109)

765,392 253,979
32,084,216 29,213,505
(196,641) (196,641)
31,887,575 29,016,864

$ 73,690,669

$ 68,849,470

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LANGER, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Netsales . ..ot e e e e $62,912,298 $32,699,304 $37,403,853
Costofsales .......... .. i, 40,523,793 20,055,605 20,489,589
Grossprofit . ....... ... . 22,388,505 12,643,699 16,914,264
General and administrative expenses . . .. .......... 14,000,476 9,726,270 11,498,704
Selling eXpenses ... ... ... ... ouieiirrann.n 9,418,661 6,035,326 7,079,229
Research and development expenses . .. ........... 837,934 528,421 469,971
Provision for impairment of identifiable intangible assets — — 2,102,000
Operating loss . ..... ... ... .. (1,934,566} (3,646,318) {4,235,640)
Other expense, net:
Interest iNCOME . . . . . vt i et et e e e e 257,964 629,409 441,517
Interest XPense . . ... ... ..t in (2,186,100) (943,629) (2,689,638)
Change in fair value of Put Option . ............ _ — 1,750,000
Other .. ... e 22,329 (3,731) 52,875
Other expense, net .. ... .......... ..., (1,905,807) (317,951) {445,246)
Loss from continuing operations before income
BAKES & v v vt e e (3,840,373) (3,964,269) (4,680,386)
(Provision for) benefit from income taxes (Note 17} . .. (234,771) (502,356} 227,391
Loss from continuing operations .. ........... (4,075,144} (4,466,605) (4,453,495)
Discontinued Operations:
Loss from operations of discontinued subsidiary
(including goodwill impairment of $175,558) (442,833) (443,127) (77,542)
{Provision for) benefit from income taxes .......... — 56,303 (26,231)
Loss from discontinued operations . .............. (442,833) (386,824) (103,773)
Net LSS . oo i i oo e e $.4.517.977) $(4,853,489) $(4,557,268)
Net Loss per common share:
Basic and diluted:
Loss from continuing operations . ..........., $ (0.36) $ (0.45) $ (0.61)
Loss from discentinued operations . . .......... (0.04) (0.04) (0.02)
Basic and diluted loss per share ... ......... 3 (040 $ (0.49) $ (0.63)
Weighted average number of common shares used in
computation of net (loss) per share:
Basicand diluted ... ....... ... .. .. .. ... .. 11,484,486 9,977,972 7,277,240

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LANGER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31,

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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. 007 2006 2008
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Netloss ... e $ (4,517,977) $(4,853,489) $(4,557,268)
Loss from discontinued operations . .. ............. 442 833 386,824 103,773
Loss from continuing operations . . . .. ............. (4,075,144) (4,466,665) (4,453,495)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss from continuing opera-
tions to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:
Depreciation of property and equipment and .
amortization of identifiable intangible assets .. ... .. 4,118,038 1,758,780 1,620,763
Gain on sale of property and equipment . .......... — (1,348) (10,402)
Loss on abandonment of property and equipment . . . . . 28,193 8,046 —
Provision for impairment of identifiable intangible assets — — 2,102,000
Change in fair value of Put Option . .. ........... — — (1,750,000)
Amortization of debt acquisitioncosts . . ... .. ... .. 320,283 144,185 262,940
Amortization of debt discount . . ... ... ... .. .. 86,102 — 678,502
Amortization of unearned stock compensation . . . . . . . — — 742,083
Compensation expense for options issued for services
and option modification .. .................. — — 2,302,613
Loss on plan termination . . ... ... ... ... ... . ... 143,471 — —
Loss on pension settlement ... ... ... L L. — 407,154 —
Stock-based compensation expense .. ... .. ....... 281,660 186,322 _—
Provision for doubtful accounts receivable . ... ... ... 1,357,545 223,168 151,066
Deferred income tax (benefit) provision .. ......... 131,124 307.673 (312,818)
Issuance of stock for services . ... ........ ... ... - — 5,000
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of
acquisitions:
Accounts receivable . . ... ... L. e (1,382,955 311,560 - 1,672,015
Inventories . ... .. e 483,640 927,018 708,465
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .. ........ (77,169) 223,725 91,920
Otherassets .. ......... .. ... ... . ....0.... 777,426 126,021 . 167,512
Accounts payable and other current liabilities , . ;.. ... (262,372) - 315,078 134
Unearned revenue and other liabilities .. ... ....... (17,138 (497,301) (141,288)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities of
continuing operalions . . .. ... ... ... ... .. .. 1,758,704 (26,584) 3,837,010
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities of
discontinued operations . . . ..............,. (226,194} (314.224) 30,145
Net cash provided by operating activities . . ... ..., 1,532,510 {340,808) 3,867,155
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment .. ... .. 1,000 2,270 70,000
Purchase of property and equipment . . . ..., ..... . (1,339,989} (1,492,469) (970,071)
Increase in restricted cash—escrow . ............. (1,000,000) — —
Deferred acquisitioncosts . ................... {419,823) (506,526) —
Deposits . ........ .. . .. ... — — (130,973)
Purchase of businesses, net of cash acquired . ....... (25,901,387) — (1,277,194)
Net cash used in investing activities for continuing
Operations . .. ... ...t (28,660,199) (1,996,725) (2,308,240)
Net cash used in investing activities of
discontinued operations . . . . ............... (29,836) (33,072) (19,810}
Net cash used in investing activities . ... ........ (28,690,035) (2,029,797) (2,328,050)




LANGER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - (continued)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of debt .. . ........ . ... ..
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options . . ... .. ..
Proceeds from the exercise of warrants . .. .........
Repaymemt of convertible notes .. ... ... ... . ...
Deferred financing costs . ... .. ... .
Repayment of note payable . ..................
Sale of stock in public offering . ... .............
Repayment of promissory notes . . ............. .
Repayment of senior subordinated notes payable . . . . ..
Offering expense paid, including sales commission . . . .
Cash paid to settle withholding obligation ... .......
Net cash provided by financing activities of
continuing operations .. . ... ... ... ...
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities of
discontinued operations . . . .. ... ... ... ...
Net cash provided by {used in} financing activities . . .
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash . ... ........
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . . .
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year,
including $158,518, $99,847, and $58,671, reported
under assets held for sale in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. . ... . .. .. ... .
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year, including
$158,518, and $99,847, reported under assets available
for sale in 2006 and 2005, respectively. . ..........
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid during the period for: :
N 5

Income taxes .. .............. [
Supplemental Disclosures of Non Cash Investing Activities:
Issuance of stock related to acquisition of Regal . . . . ..
Tssuance of stock related to acquisition of Twincraft. . . .

Certain capitalized acquisition costs are unpaid and in
accrued liabilities .. ........... ... . ...

Reduction in purchase price of business acquired
satisfied by the reduction of the principal balance of
the $7.5 Million Note . . .. ...... ... .. .....

Supplemental Disclosures of Non Cash Financing Activi-
Lies:

Leaseheld improvement funded by landlord accounted

for as deferred credit . . ...... ... ... ... ...

Issuance of note payable to fund leasehold improve-
MEMS . o o ot e e et e e

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities relating to
property and equipment . ... ...

Conversion of Convertible Note to common stock, net

Increase in accounts payable relating to expenses of
public offering . . ...... .. ... .. L

Stock returned to treasury from stock award to satisfy
withholding obligation . ..................

Discountondebt . ...... ... ... ... ...

For the Years Ended December 31,

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2007 2006 2005
— 28,880,000 —
45,750 45,750 167,750
— 700 500
—_— (14,439,000) —
(267,492) (1,215,082) —
(36,265) (17,205) —
— — 33,975,429
— — (10,491,000)
—_ — (5,500,000)
— — (4,665,383)
— — (81,184)
(258,007) 13,255,163 13,406,112
(258,007} 13.255.163 13,406,112
70,988 53,450 26,077)
(27.344,544) 10,938,008 14,919,140
29,766,997 18,828,989 3,909.849
§ 2422453  $ 29,766,997 $ 18,828,989
$ 1876744  $ 761786 $ 1959481
$ 67932 $ 59983 $ 100,669
B 1.371,949
_$ 4,700,766
$ 419,823
$ 232,000
3 606,960
$ 202,320
$ 1845800 $ 33,056 $ 7,887
$ 147615
$ 8,303
$ 81,184
$ 476,873




LANGER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a} Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Langer, Inc. and its subsid-
iaries (the “Company” or ‘“‘Langer”). All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets,” the assets and liabilities relating to Langer (UK) Limited (‘Langer UK™) have been
reclassified as held for sale in the Consolidated Balance Sheets for all periods presented and the results of
operations of Langer UK for the current and prior periods have been reported as discontinued operations. The
Company sold the capital stock of Langer UK to a third party on January 18, 2008. We classify as discontin-
ued operations for all periods presented any component of our business that we believe is probable of being
sold or has been sold that has operations and cash flows that are clearly distinguishable operationally and for
financial reporting purposes. For those components, we have no significant continuing invelvement after
disposal, and their operations and cash flows are eliminated from our ongoing operations. Sales of significant
components of our business not classified as discontinued operations are reported as a component of income
from continuing operations. :

(b) Description of the Business

The Company specializes in the designing, manufacturing, distributing and marketing of high quality foot
and gait-related biomechanical products. Through its wholly owned subsidiaries, Silipos, Inc. and Twincraft,
Inc., the Company offers a diverse line of bar soap and other skincare products for the private label retail,
medical and therapeutic markets. In addition, the Company maintains a diversified range of products that is
comprised of (i) custom orthotic devices ordered by healthcare professionals, and (ii) pre-fabricated orthopedic
rehabilitation and recovery devices, targeting the long-term care, orthopedic, orthotic and prosthetic markets.
Another wholly owned subsidiary, Regal, markets and distributes durable medical goods to long-term care
facilities.

.\

(c) Revenué Recognition

Revenue from the sale of the Company’s,products is recognized upon shipment. The Company generally
does not have any post-shipment obligations to customers other than for product warranties. The Company
generally warrants its medical products against defects in materials and workmanship for a peried of six
months. The Company records a provision for estimated future costs associated with its warranties of fabri-
cated products/custom orthotics as warranty reserves upon shipment, based upon historical experience, The
Company offers extended warranty contracts which are recorded as deferred revenue and recognized over the
lives of the contracts (24 months) on a straight-line basis. Revenue from shipping and handling fees is
included in net sales in the consolidated statements of operations. Costs incurred for shipping and handlmg are
included in cost of sales in the consolidated statements of operations. .

(d} Advertising and Promotion Expenses

Advertising and promotion costs are expensed as incurred. Advemsmg and promotion expenses were
approximately $503,000, $988,000 and $1,098,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
respectively.

The Company accounts for sales and incentives which include discounts, coupons, co-operative advertis-
ing and free products or services in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 01-09,
“Accounting for Consideration Given by-a Vendor to a Customer” . Generally, cash consideration is to be
classified as a reduction of net sales, unless specific criteria are met regarding goods ot services that a vendor
may receive in return for this consideration. The Company’s consideration given to customers does not meet
these conditions and, accordingly is classified as a reduction to revenue.
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LANGER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (continued)

(e) Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all short-term, highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents consisting primarily of money market funds.

(f) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method.

(g) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation
and amortization are calculated using the straight-line method. The lives on which depreciation and amortiza-
tion are computed are as follows: '

Building and improvements . . ... .. ... ... 20 years

Office furniture and equipment . .. . ............ ..... 3 - 10 years .

Computer equipment and software. . ... ............. 3 — 10 years

Machinery and equipment . . . ... ..oy 5= 15 years

Leasehold improvements . .. .......... ..., .. 5 = 10 years or term of lease if
_ . shorter

Automobiles . . ... ... e 3 -5 years .

The Company reviews long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If the sum of expected
future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) is.less than the carrying value of the asset, an
impairment loss is recognized. Otherwise, an impairment loss is not recognized, If an impairment loss is
required, the amount of such loss is equal to the excess of the carrying value of the impaired asset over its
fair value.

(h) Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets with Indefinite Lives and Identifiable Intangible Assets with
Definite Lives

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” the Com-
pany no longer amortizes goodwill and identifiable intangible assets with indefinite lives (trade names).
Instead these assets are reviewed fof impairment on an annual basis (October 1). Goodwill is reviewed at the
reporting unit level, using a discounted cash flow approach, and trade names are valued using the relief of
royalty method. Based upon the review of impairment, the Company recorded a provision for impairment of
$1,600,000 in the year ended December 31, 2005 with respect to the Benefoot trademark because the fair
value of the trademark was de minimus based upon management’s determination that it will no longer rely on
or use such trademark in the marketplace. In December 2007 the Company recorded an impairment of
$175,558 related to the allocated portion of goodwill related to Langer UK as a result of the net loss associ-
ated with the sale of Langer UK in January 2008. Such impairment is included in loss from operations of
discontinued subsidiary. No impairment provision for goodwﬂ] was recorded for the year ended
December 31, 2006

The Company has certain identifiable intangible assets with definite lives such as non-compete agree-
ments, license agreements, and customer lists, which are amortized over their useful lives on a straight-line
method or on an accelerated method which appropriately reflects the economic benefit of the related intangible
asset. These intangibles are reviewed for impairment under SFAS No.- 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” For the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company recorded a provision
for impairment of $502,000 with respect to identifiable intangible assets with definite lives in accordance with
SFAS No. 144. The provision was determined based upon expected discounted cash flow and recoverability of
net assets. No impairment provision was recorded for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007.
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LANGER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

(i) Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“*SFAS™) No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are
measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to
reverse.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™} issued Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,” (“FIN 48"), an interpretation of SFAS No. 109. FIN 48
clarifies the accounting for income taxes by prescribing a minimum recognition threshold that a tax position is
required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derec-
ognition, measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and
transition. '

The Company adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. Under FIN 48, tax benefits are recognized only for
tax positions that are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by 1ax authorities, The amount
recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely to be realized
upon uitimate settlement. Unrecognized tax benefits are tax benefits claimed or to be claimed in tax returns
that do not meet these measurement standards. The Company's adoption of FIN 48 did not have a material
effect on the Company’s financial statements, as the Company believes they have no uncertain tax positions,

As permitted by FIN 48, the Company also adopted an accounting policy to prospectively classify
accrued interest and penalties related to any unrecognized tax benefits in its income tax provision. Previously,
the Company’s policy was to classify interest and penalties as an operating expense in arriving at pre-tax
income. At December 31, 2007, the Company does not have accrued interest and penalties related to any
unrecognized tax benefits, The years subject to potential audit vary depending on the tax jurisdiction.
Generally, the Company’s statutes of limitation for tax liabilities are open for tax years ended December 31,
2003 and forward. The Company’s major taxing jurisdictions include the United States, Canada, and the
United Kingdom. Within the United States, Vermont, Pennsylvania and New York could give rise to
significant tax liabilities.

(i} Net Income (Loss} per Share

Basic income (loss) per share is based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during the period. Diluted income (loss) per share is based on the weighted average number of
shares of common stock and common stock equivalents (options, warrants, stock awards and convertible
subordinated notes) outstanding during the period, except where the effect would be antidilutive.

(k) Foreign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries that are denominated in local currencies have been trans-
lated at year-end exchange rates, while revenues and expenses have been translated at average exchange rates
in effect during the year. Resulting cumulative translation adjustments have been recorded as a separate com-
ponent of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in stockholders’ equity.

() Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of changes to shareholders’ equity, other than contributions from or
distributions to shareholders, and net income (loss). The Company’s other comprehensive income (loss) princi-
pally consists of unrealized foretgn currency translation gains and losses and pension liability. The components
of, and changes in, accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are presented in the Company’s consoli-
dated statements of stockholders’ equity.
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LANGER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (continued)

{(m) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

{n) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the carrying amount of the Company’s financial instruments, including
cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, approximated fair
value because of their short-term maturity. The carrying value of long-term debt at December 31, 2007 and
2006 also approximated fair value based on borrowing rates currently available to the Company for debt with
similar terms.

(¢) Internal Use Software

In accordance with Statement of Position 98-1, ““Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software
Developed or Obtained for Internal Use”, the Company capitalizes internal-use software costs upon the
completion of the preliminary project stage and ceases capitalization when the sofiware project is substantially
complete and ready for its intended use. Capitalized costs are amortized on a straight-line basis ovér the
estimated useful life of the software. .

(p) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company’s consolidated. ﬁnancml statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007 and
2006 reflect the impact of SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” which replaced SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” In accordance with the modified prospective transition method,
the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the prior periods have not been restated to reflect, and do
not include, the impact of SFAS No. 123(R). Prior to 2006, the Company accounted for its stock option plans
under the recognition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related Interpretations. No stock-based employee compen-
sation expense is reflected in net income (loss), as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price
equal to or greater than the market price of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. Stock-based
compensation expense recognized under SFAS No. 123(R) was $281 660 and $186,322 for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. See Note 14, “Stock Options” for additional information.

The following table shows the pro forma expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 had the

Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R):
For the Year Ended
December 31, 2005

Net (loss) income —as reported . . ... ... ... ... ... L $(4,557.268)

Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under fair value basis method forall awards . ... ................ (3,882,026)

Add: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under the intrinsic value method reflected in the statement of opera-

(515 ) 1 1= . . 1,045,625
Pro forma et 10SS: . . . v v it e e e e - 8(7,393,669)
{Loss) Earnings per share:
Basic and diluted —as reported . .. ... ... ... $ (.63)
Basic and diluted —proforma . . ... ... ... o o $ (1.02)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

(g) Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans

On September 29, 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employer’s Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans.” SFAS No. 158 changes the requirements for accounting for defined
benefit pension and other, postretirement plans, including requiring companies to recognize in their statement
of financial position an asset for a plan’s overfunded status or a liability for a plan’s underfunded status. SFAS
No. 158 also requires that companies measure a plan’s assets and its obligations that determine its funded
status as of the end of the employer’s fiscal year (with limited exceptions). The requirement to recognize the
funded status of a benefit plan and the disclosure requirements were effective for the year ended
December 31, 2006.

The adoption of SFAS No. 158 did not have a significant effect on the Comipany’s balance sheet since it
had recognized an additional minimum pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2006, in'cenjunction
with the plan. The balance sheet was impacted by the adoption of SFAS No. 158 for its accrued benefit costs.
Upon the adoption of SFAS No. 158 in 2006, the Company recognized an immediate reduction in its deferred
benefit costs of $286,386, with a corresponding decrease to accumulated other comprehensive (loss).

(r) Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially expose the Company to concentration of credit risk consist prima-
rily of cash investments and accounts receivable. The Company places its cash investments with high-credit
quality financial institutions and currently invests primarily in money market accounts. Accounts receivable
are generally diversified due to the hu_rnber of customers comprising the Company’s customer base. As of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company’s alléwance for doubtful accounts was approximately $1,467,000
and $539,000. The Company believes no significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to these '
cash investments and accounts receivable. The carrying amounts of these financial instruments are reasonable
estimates of their fair value. '

(s) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

On September 15, 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No, 157 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years.
SFAS No. 157 provides guidance related to estimating fair value and requires expanded disclosures, The
standard applies whenever other standards require (or permit) assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value.
The standard does not expand the use of fair value in any new circumstances. In February 2008, the FASB
provided a one year deferral for the implementation of SFAS No. 157 for non-financial assets and liabilities
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a non-recurring basis. The Company is
evaluating SFAS No. 157 and its impact on the Company’s consoclidated financial statements, but it is not
expected to have a significant impact.

On February 22, 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities.” This statement gives entities the option to carry most financial assets and liabilities at
fair value, with changes in fair value recorded in earnings. This statement, which will be effective in the first
quarter fiscal 2009, is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
position or results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), “‘Business Combinations” {“SFAS
No. 141 (R)"), which requires an acquirer to recognize the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any
noncontrolling interest of an acquiree at the acquisition date, measured at their fair values as of that date, with
limited exceptions. SFAS No.141 (R} applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008,
Earlier application is prohibited. We anticipate this will have a material effect on future acquisitions upon
adoption.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (continued) - . : ’

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, ‘“Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements,” which requires (1) ownership interests in subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent to be
clearly identified, labeled, and presented in the consolidated statement of financial posumn within equity, but
separate from the parent’s equity; (2) the amount of consohdated net income atiribnitable to the parent and to
the non-controlling interest be clearly identified and presented on the face of the consolidated statement of *
income; and (3) changes in a parent’s ownerthp interest while the parent retains its controllmg financial
interest in its subsidiary be accounted for consistently as equity transactions. SFAS No. 160 apphes prospec-
tively fo business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or afier the begmnmg of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Earlier application is prohibited. The adopnon of
SFAS No. 160 is not expected to have a material impact on our results of operations or our financial position.

E

(2) Acqulsmons

(i a) Acquisition of Regal

On January 8, 2007, the Company acquired the business of Regal Medical Supply, LLC (“Regal™),
which is a provider of contracture management products and services to the long-term care market of skilled
nursing and assisted living facilities in 22 states. Regal was acquired in an effort to gain access to the long-
term care market, to gain a captive distribution channel for certain custom orthotic products the Company
manufactures into markets the Company has not prevnously penetrated and to establish a national network of
service professionals to enhance its customer relationships in both its core and new markeis. The results of
operauons of Regal since January 8, 2007 have been included in the Company’s consolidated financial state-
ments as part of its own operating segment.

The initial consideration for the acquisition of Regal (before post-closing adjustments) was approximately
$1,640,000, which was paid through the issuance of 379,167 shares of the Company’s common stock valued
under the asset purchase agreement at a price of $4.329 per share. In addition, transaction costs in the amount
of $69,721 were incurred, which increased the purchase price to $1,709,721. The purchase price was subject
to a post-closing downward adjustment to the extent that the working capital as reflected on Regal’s
January 8, 2007 (closing date) balance sheet was’ less than $675,000. On March 12, 2007, the'Company and
Regal agreed to a post-closing downward adjustment, pursuant to terms of the purchase agreement, reducing
the price from $1,709,721 to $1.441,670, which was effected by the cancellation of 45,684 shares, which were
valued for purpbses of the adjustment at $4.114 per share, which was the average closing price of the Compa-
ny's common stock on The NASDAQ Global Market (“NASDAQ”) for the 5 trading days ended
December 19, 2006. Subsequently, the Company reclassified certain assets of $100,000, which represents
amounts to be paid to the Company resulting from receivables acquired but not collected pursuant to the terms
of the purchase agreement, and is now the subject of a claim by the Company pursuant to the purchase agree-
ment. The returh of the purchase price consideration may be settled in the form of cash or the return of
shares. The Company entered into a three-year employment agreement with a former employee and member
of the seller and a non-competition agreement with the seller and seller’s members.

The following table sets forth the components of the purchase price:

Total stock consideration . . .. ... e e $1,371,949
Transaction COSIS . ...« oeven g e e 69,721
Total purchase price ............ U $1,441,670
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(2) Acquisitions - (continued)

The following table provides the final allocation of the purchase price based upon the fair value of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at January 8, 2007:

Assels: . .
Accounts Teceivable . . . ... e e e e $ 387409
Amounts receivable fromseller . ... ... ... . ... .. .. ... e 100,000
Property and equipment . . .. ..., ., .. 25,030
Goodwill . ... e e e 1,277,521
1,789,960
Liabilities: C
Accounts payable . .. ... ... ... ... e e e e - 275,206 ,
Accrued liabilities . ........ e e e e e e e 73,084
. : 348,290
Total purchase price . .. ... .. . ... ittt i e e 51,441,670

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwilt and Other Intangible Assets,” the Com-
pany will not amortize goodwill. The value of allocated goodwill is not deductible for income tax purposes.

(b) Acquisition of Twincraft

On January 23, 2007, the Company completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding stock of
Twincraft. Twincraft is a leading private label manufacturer of specialty bar soaps supplying the health and
beauty markets, mass markets and direct marketing channels and operates out of a manufacturing facility in
Winooski, Verment. Twincraft was acquired to enable the Company to expand into additional product catego-
ries in the personal care market, to increase the Company’s customer exposure for its current line of Silipos
gel-based skincare products, and to take advantage of potential commonalities in research and development
advances between Twincraft’s and the Company’s current product lines. The purchase price for Twincraft was
determined by arm’s length negotiations between the Company and the former stockholders of Twincraft and
was based in part upon analyses and due diligence, which the Company performed on the financial records of
Twincraft, focusing on enterprise value, historic cash flows and expected future cash flows to determine
valuation. The results of operations of Twincraft since January 23, 2007 (the date of acquisition} have been
included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as part of the personal care products operating
segment. - -

The purchase price paid for Twincraft at the time of closing was approximately $26,650,000, of which
$1,500,000 was held in two separate escrows to partially secure payment of any indemnification claims, and
payment for any purchase price adjustments and/or working capital adjustments based on the final post-closing
audit, On May 30, 2007, the escrow of $500,000 was released to the sellers of Twincraft. The remaining
escrow of $1,000,000 will not be released until 18 months after the closing, net of any claims which the
Company has against the escrow. This portion of the escrow is considered to be contingent consideration and
not part of the purchase price and is classified as restricted cash on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.
These escrow funds will increase goodwill when and if they are released in July 2008. The purchase price was
paid 85% in cash and the balance through the issuance of the Company’s common stock to thé sellers of
Twincraft, which was valued based on the average closing price of the Company's common stock on the two
days before, two days after, and on November 14, 2006, which was the date the Company and Twincraft’s
stockholders entered into the purchase agreement, The purchase price was subject to adjustment based on
Twincraft’s working capital target of $5,100,000 at closing, and operating performance for the year ended
December 31, 2006. On May 15, 2007, the working capital adjustment, which was agreed to by the Company
and the sellers of Twincraft, in effect increased the purchase price of the Twincraft acquisition by approxi-
mately $1,276,000 payable in cash. In addition, on May 15, 2007, the operating performance adjustments,
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(2) Acquisitions — (continued)

which were agreed to by the Company and the sellers of Twincraft, increased the purchase price of Twincraft
by approximately $1,867,000, and the adjustments were made by the issuance of 68,981 shares of the Compa-
ny’s common stock (representing 15% of the adjustment to the purchase consideration) and the balance of
approximately $1,564,000 was paid in cash. The cash adjustments for working capital and operating perfor-
mance totaling approximately $2,840,000 were paid to the sellers in May 2007. During the year,
approximately $193,000 of additional transaction costs relating to the Twincraft acquisition were determined,
resulting in an increase to the cost of the Twincraft acquisition, and is reflected in goodwill. Total transactions
costs were $1,445,714.

Effective January 23, 2007, Twincraft entered into three-year employment agreements with Peter A. Asch,
who serves as President of Twincraft, and A. Lawrence Litke, who serves as Chief Operating Officer of
Twincraft. Twincraft also entered into a consulting agreement with Fifth Element, LLC, a consulting firm
controlled by Joseph Candido, who serves as Vice President of Sales and Marketing for Twincraft. The
employment agreements of Mr. Asch and Mr. Litke, and the consulting agreement of Fifth Element, LLC,
contain non-competition and non-solicitation provisions covering the terms of their agreements and for any
extended severance periods and for one year after termination of the agreements or the extended severance
periods, if any. Messrs. Asch, Létk.c and Candido were stockholders of Twincraft immediately before the sale
of Twincraft to the Company.

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Twincraft purchase agreement, the sellers of Twincraft
(including Mr. Asch) can earn additional deferred consideration for the years ended 2007 and 2008. Deferred
consideration would have been earned for the year ending December 31, 2007 if Twincraft's adjusted
EBITDA exceeded its 2006 adjusted EBITDA. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the sellers of
Twincraft did not earn any additional consideration. The sellers of Twincraft would earn deferred consider-
ation for the year ending December 31, 2008, if Twincraft’s 2008 EBITDA exceeds $4,383,000; the Company
would be obligated to pay to the Sellers three times the difference between Twincraft’s 2008 EBITDA and
$4.,383,000. In the event this target is met, the payment would be compensation expense not purchase price
since it is contingent upon their being employed.

On January 23, 2007, as part of their employment agreements, the Company granted stock options of
200,000 and 100,000 shares, respectively, to Messrs. Asch and Litke, all under the Company’s 2005 Stock
Incentive Plan, to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock having an exercise price equal to $4.20
per share, which vest in three equal consecutive annual tranches beginning on January 23, 2009. The Com-
pany also granted stock options, on January 23, 2007, to Mr. Mark Davitt, another Twincraft employee, for
25,000 shares with an exercise price of $4.20 per share, vesting in three equal consecutive annual tranches
commencing on the first anniversary of the grant date. The Company is recognizing stock compensation
expenses related to these options over the requisite service period in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R).
Pursuant to EITF No. 96-18, the Company recorded consulting expenses relating to 100,000 stock options
granted to Fifth Element, LLC, a non-employee consultant, which is controlled by Mr. Joseph Candido, a
Twincraft officer and one of the former Twincratt stockholders.

The following table sets forth the components of the purchase price:

Total cash consideration . ............. . . e $24,492.639
Total stock consideration . . . . . . . oo it ittt e e e e e 4,701,043
Transaction costs . ....... P e 1,445,714
Total purchase Price . ... ..o oottt i $30,639,396
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{2) Acquisitions ~ (continued)

The following table provides the final allocation of the purchase price based upon the fair value of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at January 23, 2007:

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .. ......... O $ 36966
Accounts receivable . . ... ... L 3,984,756
InVentories - . . . ot i e e 4,200,867
Other current assets . ......... e e e e e 127,911
Property and equipment . . . . . . e e e e 7,722,140
Goodwill . ... e e e P 7,022,425
Identifiable intangible assets (trade names of $2,629,300 and repeat customer
base of $7,214,500) . ... .. ... ... e P 9,843,800
' 32,938,865
Liabilities: .
Accounts payable .. ..., ... .. ... L e 517,929
Accrued liabilities ... ... .. ... .. e 1,781,540
2,299,469
Total purchase price . ......................... e $30,639,396

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. i4i, the Company will not amortize goodwill. The
intangible assets are deemed to have definite lives and will be amortized over an appropriate period that
matches the economic benefit of the intangible assets. The trade names will be amortized over a 23 year
period and the repeat customer base over a 19 year period. The customer list is amortized using an accelerated
method that reflects the economic benefit of the asset, The value allocated to goodwill and identifiable intan-
gible assets in the purchase of Twincraft are not deductible for income tax purposes.

(c) Unaudited Pro Forma Results

Below are the unaudited pro forma results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, as if the Company had acquired Regal and Twincraft on January 1, 2005. Such pro forma results
are not necessarily indicative of the actual consolidated results of operations that would have been achieved if
the acquisition occurred on the date assumed, nor are they necessarily indicative of future consolidated resulis
of operations.

Unaudited pro forma results for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Netsales . .......... ... ..o, $64,847 487 $66,321,904 $65,385,737
Net (1088) .. ..t vi i (4,217,681) (1,554,543) (3,855,617)
(Loss) income per share — basic and diluted. . . (37} (.16) (.53)
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(3) Discontinued Operations

On January 18, 2008, the Company completed the sale of Langer (UK) Limited {“Langer UK"). (See
note 22.) In accordance with SFAS No. 144, the results of operations of Langer UK for the current and prior
periods have been reported as discontinued operations and the assets and liabilities related to Langer UK have
been classified as held for sale in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Operating results of Langer UK, which
were formerly included in our medical products segment, are summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31, -

2007 2006 2005

Total TEVENUES - o . vt vt o et me e it o $3,168,499  $2,537,101 $2,737,645
Net income (loss) from Langer UK operations ... ... $ 91096 $ (104,096 $ 215,655
Other expense, net {(including goodwill impairment of '

$175,558 for2007) .. ... (533,929) (339,031) (293,197)
Loss before income taxes . ... .....c.cihiianns (442,833) (443,121 (77,542}
(Provision for) benefit from income taxes . . ... ... .. —_ 56,303 (26,231)
Loss from discontinued operations . . ............ $ (442,833) $ (386,824) § (103,773)

{4) Net Assets Held for Sale

The assets and liabilities of Langer UK have been reclassified as held for sale in the Consolidated Bal-
ance Sheets for both years presented and have ceased depreciation in December 2007. The assets and

liabilities related to Langer UK consist of the following:

Other CUITENt ASSELS . . . . v v v s o et te et oemm e e s
Goodwill (See Note 6) ...... ... ... .o,
Property and equipment . . . ... .. ..o
Assets held forsale . ... ... oo i

Accounts payable . . ... .. .. e e e e e
Other current liabilities . ... ... ... .. ... . i e

Liabilities related to assets held forsale . .. ................ ...
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December 31,
2007 2006
$ -_ $ 158518
572,870 385,854
380,132 417,543
54,209 75,844
287,171 —_
207,335 203,609
$1,501,717 $1,241,368
$ 132,102 $ 137,022
340,216 364,885
$ 472318 $ 501,907
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(5) Identifiable Intangible Assets

Identifiable intangible assets at December 31, 2007 consisted of;

Estimated
Useful Life Adjusted Accumulated Net Carrying
Assets (Years) Cost Amortization Value
Non-competition ’ _ ,
agreements — Benefoot/Bi-Op . . . . . .. 4 $ 372,000 % 431089 $ 1400911
License agreements and related ‘ _
technology — Benefoot ... ... ..... 51t 8 1,156,000 762,806 393,194
Repeat customer base — Bi-Op ... ... .. 7 500,000 200,926 299,074
Trade names — Silipos .. ........... Indefinite 2,688,000 — 2,688,000
Repeat customer base — Silipos . ... ... 7 1,680,000 885,807 794,193
License agreements and related
technology = Silipos .. ........... 9.5 1,364,000 466,632 897,368
Repeat customer base — Twincraft ... .. 19 7.214,500 494,080 | 6,720,420
Trade names — Twincraft . . .. ... ... .. 23 2,629,300 104,791 2,524,509
$17,803,800 $3,346,131 $14,457,669

Identifiable intangible assets at December 31, 2006 consisted of:

Estimated ' :

Accumulated

Useful Life Adjusted Net Carryi.ng
Assets {Years) Cost Amortization Value
Non-competition
agreements — Benefoot/Bi-Op . . ... .. 4 $ 572000 § 350,570 $ 221430
License agreements and related
technoiogy — Benefoot . ........., 5t08 1,156,000 647,824 508,176
Repeat customer base - Bi-Op . .. ... .. 7 500,000 137,963 362,037
Trade names — Silipos ... .......... Indefinite 2,688,000 — 2,688,000
Repeat customer base — Silipos . . . . ... 7 1,680,000 540,000 1,140,000
License agreements and related
technology = Silipos . .. ... ....... 9.5 1,364,000 323,053 1,040,947
$7,960,000 51999410  $5,960,590

Aggregate amortization expense relating to the above identifiable intangible assets for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, were $1,346,721, $643,425, and $636.883, respectively. As of
December 31, 2007, the estimated future amortization expense is $1,380,903 for 2008, $1,318,039 for 2009,
$1,200,257 for 2010, $1,137,073 for 2011, $1,133,308 for 2012 and $5,600,089 thereafter.
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(6) Goodwill
Changes in goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 are as follows:

Medical Personal Care
Products Products Regal Total
Balance, January 1,2005 ........... $i0,734,851 $2,586,300 % —  $13,321,151
Purchase price adjustments related to
Silipos ... 558,643 239,419 — 798,062
| Balance, December 31, 2005 and 2006 .. 11,293494 2825719 — 14,119,213
' Goodwill related to the Regal
acquisition .. ......... . ... — — 1,277,521 1,277,521
Goodwill related to the Twincraft
acquisition . ...... ... ..o — 7,022,425 — 7,022,425
Allocated to Langer UK, assets held for
sale of which $175,558 was impaired
and is included in discontinued
Operations . ... ... ... (462,729) — — (462,729)
Balance, December 31, 2007 . ... ... .. $10,830,765 $9,848,144  $1,277.521  $21,956,430
(7) Inventories, Net
Inventories, net, consisted of the following:
December 31,
2007 2006
Raw materials . . . . . oot e e $4,266,875  $2,318.201
WOTK-IM-PIOCESS & .« . v oo i e i b e 552,778 159,162
Finished goods . .. ... ... . o o 3,422,556 1,265,358
8,242,209 3,742,721
Less: Allowance for excess and obsolescence . .. .............. 1,561,856 885.151

$6.680,353  $2,857.570

(8) Property and Equipment, Net
Property and equipment, net, is comprised of the following!

Deccrﬁber 31,

2007 2006

Land, building and improvements (see Note &) ... ............. $ 2,557,738 § 2,557,738
Office furniture and equipment . .. . .. ... ... . .. 1,715,367 1,270,813
Computer equipment and software ... ..................... 5,106,213 3,824,235
Machinery and equipment ... ........ . ..o 9,823,613 2,719,507
Leasehold improvements . ........... ...« i 5,148,113 2,432,832

24,351,044 12,805,125
Less: Accumnulated depreciation and amortization . ............ 9,758,428 4,763,317

$14,592,616 $ 8,041.808

Depreciation and amortization expense relating to property and equipment was $2,801,394, $1.147.400
and $1,010,797 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Property and equipment
held under capital leases had a net book value of $1,539,534 as of December 31, 2007 (See Note 11,
“Long-Term Debt™).
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(9) Other Current Liabilities
Other current liabilities consisted of the following:

December 31,

2007 2006
Accrued payroll and related payroll taxes ... ................. $1,244,537  § 562918
Accrued professional fees . . ... ... ... L o o 830,474 482,030
Accrued merchandise .. ... ... ... e 518,650 —
Accrued acquisition costs . ... .. e e i e e — 473,447
Deferred interest —capital lease . ............. ... ... ..... 356,625 455,655
Lease abandonment . ... ... .. . ... .. e —_ 199,770
Accrued BOMUSES . . . . v ot e 115,283 190,065
Accrued severance and severance related ... .. ... ... ... ... ... _ 10,689 116,005
Accrued INTEFESt . . . . .. e e — 100,034
Credits due customers . .. ............ e e —_ 82,650
Accruedrent « ............. e e e . 175,474 79,105
Accrued Warranty . . ... ... ... e 60,000 70,000
Current portion of note payable . .. .-............ ... e 35.541 33,145
Other . e e 267,189 367.591

$3,614462  $3,212,415

The following is a summary of the activity related to the Company’s warranty reserve:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Balance at the beginning of the year . ... ...... ... $ 70,000 % 70,000 $ 70,000
* Provisions for warranty . . ... ....... ... ....... 99,189 153,610 290,146
Warranty utilized ......... ... . ... . ... .. ... (109,189) (153,610) {290,146)
Balance at the end of the year .. ... ............ $ 60,000 $ 70,000 $ 70,000

(10) Credit Facility

On May 11, 2007, the Company entered into a secured revolving credit facility agreement (the “Credit
Facility”) with Wachovia Bank, N.A., expiring on September 30, 2011. The Credit Facility provides an aggre-
gate maximum availability, if and when the Company has the requisite levels of assets, in the amount of
$20 million, and is subject to a sub-limit of $5 million for the issuance of letter of credit obligations, another
sub-limit of $5 million for term loans, and a sub-limit of $7.5 million on loans against inventory. The Credit
Facility is collateralized by a first priority security interest in inventory, accounts receivables and all other
assets and is guaranteed on a full and unconditional basis by the Company and each of the Company’s domes-
tic subsidiaries (Silipos, Twincraft and Regal) and any other company or person that hereafter becomes a
borrower or owner of any property in which the lender has a security interest under the Credit Facility. As of
December 31, 2007, the Company had not made draws on the Credit Facility and has approximately
$5.9 million available under the Credit Facility.

If the Company’s availability under the Credit Facility drops below $3 million or borrowings under the
facility exceed $10 million. the Company is required under the Credit Facility to deposit all cash received
from customers into a blocked bank account that will be swept daily to directly pay down any loan outstand-
ing under the Credit Facility. The Company would not have any control over the blocked bank account.
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(10) Credit Facility — (continued)

The Company’s borrowings availabilities are limited to 85% of eligible accounts receivable and 60% of
eligible inventory, and are subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions. Term loans shall be secured by
equipment or real estate hereafter acquired. The Company is required to submit monthly unaudited financial
statements to the lender.

If the Company's availability is less than $3,000,000, the Credit Facility requires compliance with various
covenants including but not limited to a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of not less than 1.0 to 1.0. Availability
under the Credit Facility is reduced by 40% of the outstanding letters of credit related to the purchase of
eligible inventory, as defined, and 100% of all other outstanding letters of credit. At December 31, 2007, the
Company had outstanding letters of credit related to the purchase of eligible inventory of approximately
$85,000, and other outstanding letters of credit of approximately $571,000.

The Company is required to pay monthly interest in arrears at the lender’s prime rate or, at the Compa-
ny’s election, at 2 percentage points above an Adjusted Eurodollar Rate, as defined. To the extent that amounts
under the Credit Facility remain unused, while the Credit Facility is in effect and for so long thereafter as any
of the obligations under the Credit Facility are outstanding, the Company will pay a monthly commitment fee
of one-quarter of one percent on the unused portion of the loan commitment. The Company paid the lender a
closing fee in the amount of $75.,000 in August 2007. As of December 31, 2007, the Company has recorded
deferred financing costs in connection with the Credit Facility of $394,556, of which $57,583 has been amor-
tized during the year ended ‘December 31, 2007 and the balance will be amortized over the life of the Credit
Facility.

(11) Long-Term Debt

On December 8, 2006, the Company entered into a note purchase agreement for the sale of $28,880,000
of 5% convertible subordinated notes due December 7, 2011 (the **5% Convertible Notes”). The 5% Convert-
ible Notes are not registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The Company has agreed to
register the shares of the Company’s common stock acquirable upon conversion of the 5% Convertible Notes,
which may include an additional number of shares of common stock issuable on account of adjustments of the
conversion price under the 5% Convertible Notes. The Company filed a registration statement with respect to
the shares acquirable upon conversion of the 5% Convertible Notes (the “Underlying Shares™) on January 9,
2007, and has filed Amendment No. 1 of the registration statement on November 19, 2007. The Company has
received a comment letter from the Securities and Exchange Commission dated December 18, 2007, and
expects to file Amendment No. 2 thereof in April 2008.

The 5% Convertible Notes bear interest at the rate of 5% per annum, payable in cash semiannually on
June 30 and December 31 of each year, commencing June 30, 2007. For years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006, the Company recorded interest expense relating to the 5% Convertible Notes of approximately
$1,443,000 and approximately $97,000, respectively,

At the date of issuance, the 5% Convertible Notes were convertible into shares of the Company’s com-
mon stock at the rate of $4.75 per share, subject to an adjustment for certain anti-dilution provisions. At the
original conversion price at December 31, 2006, the number of shares acquirable on conversion was
6,080,000. Since the conversion price was above the market price on the date of issuance, there was no ben-
eficial conversion. Effective January 8, 2007 and Janvary 23, 2007, in conjunction with commaon stock
issuances related to two acquisitions (see Note 2, “Acquisitions”), the conversion price was adjusted o
$4.6706 per share, and the number of shares acquirable upon conversion was thereby increased to 6,183,359,
pursuant to the anti-dilution provisions applicable to the 5% Convertible Notes. On May 15, 2007, as a result
of the issuance of an additional 68,981 shares of common stock to the Twincraft sellers on account of upward
adjustments to the Twintraft purchase price, and the surrender to the Company of 45,684 shares of common
stock, on account of downward adjustments in the Regal purchase price, the conversion price under the 5%
Convertible Notes was reduced to $4.6617 per share, and the number of shares acquirable on conversion was
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(11) Long-Term Debt ~ (continued)

increased to 6,195,163 shares. This resulted in a debt discount of $476,873,which is being amortized over the
term of the 5% Convertible Notes and is being recorded as interest expense in the consolidated statements of
operations. The charge to interest expense relating to the debt discount for the year ended December 31, 2007
is approximately $86,000. The principal of the 5% Convertible Notes is due on December 7, 2011, subject to
the earlier call of the 5% Convertible Notes by the Company, as follows: (i) the 5% Convertible Notes may
not be called prior to December 7, 2007; (i1) from December 7, 2007, through December 7, 2009, the 5%
Convertible Notes may be called and redeemed for cash, in the amount of 105% of the principal amount of
the 5% Convertible Notes (plus accrued but unpaid interest, if any, through the call. date); (iii) after Decem-
ber 7, 2009, the 5% Convertible Notes may be called and redeemed for cash in the amount of 100% of the
principal amount of the 5% Convertible Notes (plus accrued but unpaid interest, if any, through the call date);
and (iv) at any time after December 7, 2007, if the closing price of the common stock of the Company on the
Nasdaqg Global Market (or any other exchange on which the Company’s stock is then traded or quoted) has
been equal to or greater than $7.00 per share for 20 of the preceding 30 trading days immediately prior to the
Company’s issuing a call notice, then the 5% Convertible Notes shall be mandatorily converted into common
stock at the conversion price then applicable. The Company held a Special Meeting of Stockholders on

April 19, 2007, at which the Company’s stockholders approved the issuance by the Company of the shares
acquirable on conversion of the 5% Convertible Notes.

In the event of a default on the 5% Convertible Notes, the due date of the 5% Convertible Notes may be
accelerated if demanded by holders of at least 40% of the 5% Convertible Notes, subject to a waiver by at
least 51% of the 5% Convertible Notes if the Company pays all arrearages of interest on the 5% Convertible
Notes.

The payment of interest and principal of the 5% Convertible Notes is subordinate to the Company’s
presently existing capital lease obligation, in the amount of $2,700,000, excluding current installments, as of
December 31, 2007, and the Company’s obligations under the Credit Facility. The 5% Convertible Notes
would also be subordinated to any additional debt which the Company may incur hereafter for borrowed
money, or under additional capital lease obligations, obligations under letters of credit, bankers’ acceptances or
similar credit transactions (see Note 10, Credit Facility™).

In connection with the sale of the 5% Convertible Notes, the Company paid a commission of $1,060,000
based on a rate of 4% of the amount of 5% Convertible Notes sold, excluding the 5% Convertible Notes sold
to members of the Board of Directors and their affiliates, to Wm Smith & Co., who served as placement agent
in the sale of the 5% Convertible Notes. The total cost of raising these proceeds was $1,338,018, which is
being amortized through December 7, 2011, the due date for the payment on the 5% Convertible Notes. The
amortization of these costs for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $262,700, and is recorded as interest
expense in the consolidated statements of operations.

On October 31, 2001, the Company completed the sale in a private placement, of $14,589,000 principal
amount of its 4% convertible subordinated notes due and paid in full, plus accrued interest, on August 31,
2006 (the “4% Convertible Notes). The 4% Convertible Notes were paid in full on the due date. The cost of
raising these proceeds was $920,933, which was amortized through August 31, 2006. The amortization of
these costs for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $127,853, and was included in interest expense in the
consolidated statements of operations. Interest expense on the 4% Convertible Notes for the year ended
December 31, 2006 was $385,040.

’In June 2006, the Company elected, pursuant to its option under the lease of 41 Madison Avenue,
New York, N.Y., to finance $202,320 of leasehold improvements by delivery of a note payable to- the landlord
{the “Note’’). The Note, which matures inJuly 2011, provides for interest at a rate of 7% per annum and 60"
monthly installments of principal and interest totaling $4,006, commencing August 2006. The Note is secured
by a $202,320 increase to an unsecured letter of credit originally provided to the landlord at lease commence-
ment. The amount of the revised unsecured letter of credit is $570,992, The current portion of the Note was
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(11) Long-Term Debt - (continued)

$35,541 and $33,145 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and is included in other current liabilities,
inctuding current instatlments of note payable, and the non-current pomon of the Note was $113,309 and
$151,970 at December 31, 2007, and 2006, respectivety:

1

Pursuant to the acquisition of Silipos, the Company is obligated under a capital lease covering the land
and building at the Silipos facility in Niagara Falls, N.Y. that expires in 2018. This lease also contains two
five-year renewal options. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company’s obligation under capital lease,
excluding current installments, is $2,700,000-

Annual future minimum capital lease payments are as follows:

Years Ending December 31: _
2008 .. . e e e e e $ 432,511

2009........... P T 443,012
2000, ... [ 453,512
2000 ... L e e - 467,117
2002 e e e e 481,130
Later years through 2018 . .. .................. e e 2,870,391
Total minimum lease payments . . . . . ... .. .. i e 5,147,673
Less: Amount representing interest .. .. ...... ... ... ..ot 2,447,673
Present value of net minimum capital lease payments .. .. ... .............. 2,700,000
Less: Current installments of obligations under capital lease . ................ —
Obligations under capital lease, excluding current installment .. .............. $2,700,000

Additionally, the Company has accrued interest of $356,625 and $455,655 at December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively, with respect to the capital lease which is included in other current liabilities at the
respective balance sheet dates.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the gross amount of land and building and related accumulated
depreciation recorded under the capital lease was as follows:

December 31,

. 2007 . 2006
Land ... e e e $ 278,153 $ 278,153
Building . ... ... . e e - 1,654,930 1,654,930
1,933,083 1,933,083
Less: Accurnulated Depreciation . ... ... ... [ 393,549 272,457

$1,539,534  $1,660,626

{12) Commitments and Contingenéies

(a) Leases .
)

Certain of the Company’s facilities and equipment are leased under noncancelable operating leases.
Rental expense amounted to $2,014,652, $1,390,458 and $753,553 for the years ended December 31, 2007,

2006 and 20035, respectively, The leases expire at various dates through 2018.
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(12) Commitments and Contingencies — (continued) "L '

Future minimum rental payments required under current operating leases are:

Years Ending December 31:

2008 ...... FS e . [ .. $ 2,009486

D009 . o 1,765,174
2000, ........ U S 1,426,929
2001 o PR . " 1,197,748
2002 e 1,211,445
Thereafter .. ...... P A 3,330,369

' ' $10,941,151

On December 19, 2005, the Company entered into a lease (as tenant} with 41 Madison, L.P. (the
“Landlord™} of certain space, for use as sales, marketing and executive offices. The lease runs for 10 years,
& months, commencing July 5, 2006, which was the date of completion of the build-out of the space. The
Company incurred build-out costs (in excess of the expense paid by the landlord of $607,000) of approxi-
mately $1,685,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006. The Company has a one-time'right to renew the
lease for a term of 5 years in year 2017 at a base rent equal to the fair market value of the space at the time
of renewal. The Company also has theé right to terminate the lease as of October 31, 2013, upon 12 months’
prior notice to the Landlord. The Company began recording rent expense on a straight line basis commencing
in December 2005 in accordance with FASB Staff Position SFAS No. 13-1, “Accounting for Rental Costs
Incurred during a Construction Period.”

The loss on abandonment of lease cost of approximately $236,000 in 2006 was associated with our
abandonment of our former sales offices located at 366 Madison Avenue, New York, New York, which expired
on January 31, 2008. The amount fepresents the present value of the remaining lease payments. The Company
completed its move to the new sales, marketmg and executive offices at 41 Madison Avenue, New York,

New York as of July 5,-2006.

On August 6, 2007, the Company entered into a sublease agreement with a related party for a portion of
its leased space at 41 Madison Avenue. This sublease commenced on September 1, 2007. The sublease, which
has a term of three years, requires the subtenant to make monthly payments of $11,250 to the Company. The.:
Company records these amounts as a reduction of its rent expense under the 41 Madison Avenue lease. Sub- .
lease payments received by the Company in 2007 amounted to $45,000. (See Note 19, Related Party
Transactions) . . .

(b) Royalties . '

The Company has entered into several agreements with licensors, consultants and suppliers, which
require the Company to pay royalty fees relating to the sale of certain products. Royalties in the aggregate
under these agreements totaled $326,380, $257,327, and $506,360 for the years ended Decembcr 31 2007,
2006 and 20035, respectively. :

(c) Letter of Credit

In connection with the execution of the lease of office space in New York City on December 19 2005:
described above in Note 12(a), the Company exercised its option under the lease to finance $202,320 of
leaschold improvements, by delivery of a note payable to the landlord with a m?turny date of July 1,2011,
described above in Note 11. The Company issued an irrevocable letter of credit in favor of the landlord in the
amount of $570,992 to secure both its performance under the terms, covenants and condition of the lease, and
to secure the related note pdyable The Letter of Credit has a term of one year, which the term shall dummau-'
cally renew for successive one year periods such that the letter of credit will not expire less than 60 days
beyond the expiration date of the lease, which is April 30, 2017.
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(13) Employee Restricted Stock and Other Stock Issuances

In November 2004, the Company granted 40,000 shares of restricted stock to a key employee of the
Company, which was originally scheduled to vest in three annual tranches beginning in 2005, Unearned stock
compensation of $300,000 was recorded based on the fair market value of the Company’s common stock at
the date of grant, or $7.50 per share. Unearned stock compensation was shown as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity and was originally being amortized to expense over the three-year vesting period of the
restricted stock. On December 20, 2005, the Board of Directors accelerated the vesting of the stock award
subject to lock-up, confidentiality and non-competition agreemnents. 17,200 shares were returned to the Com-
pany to settle related tax obligations. The Company recorded $277,083 of compensation expense with respect
to the award in the statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2005. The restricted stock has all
the rights and privileges of the Company’s common stock, subject to certain restrictions and forfeiture
provisions.

On November 12, 2004, the Board of Directors approved a grant of 100,000 shares of restricted stock to
Kanders & Company, Inc. (‘“Kanders & Company™), the sole stockholder of which is Warren B. Kanders,
subject to certain performance conditions,.provided Mr. Kanders has not resigned from the Board of Directors,
all of which were originally scheduled to vest on November 12, 2007 and which would accelerate upon the
death of Mr. Kanders, or the change of control of the Company. On December 20, 2005, the Board of
Directors accelerated the vesting of the stock award, which remains subject to lock-up, confidentiality and
non-competition agreements. The Company recorded a compensation charge of $465,000 with respect to such
award in the statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2005, of which approximately $317,000
relates to the acceleration of the vesting of such award.

During the year ended December 31, 2005 the Company issued 901 shares of common stock with a fair
value of $5,000 for consulting services. During the year ended December 31, 2006, there were no common
stock issuances by the Company to key employees, consultants or to Kanders & Company (see Note 19,
“Related Party Transactions™). During January 2007, the Company issued common stock as part of the con-
sideration paid for the acquisitions of Regal and Twincraft. (See Note 2, **Acquisitions.”)

On January 23, 2007, the Board of Directors approved a grant of 75,000 shares of restricted stock to
Kathy Kehoe, 275,000 shares of restricted stock to W. Gray Hudkins, 7,500 shares of restricted stock to
Stephen M. Brecher, 7,500 shares of restricted stock to Burtt R. Ehrlich, 7,500 shares to Stuart Greenspon and
500,000 shares of restricted stock to Warren B. Kanders, subject to certain performance conditions. In
September 2007, the Board of Directors approved a grant of 75,000 shares of restricted stock to Kathleen P.
Bloch, subject to certain performance conditions. The Company will record stock compensation expense once
the performance criteria is probable.

(14) Stock Options

Effective January 1,-2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.” SFAS
No. 123(R) replaces SFAS No. 123 and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25. SFAS No. 123(R) requires that all
stock-based compensation be recognized as an expense in the financial statements and that such costs be
measured at the fair value of the award. This statement was adopted using the modified prospective method,
which requires the Company to recognize compensation expense on a prospective basis. Therefore, prior
period financial statements have not been restated. Under this method, in addition to reflecting compensation
expense for new share-based payment awards, expense is also recognized to reflect the remaining vesting
period of awards that had been included in pro-forma disclosures in prior periods. However, since all options
outstanding as of December 31, 2006 were fully vested (except for 75,000 options, which were forfeited in ‘
January 2006), there was no compensation expense recognized for those options in the consolidated statements
of income for year ended December 31, 2006. The total stock compensation expense for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $281,660 and $186,322, and are included in general and administrative
expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.
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The fair value of stock-based awards to employees is calculated through the use of option pricing mod-
els, even though such models were developed to estimate the fair value of freely tradable, fully transferable
options without vesting restrictions, which significantly differ from the Company’s stock option awards. These
models also require subjective assumptions, including future stock price volatility and expected time to exer-
cise, which greatly affect the calculated values. Because share-based compensation expense is based on awards
that are ultimately expected to vest, share-based compensation expense is reduced for estimated forfettures.
SFAS 123(R) requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent
periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates, In the pro forma information required under SFAS 123
for periods prior to the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company accounted for forfeitures as they
occurred. Since there were no unvested options that were granted prior to the adoption of SFAS No. ]23(R),
there are no cumulative effects of forfeitures.

During the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company’s calculations were made
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and are on a multiple option valuation approach.
The Black-Scholes model is affected by the Company’s stock price as well as assumptions regarding certain
subjective variables. These variables include, but are not limited to, the Company’s expected stock price
volatility over the term of the awards, the risk-free interest rate, and the expected life of the options. The
risk-free interest rate is based on a treasury instrument whose term is consistent with the expected life of the
stock options granted. The expected volatility, holding period, and forfeitures of options are based on histori-
cal experience. The historical period used for volatility is comprised of daily historical activity for a period
equal to the term. For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, as permitted under SFAS No. 123(R),
the Company calculated its expected term using the short cut method as they believe they do not have enough
information related to historical activity.

The following table lists the weighted average assumptions used by the Company in determining the fair
value of stock options for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005:

2007._ 2006 ) _2005
Expected volatility .. ....................... 75% 73% 57%
Expected dividends . .. ....... ... ... .. ..., — — —
Expected terms (in number of months) ........... 74 78 60
Risk-free interestrate . . ... .................. 3.63% 4.70% 4.12%
Option grants (weighted average fair value) . ... .. .. $3.27 $3.03 $3.01

At the Company’s July 17, 2001 annual meeting, the shareholders approved and adopted a stock incen-
tive plan for a maximum of 1,500,000 shares of common stock (the **2001 Plan’). Outstanding options
granted under the 2001 Plan are exercisable for a period of up to ten years from the date of grant at an exer-
cise price at least equal to 100 percent of the fair market value of the Company’s common stock at the date of
grant and option awards generally vest in 3 years of continuous servnce all of which are subject to the
approval of the Board of Directors. At December 31, 2007, there were 407, 252 options outstandmg under the
2001 Plan. On June 23, 2005, the shareholders approvexi the Company’s 2003 Stock Incentive Plan {the
“2005 Plan™), with substantially the same terms as the 2001. Plan, pursuant to which a maximum 2,000,000
shares of common stock are reserved for issuance and avaﬂable for awards. At December 31, 2007, there were
1,306, 000 options outstanding ‘under the 2005 Plan. Addltlonally, 250,000 non-plan optlons were outstandmg
at December 31, 2007.
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Weighted
Average
Exercise Exercise Apgregate
Number Price Range Price Per ‘ Intrinsic
of Shares . - Per Share . Share _ Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 . .. 1,193,504 -$1.53-8.07 - $4.93
Granted . ... ... ...... ... ..... 1,231,000 4.89-1752 ‘ 6.01
Exercised .............. e (110,000) 1.53 1.53 v
Cancelled or forfeited . . . ......... (404,376) 3,20 -7.50 7.39
Qutstanding at December 31, 2005 . .. 1,910,128 1.53 - 8.07 ‘ 530
Granted ..............vonvonn. 237,500 350-496 430
Exercised .................... (128,750) 1.53 - L.53
Cancelled or forfeited . . ... ....... (309,626) 1.53 — 8.07 4726
Qutstanding at December 31, 2006 . . . - 1,709,252 1.53-8.07 . 563
Granted ............... N e 425,000 - - 420 4,20
Exercised . ... .............. .. (30,000} 1.53 1.53
Cancelled or forfeited . .. ... ...... (141,000} 1.53 - 8.07 :
Quistanding at December 31, 2007 . . . 1,963,252 ) 5.28 $176,800
Vested at December 31, 2007 ...... 1,400,752 5.70
Exercisable at December 31, 2007 . . . 1400752 S 570 $149,700

Under the 2001 Plan, at December 31, 2007, all 407,252 options were exercisable. Under the 2005 Plan,
at December 31, 2007, 743,500 options were exercisable. Additionally, at December 31, 2007, there were
250,000 non-plan options which are exercisable.

The options outstanding at Decembejr 31, 2007 had remaining lives ranging from approximately 0.1 years
to 8.3 years, with a weighted average life of approximately 6.1 years.

The following table summarizes the Company’s nonvested stock option activity for the year ended
December 31, 2007:

Weighted

- Average

Fair Value

Number at Grant

Qutstanding Date

Non-vested options at December 31,2006 . ... ... ... ......... 137,500 469,000
Options granted ... ... .. e e T . 425,000 1,365,000
VSt . s e e e e {12,500) (40,147)
Non-vested options at December 31, 2007 .. .. ... ... ... ..... - +550,000 1,793,853

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was approximately
$176,800 and $490,400, respectively and the aggregate intrinsic value of exercisable options was $149,700
and $490,400, respectively. Options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 had
the following intrinsic values related to thiese options: $33,150, $394,125 and $403,700. At December 31,
2007, there was approximately $853,000 of unrecognized compensation cost related to share-based payments,
which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 3.2 years. :

On September 8, 2005, the Company determined not to extend Andrew H. Meyer’s employment contract,
and in accordance with its terms, the contract expired December 31, 2005 (except for certain covenants by
Mr. Mevers in favor of the Company). In accordance with a modification of the employment contract on
November 12, 2004, which extended his right to exercise 175,000 vested options from 90 days to one year

84




LANGER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(14) Stock Options - (continued)

beyond termination, the Company recorded a non-cash charge equal to the intrinsic value of the options on
the date the option agreement was modified, or approximately $1,046,000 at December 31, 2005. On
September 20, 2006, a total of 98,750 options were exercised+and 76,250 were surrendered to the Company as
part of a cashless exercise to settle the purchase price and related tax obligations. '

The Company issued certain stock options for consulting services. In connection with such options, the
Company recorded non-cash compensation expense totaling $1,257,000, which includes the effect of accelerat-
ing the vesting of certain stock options in the year ended December 31, 2005 (see Note 9, “Related Party
Transactions™). '

At December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company had 60,000, 60,000 and 95,000 warrants outstand-
ing, respectively,

On December 20, 2005, in order to lessen the impact in future periods, the Company accelerated the
vesting of (i) certain unvested stock options previously awarded to employees, officers, consultants and direc-
tors of the Company under its 2005 Stock Incentive Plan and 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, and (ii) all unvested
restricted stock awards, subject in each case to such optionees and restricted stock award holders entering into
lock-up, confidentiality and non-competition agreemcms. As a result of this action, options to purchase
1,238,503 shares of common stock (387,500 shares of which were consuliant stock options and 851,003 shares
of which were employee stock options) that would have vested over the next one to five years became fully
vested. None of these employee stock options were in the money on that date. Therefore, there was no com-
pensation expense recognized with respect to the acceleration of the 851,003 stock options. Qutstanding
unvested options (75,000} that were not accelerated will continue to vest on their current schedules. The
75,000 unvested options were forfeited in the first quarter of 2006.

The decision to accelerate the vesting of these options and awards, which the Company believes to be in
the interest of its stockholders, was made primarily to reduce non-cash compensation that would have been
recorded in future periods following the Company’s adoption of the SFAS No, 123(R) in the year ended
December 31, 2006. :

The acceleration of the vesting of the employees’ and directors’ options reduced the Company’s non-cash
compensation expense related to the options by approximately $2,071,000 (pre-tax) for the years 2006 — 2010.
The acceleration of vesting of certain stock awards, and stock options issued for consulting services resulted
in a charge to operations of approximately $1,313,000 (pre-tax} in the year ended December 31, 2005,

(15) Segment Information

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Compény operated in three segments (medical products,
personal.care products, and Regal) principally in the design, development, manufacture and sale of foot and
gait-related products. Intersegment sales are recorded at cost.
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In 2006 and 2005, the Company operated in two segments: medical and personal care. In January 2007,
the Company acquired the business of Regal Medical, LLC, which operates as part.of its'own segment. Also,
in January 2007, the Company acquired Twincraft, which operates as part of the personal care segment. Assets
and expenses related to the Company’s executive offices are reported under “other™ as they do not relate to
any of the operating segments. Segment information for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005
is summarized as follows: :

' Personal
Year Ended December 31, 2007 Medical Care " Regal Other Total

Netsales ... ... ... .. $25,652,321 $33,507.653 $3,752,324 $ —  $62,912,298
Operating income (loss) from _

continuing operations . ....... 2,507,739 1,666,355 (408,868) (5,699,792) (1,934,566)
Depreciation of property and

equipment and amortization of ‘ , o

identifiable intangible assets . . . . 1,406,829 2,382,291 30,578 298,340 4,118,038
Long-lived assets ... .......... 8,313,649 19,037,147 142,445 1,557,044 29,050,285
Assets held for'sale ... ...... . 1,501,717 — — - 1,501,717
Total assets™ .. ....... ...... 24,744,987 38,265,821 2,390,617 6,787,527 72,188,952
Capital expenditures . . ......... 701,834 645,407 147,993 1,495,234

Personal .

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Medical Care Regal Other Total
Netsales ..., o $29,764570 $2,934,734 $ o~ % —  $32,699,304
Operating (loss) income from

continuing operations ........ 357446 182,282 —_ (4,186,046) (3,646,318)
Depreciation of property and '

equipment and amortization of

identifiable intangible assets . . . . 1,426,177 241,400 T — 91,203 1,758,780
Long-lived assets . . ........... 9,871,785 2,531,266 — 1,599,347 14,002,398
Assets held forsale ........... 1,241,368 = —_ — - — 1,241,368
Total assets® . .. .. .......... 27413265 8,886,727 — 31,308,110 67,608,102
Capital expenditures . . . . ....... 2,237,043 72,671 — . 2,309,714

. Personal . o .

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Medical Care Regal Other Total
Netsales ................ L. $32904,343  $4.499510  $ — 3 —  $37,403,853
QOperating (loss) income from '

continuing operations ........ 1,249,702 700,345 — (6,185,687} (4,235,640)
Depreciation of property and :

equipment and amortization of - :

identifiable intangible assets . . .. 1,377,606 - 243,157 — — 1,620,763
Long-lived assets . .. .......... 10,756,731 2,704,232 — — 13,460,963
Assets held forsale . .......... 1,196,600 — — 1,196,600
Total assets™ ... ............ 47,501,245 8,474,531 — — 55,975,776
Capital expenditures . . ... ... ... 839,058 79,947 — — 919,005

(a) Total assets do not include assets held for sale of $1,501,717, $1,241,368 and $1,196,600 for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Assets held for sale represent the assets of
Langer UK, which was sold in January 2008.
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Geographical segment information is summarized as follows:

United Consolidated
Year Ended December 31, 2007 United States Canada Kingdom Total
Net sales to external customers . ............ $58,522,705 $3,196,594  $1,192,999  $62,912,298
Intersegment netsales . .................. 914,836 — — 914,836
Gross profit . ...... ... ... ... ... ... 19,972,787 1,548,296 867,422 22,388,505
Operating income (loss) . ................. (2,496,000} 408,810 152,624 (1,934,566)
Depreciation of property and equipment and
amortization of identifiable intangible assets . . . 3,039,842 178,196 — 4,118,038
Long-lived assets . . ..................... 27,947,644 1,102,641 — 29,050,285
Assets held forsale ... .................. —_ —_ 1,501,717 1,501,717
Total assets™ ... ... ... 69,747,257 2,018,678 423,017 72,188,952
Capital expenditures . . .. ................. 1,466,359 28,835 — 1,495,234
United Consolidated
Year Ended December 31, 2006 United States Canada Kingdom Total
Net sales to external customers . ... ......... $28,552,994  $2,877,645 $1,268,665  $32,699,304
Intersegment net sales ... ................ 812,942 — — 312,942
Grossprofit ........... ... ... .. ... ... . 10,346,355 1,369,143 928,201 12,643,699
Operating income (loss} .................. (4,001,356) 233,261 (121,777 (3,646,318)
Depreciation of property and equipment and
amortization of identifiable intangible assets . . . 1,710,281 48,499 — 1,758,780
Long-lived assets .. ..................... 13,407,672 594,726 — 14,002,398
Assetsheld forsale . .................... _— —_ 1,241,368 1,241,368
Total assets® . . ... ... 65,188,305 1,745,800 673,997 67,608,102
Capital expenditures . . .. ........... .. .... 2,287,690 22,024 — ©2,309,714
United Consolidated
Year Ended December 31, 2005 United States ~ Canada Kingdom .. Total
Net sales to external customers . ............ $33,448,447 32,460,496 $1,494910  $37,403,853
Intersegment net sates .. .. ............... 963,676 — = 963,676
Grossprofit .. ... ... ... . . . . . e 14,763,380 1,218,533 932,351 16,914,264
Operating {(loss) income . . ................ (4,366,138) 269,430 (138,932) (4,235,640)
Depreciation of property and equipment and ' '
amortization of identifiable intangible assets . . . 1,574,834 45,929 — 1,620,763
Long lived assets . . ..................... 12,841,132 619,831 — 13,460,963
Assetsheld forsale .. ...... ... ... ....... 1,196,600 1,196,600
Total assets™ . ... ..., 52,848,424 1,776,858 1,350,494 55,975,776
Capital expenditures . ... ................. 871,652 47,353 — 919,005

(a) Total assets do not include assets held for sale of $1,501,717, $1,241,368 and $1,196,600 for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 20035, respectively. Assets held for sale represent theT assets of

Langer UK, which was sold in January 2008,

Export saies from the Company’s United States operations accounted for approximately 9%, 16% and
17% of net sales for each of the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Prior to July 30, 1986, the Company maintained a non-contributory defined benéfit pension plan covering
substantially all employees. Effective July 30, 1986, the Company adopted an amendment to the plan under
which future benefit accruals to the plan ceased (freezing the maximum benefits available to employees as of
July 30, 1986), other than those required by law. Previously accrued benefits remain in effect and continue to
vest under the original terms of the plan.

" The following table sets forth the Company’é defined benefit plan status at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
determined by the plan’s actuary in accordance with SFAS No. 158: !

December 31,

. 2007 2006
Change In Benefit Obligation :
Benefit obligation at beginning of year . .. ........... ... ... $ (97,068) $(747,671)
Interest cost . . .. .......... [ (4,799) (37,319)
Benefits paid . .......... e e P 1,640 2,811
Actuarial 108S . . . . . .. e (5,460) (20,938)
Settlement . . ... ... ... ... e 105,687 706,049
Benefit obligation atend of year .. . . . ...... . ... ... ... L. % — - § (97,068)
" Change In Plan Fair Value of Assets '
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year ... ........ .. e $ 99,806 $ 707,283
Actual return on plan assets ... ....... e 5,521 34,229
Employer contribution . . .. ......... ... .. .. . .. . . 2,000 - 67,154
Benefits paid ........ e e e {1,640) (2,811)
Settlement ., .. ... ... e e e e e e e e e e e (105,687) (706,049)
Fair value of plan assets,endof year ...................... $ — $ 99.806
Funded Status of Plan
Accumulated benefit obligation . . . .. ... ... ... ... .. ... ... b — $ (97,068)
Fair value plan assets .. ...... .. ... .. . i — 99,806
Funded status . . . .. ......... B $ — $- 2,738
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of: .
Prepaid pension expense . ............. ... ... $ — $ 2,738
Accumulated other comprehensive loss .. ... ... .. ... .. ... — 143,471
Net Amount Recognized . ......................... e $ — $ 146,209

Net periodic pension expense is comprised of the following components:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Interest COSt . . oo e e $ 4,799 $ 37,319 $ 35,706
Expected return on plan assets .. ............... (3,521} (54,274) (47,482)
Amortization of unrecognized transition obligation' e 88,947 N 7,791
Amortization'of net loss . .. .............. ... L 2344 19,727 19,064
SEMIEMENt . . ..\t i e 57,640 396,591 —

Net periodic pension expense . ....... e ... $148,209 $407.154 $ 15,079 .
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During 2007, the Company terminated its pension plan and distributed a total of $57,640 to several
participants during 2007 to close the plan. On November 2, 2006 a lump sum payment was made to the
benefit of a former owner of the Company for $706,049 as of December 31, 2006, which resuited in a settle-
ment expense of $396,591,

Assumptions

Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31:

2007 2006 2005
Discountrate . ....... ... i 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Salary increases rate .. .......... .. . ..., N/A N/A N/A

Weighted average assumptions used to determine periodic benefit cost for years ended December 31:

[

2007 2006 2005
Discountrate . ... .. ... ..o 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Salary increases rate . . .......... .. .. ... N/A N/A N/A
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets . .. .. 7.5% 1.5% . 7.5%

The discount rate is based upon applicable interest rates prescribed in the Plan for lump sam settlement
payments.

The expected long-term rate of return is selected based upon the expected duration of the projected
benefit obligation for the plan and the asset mix of the plan. There is no assumed increase in compen_s'alion
levels since future benefit accruals have ceased, as discussed above. The Plan has been terminated, and as of B
December 31, 2007, all plan assets have been distributed and all accrued benefit obligations have been paid.

The Company has a defined contribution retirement and savings plan (the “401(k) Plan’") desighed to
qualify under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”). Eligible employees include those
who are at least twenty-one years old and who have worked at least 1,000 hours during any one year. The
Company may make matching contributions in amounts that the Company determines at its discretion at the
beginning of each year. In addition, the Company may make further discretionary contributions. Participating
employees are immediately vested in amounts attributable to their own salary or wage reduction elections, and
are vested in Company matching and discretionary contributions under a vesting schedule that provides for
ratable vesting over the second through sixth years of service. The assets of the 401 (k) Plan are invested in
stock, bond and money market mutual funds. For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, the
Company made contributions totaling $104,398, $75,879, and $73,430, respectively, to the 401(k) Plan.

(17) Income Taxes

The components of net income (loss) before the provision for (benefit from) income taxes are as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Domestic Operations. . . . .. ... u i un e $(4,296,138) 3$(4,506,340) $(4,605,120)
Foreign operations. . .. ...................... (221,839) (347,149) 47,852

$(4,517,977) $(4,853,489) $(4,557,268)
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The provision for (benefit from} income taxes is comprised of the following:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Current:
Federal ... ... . i $(15,280) $ 23,049 $ —_ ..
SIAlE . . . e e —_ — —
Foreign ........ [ D 118,927 ' 88,643 113,518
103,647 111,692 113,518
Deferred:
Federal ... ... ... . . ... 113,520 338,579 (254,779)
State . . e e 16,994 59,749 (37,399)
Foreign . R 610 (63,927) {22,500)
131,124 334,401 (314,678)

$234,771 $446,093 $(201,160)

The above detailed tax provisions (benefit) represents the Company’s total consolidated tax provision
(benefit) including the effect of both continuing and discontinued pretax income (loss).

‘ As of December 31, 2007, the Company has net Federal tax operating loss carryforwards of approxi-

‘ mately $11,400,000, which may be applied against future taxable income and expires from 2008 through
2027, compared 1o net Federal operating loss carryforwards of approximately $9,800,000 as of December 31,
2006. Future utilization of these net operating loss carryforwards will be limited under existing tax law due to

| the change in control of the Company in 2001,
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The following is a summary of deferred tax assets and liabilities:

December 31,

2007 2006
Current assets: ‘ '
Accounts receivable .. ... ... . . L $§ 575364 & 200,371
Stock options . . . . ... L. 650,266 625,418
INVENtOry reserves . ..o v ittt i e e e 805,254 394,335
=3 113 U« — 154,338
Accrued expenses andother . . .. ....... .. ... . .. L 107,502 201,407

2,138,386 1,575,869
Non current assets: '

Capital lease . ... ... ... . . .. i e 639,096 630,273
Intangible assets . . ... .. ... e e 791,036 696,246
Net operating loss carryforwards . ... ... ... ... ... .. ...... 4,552,966 ~ 3,907,219
Other . .. 5,958 5,958
5,989,056 5,239,696
Valuation allowances . . . ... ... .. e e (2,759,000) (6,718,177)
Non current liabilities: .
Property and equipment . . . ... ... . ... (1,687,601) (97,388)
Goodwill and Trade Names . ... ... ... . ... (5.482,404) (1,659,333)
(7,170,005)  (1,756,721)
Net deferred tax liabilities . . ... ... ... ... . ... . . .. ..., $(1,801,653) $(1,659,333)

The acquisition of Twincraft during 2007 resulted in approximately $5,557,000 of deferred tax liabilities
being provided as a result of the carrying value of fixed assets and identifiable intangibles for financial report-
ing purposes exceeding the related tax basis of such assets. These deferred tax liabilities resulted in a
corresponding reduction to the tax valuation allowance relating to the Company’s net deferred tax assets.
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The Company’s effective provision for income taxes differs from the Federal statutory rate. The reasons

for such differences are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Amount % Amount Yo Amount o
Provision at Federal
statutory rate . ........ $(1,305,727) (34.0) $(1.498,515) (34.0) $(1,617.866) (34.0)
Change in fair value of
PutOption . .. ........ — — — — (595,000) (12.5)
Compensation expense from
stock option modification . — —_— — — 355,513 7.5
Other Permanent items . . .. 134,177 3.5 77,195 1.7 (153,198} (3.2)
Increase (decrease) in taxes
resulting from:
State income tax expense,
net of federal benefit . . 11,216 03 59.749 1.4 (37,399) (0.8)
Expiration of NOL's . ... 11,215 0.3 — — — —
Effect of foreign )
operations .. ....... 20,171 0.5 93,460 2.1 11,090 0.2
Change in valuation
allowance . ......... 1,416,959 36.9 1,683,574 38.2 1,841,759 38.7
Other .............. (53,240) (1.8) 30,630 0.7 (6,059  (0.1)
Effective tax rate . ....... $ 234,771 57% § 446093 10.1% § (201,160) (4.2Y%

The Company does not provide for income taxes on the unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries
where, in management’s opinion, such eamings have been-indefinitely reinvested in those operations or will be
remitted as dividends with taxes substantially offset by foreign tax credits, which are immaterial. 1t is not
practical to determine the amount of unrecognized deferred tax liabilities for temporary differences related to
these investments. The Company recorded an adjustment of approximately $275,000 for the prior year under-
accrual of deferred taxes related to an intangible impairment in the year ended December 31, 2006.

(18) Reconciliation of Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per common share (*EPS™) are computed based on the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per common share are computed based on
the weighted average number of common shares, after giving effect to dilutive common stock equivalents
outstanding during each period. The diluted income (loss) per share computations for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 exclude approximately 1,963,000, 1,709,000, and 1,210,000 shares,
respectively, related to employee stock options because the effect of including them would be anti-dilutive.
The impact of the 5% Convertible Notes and the 4% Convertible Notes on the calculation of the fully-diluted
earnings per share was anti-dilutive and is therefore not included in the computation for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.
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Consulting Agreement with Kanders & Company, Inc.  On November 12, 2004, the Company entered
into a consulting agreement (the “Consulting Agreement’”} with Kanders & Company, Inc. (“Kanders &
Company™), the sole stockholder of which is Warren B. Kanders, who on November 12, 2004, became the
Company's Chairman of the Board of Directors, and who is the sole manager and voting member of Langer
Partners, LLC (“Langer Partners”™), the Company’s largest stockholder. The Consulting Agreement provides
that Kanders & Company will act as the Company’s non-exclusive consultant to provide the Company with
strategic consulting and corporate development services for a term of three years. Kanders & Company will
receive, pursuant to the Consulting Agreement, an annual fee of $200,000 ($300,000 commencing in the year
ended December 31, 2007) and may receive separate compensation for assistance, at the Company’s request,
with certain transactions or other matters to be determined by the Board from time to time. Additionally,
through the Consulting Agreement, Kanders & Company was granted options to purchase 240,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $7.50 per share (the market price of the stock on the
date of the grant), vesting in three equal annual installments beginning on November 12, 2005. The Company
accounted for 15,000 of such options as compensation for duties performed by Mr. Kanders in his capacity as
Chairman of the Board under APB No. 25, and accounted for 225,000 of such options as being granted pursu-
ant to the Consulting Agreement and accounted for in accordance with EITF No. 96-18, “Accounting for
Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling,
Goods and Services.” The Company recorded non-cash stock option compensation expense of approximately
$1,257,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005 with respect to the consulting options of which approxi-
mately $882,000 relates to the acceleration of the vesting of such options. The Company has also.agreed to
provide Kanders & Company with indemnification prolection, which survives the termination of the Consult-
ing Agreement for six years, and extends to any actual or wrongfully attempted breach of duty, neglect, error,
or misstatement by Kanders & Company alleged by any claimant. The Consulting Agreement replaced a
previous agreement for similar consulting services, pursuant to which Kanders & Company received an annual
fee of $100,000, options to purchase 100,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of
$1.525 per share, and the indemnification protection described above. The Company paid $300,000, $200,000,
and $200.000 with respect to the annual fee under the Consulting Agreemenl durmg the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

On November 12, 2004, the Board of Directors approved a grant of 100,000 shares of restricted stock to
Kanders & Company, subject to certain performance conditions, provided Mr. Kanders has not resigned as
Chairman of the Board, all of which were originally scheduled to vest on November 12, 2007, and which
accelerate upon the death of Mr. Kanders, or the change of control of the Company. On December 20, 2005,
the Company accelerated the vesting of the stock award, subject to lock-up, confidentiality and non-
competition agreements. The Company recorded a compensation charge of $465,000 with respect to such
award in the statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2003, of which approximately $317,000
relates to the acceleration of the vesting of such award.

5% Convertible Subordinated Notes. On December 8, 2006, the Company sold $28,880,000 of the
Company’s 5% Convertible Notes due December 7, 2011 in a private placement. (See Note 11, Long-Term
Debt.) The number of shares of common stock acquirable on conversion of the notes, as of December 31,
2007, is 6,195,165 and the conversion rate under the 5% Convertible Notes at such date is $4.6617 per share.
A trust controlled by Mr. Warren B. Kanders, the Chairman of the Board of Directors and largest beneficial
stockholder, owns (as a trustee for a member of his family) $2,000,000 of the 5% Convertible Notes, and one
director, Stuart P. Greenspon, owns $150,000 of the 5% Convertible Notes. '

Contract Termination.  On September 8, 2005, the Company determined not to extend Andrew H.
Meyer’'s employment contract, and in accordance with its terms, the contract expired December 31, 2005
(except for certain covenants by Mr. Meyers in favor of the Company). In accordance with a modification of
the employment contract on November 12, 2004, which extended his right to exercise 175,000 vested options
from 90 days to one year beyond termination, the Company recorded a non-cash charge equal to the intrinsic
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(19) Related Party Transactions — (continued)

value of the options on the date the option agreement was modified, or approximately $1,046,000 at
December 31, 2005. Of the 175,000 vested options, 98,750 options were exercised and 76,250 options were
surrendered to the Company as part of a cashless exercise on September 20, 2006. Additionally, as of
December 31, 2005, the Company accrued approximately $335,000 for severance related expenses in accor-
dance with the contract and a related separation agreement.

Other Related Party Transactions. 'The Company has obtained certain technology related products and
services from a company owned by the brother-in-law of Andrew Meyers, who was, until December 31, 2005,
the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer and who remained a director of the Company until
March 24, 2006. Costs incurred by the Company for such products and services were approximately $120,000,
and $37,000, for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

During 2007, the Company entered into a sublease agreement for a portion of its leased space at 41
Madison Avenue, New York, NY. (See Note 12.) A member of the Company’s board of directors is also a
member of the subtenant’s board of directors. Sublease payments received by the Company amounted to
$45,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007.

(20) Litigation

On or about February 13, 2006, Dr. Gerald P. Zook filed a demand for arbitration with the American
Arbitration Association, naming the Company and Silipos as 2 of the 16 respondents. (Four of the other
respondents are the former owners of Silipos and its affiliates, and the other 10 respondents are unknown
entities.) The demand for arbitration alleges that the Company and Silipos are in default of obligations to pay
royalties in accordance with the terms of a license agreement between Dr. Zock and Silipos dated as of Janu-
ary 1, 1997, with respect to seven patents owned by Dr. Zook and licensed to Silipos. Silipos has paid
royalties to Dr. Gerald P. Zook, but Dr. Gerald P. Zook claims that greater royalties are owed. The demand for
arbitration seeks an award of $400,000 and reserves the right to seek a higher award after completion of
discovery. Dr. Gerald P. Zook has agreed to drop Langer, Inc. (but not Silipos) from the arbitration, without
prejudice. The matter is in the discovery stage.

On or about February 13, 2006, Mr Peter D, Bickel, who was the executive vice president of Silipos,
Inc., until January 11, 2006, alleged that he was terminated by Silipos without cause and, therefore, was
entitled, pursuant to his employment agreement, to a severance payment of two years’ base salary. On or
about February 23, 2006, Silipos commenced action in New York State Supreme Court, New York County,
against Mr. Bickel seeking, among other things, a declaratory judgment that Mr. Bickel is not entitled to
severance pay or other benefits, on account of his breach of various provisions of his employment agreement
with Silipos and his non-disclosure agreement with Silipos, and that he voluntarily resigned his employment
with Silipos. Silipos also sought compensatory and punitive damages for breaches of the employment agree-
ment, breach of the non-disclosure agreement, breach of fiduciary duties, misappropriation of trade secrets,
and tortious interference with business relationships. On or about March 22, 2006, Mr. Bickel removed the
lawsuit to the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York and filed an answer denying
the material allegations of the complaints and counterclaims seeking a declaratory judgment that his non-
disclosure agreement is unenforceable and that he is entitled to $500,000, representing two years’ base salary,
in severance compensation, on the ground that Silipos did not have “‘cause” to terminate his employment. On
August 8, 2006, the Court determined that the restrictive covenant was enforceable against Mr. Bickel for the
duration of its term (which expired on January 11, 2007) to the extent of prohibiting Mr. Bickel from solicit-
ing certain key customers of the Company with whom he had worked during his employment with the
company. The Company has withdrawn, without prejudice, its claims for compensatory and punitive damages
for breaches of the employment agreement, breach of the non-disclosure agreement, breach of fiduciary duties,
misappropriation of trade secrets, and tortuous interference with business relations. On October 12, 2007, the
court isseed an opinion and order dismissing all of Mr, Bickel’s claims against Silipos, denying Mr. Bickel’s
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motion to-dismiss the remaining claims of Silipos against hirh, and allowmg Silipos.to proceed with its claims
against Mr. Bickel for breach of ﬁducrary duty and disloyalty.

" Additionally, in the normal course of business, the Company may 'be subject to claims and litigation in
the areas of general liability, 1ncludmg claims of employees and claims, litigation or other liabilities as a
result of acquisitions completed The results of legal proceedmgs are difficult to predict and the Company
cannot provide any assurance that an action or proceeding will not be commenced against the Company or
that the Company will prevail in any such action or proceeding. An unfavorable outcome of the arbitration
proceeding commenced by Dr. Gerald P. Zook against Silipos may adversely affect the Company’s rights to. .
manufacture and/or sell certain products or raise the royalty costs of these certain products.

An unfavorable resolution of any legal action or proceeding could materially adversely affect the market
price of the Company’s common stock and its business, results of operations, liquidity, or financial condition.

(21) Restructuring o

On May 3, 2007, the Company announced its plan to close its Anaheim manufacturing facility in order to
better leverage the Company’s resources by reducing costs, obtaining operational efficiencies and to further
align the Company’s business with market conditions, future revenue expectations and planned future product
directions. The plan included the elimination of 27 positions, which represented approximately 4.5% of the
Company’s workforce. During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company recognized expénses of '
$200,485, consisting of employee termination benefits and related costs of $128,572, loss on the abandonment
of fixed assets of $28,193, expenses relating to the exiting of our Anaheim leased facility, which would have
expired in December, 2007, of $34,560, and other exit costs of $9,160. This plan was completed by the end of
2007.

(22) Subsequent Events

(a) Sale of Langer (UK) Limited

On January '18, 2008, the Company sold all of the outstanding capital stock of its wholly owned subsid-
iary, Langer (UK) Limited {“Langer UK") fo an affiliate’ of Sole Solitions, a retailer of specialty footwear
based in the United Kingdom. The sales price was $1,155,313, of which $934,083 was paid at closing and the
remaining $221,230in the form of a note receivable. In addition, transaction costs in the amount of $125,914
were incurred. The note bears interest at 8.5% and does not require any monthly payments of principal or
interest. The note and accrued interest are due in full on January 18, 2010. In addition, upon closing, the
Company entered into an exclusive sales agency agreement and distribution services agreement by which
Langer UK will act as sales agent and distributor for Silipos products in the United Kingdom, Europe, Africa,
and Israel. These 'agreements have a term-of three years. In December 2007, the Company recorded an impair-
ment of $175,558 related to the allocated portion of goodwill related to Langer UK as a result of the net loss
associated with this sale. Such impairment is included in loss from operations of discontinued subsidiary.

o . i

(b) Stock Repurchase -

In accordance with the previously announced stock repurchase program, the Company purchased 342,352
shares of its common stock at a price of $2.00 per share on January 25, 2008. The total cost of this purchase,
including brokerage commission, amounted to $694 975. . T

(¢) Termination of lease .

The Company anticipates that it will vacate the premises at its 41 Madison Avenue, New York, NY
location in May 2008 and find new smaller, and lower cost office space.
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(23) Quarterly Operating Results (Unaudited)
Mar. 31, June 30, Sep. 30, - Dec.'31, Mar. 31, June 30, Sep. 30, Dec. 31,

2006 2006 2006 2006(1) 2007 2007 . 2007 2007‘1’
(In Thousands, Except per Share Data) N '

' NetSales . ............. $ 7,787 : $8,541 $8,373 | . $7,998 $14,321  $16,598 $16,611 $15,383
Costofsales............ 4923 L4921 4,862 . 5,350 | 9,030 . 10,817 10,384 10,292
Gross profit . ........... 2,864 3,620 . 351 2,648 5,291 5,781 o 6,227 5,091
Selling expenses . ........ 1,741 .1,573 1,443 1,278 2,098 . 2,468 2476 2,376
General and administrative . _ ‘ ' . . o

EXPENSES . . . .. ... ‘ 2,185 2,206 2,321 13,013 3,244 3,394 ' 3,689 3,739
Research and development ‘ ' " ' -
EXPENSes . . . . ... ... ... 123 142 ' 152 111 197 L2101 224 208
Operating (loss) income . . . (1,185) (301) (405) (1,754) (248) (292) (162) {1,232)
Other income {expense) '
Interest income . . ... ... 159 211 151 108 132 ' 73 22 30
Interest expense . ....... (303) 277 217 (147) (526) (548) . (556) (556)
Other income (expense) . . . {8) 28 3 (26) {7 (11’ 4 36
Other expense, net . ... .. (152) . (38) {63) (65) . (401} (486) (530) (490}
Loss from continuing
operations before income . S : . C o
LAXES . . v i (1,337) (339) (468) (1,819 (649) (778) {692) (1,722)
(Provision for) benefit from ' ; '
ncome taxes .. ........ A (6) 21 C (510} ¢ (63) (44) < (102) (24)
Loss from continuing o ' no
operations . . ... . ....: (1,344) (345) @q4mn - (2,329) - (712) {822) (794) (1,746}
Discontineed Operations: : . -
Loss from operations of
discontinued
subsidiary: . ......... (81) (136) (106) (121) (72) (28) - (43) (301)
Income tax benefit
(provision} . . .. ...... (1) —_ — 57 — — — —
Loss from discontinued '
operations .......... {(82) (136) . {106) (64) (72). (28) . (43) (301)
Netloss . .............. $(1,426) $ (481) $ (553) $(2,393) $ (784) 5 (850) $ (837 $(2,047)
Net loss per share: ‘ . S )
Basic and diluted:
Loss from continuing . . ; ) .
operations . . . ...... $ (0.14) ${0.03) $(0.04) $(0.23) $ (0.06) $ (0.07) $ (0.07) $ (015
Loss from discontinued T ’ ) ' ' '
operations . .. ...... {0.01) (0.01) 0o {0.01) - {0.01) 000 - (0.00) (0.03)
Basic and diluted loss e o :
per share . . .. .. .. $ (0.15). $(0.04) $(0.05) $.(0.24) $ (0.07) $ 00D $ 00D 3 (0.18)

(1) Included in the operating results for the quarter ended Decembér 31, 2006 were:
(a) an additional provision for inventory obsolescence of approximately $286,000;.
(b) a pension settlement loss of approximately $397,000;
(c) the loss on abandonment of certain New York City office space of apprommately $112,000; and
(d) a provision for income taxes of approximately $437,000.
(2) Included in discontinued operations for the quarter ended December 31, 2007 were:
(a) an accrual for the loss on the sale of Langer UK of $175,558.
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Item 9. 'Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accou‘nting and Financial Disclosure
. i . Iy ' . . "
Nothing 10 report. e

Item 9A(T). Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

0 H e Oy A
The Company’s management, including its Chief Execunve Officer (“CEQ"} and Chlef Fmanc:al Officer
(“CFQO™), has evalvated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosuse controls and procedures, as such term
is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities- Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the “Exchange Act™) as of December 31, 2007. Based on that evaluation, the-Company’s CEO and CFO ! "
have concluded that the Company’ disclosure controls and procedures are effective in recording, processing,
summarizing and reporting, within the time periods specified in the: SEC’s rules and forms, information ., -
required 1o be disclosed by the Company in the reports it files or submits under the Exchange Act, and in
ensuring that information required to be disclosed is in the reports that the Company filés or submiits under the
Exchange Act is tollected and conveyed to the Company’s management, including its CEO and CFO, to aliow
timely decisions to be made regarding required disclosure. ' ! :

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate control over finan-
cial reporting, as such term defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-13(f) and 15d-15(f). The Company performed
an evalvation, under supervision and with participation of the Company’s management, including its CEO and
CFO, of the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on the framework
in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread-
way Commission. Based on that evaluation, the CEOQ and CFO concluded that the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007,

This annual report does not include an attestation repoert of the Company’s independent registered public
accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject 1o
attestation by the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission that permits the Company to provide only management’s report in this
annual report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the most
recent quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to matertally affect, the Company’s inter-
nal control over financial reporting.

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Company

The information set forth under the caption “Election of Directors” in the proxy statement to be distrib-
uted by the Board of Directors of the Company in connection with the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders,
which is expected to be filed on or before April 30, 2008, is incorporated herein by reference.

The Company has adopted a code of ethics that applies to its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, who are the Company's principal executive officer and principal financial and accounting officer, and
to all of its other officers, directors and managerial employees. The code of ethics may be accessed
at www.langerinc.com, our Internet website, at the tab “Investor Relations”. The Company intends to disclose
future amendments to, or waivers from, certain provision of its code of ethics, if any, on the above website
within four business days following the date of such amendment or waiver.

Item 11, Executive Compensation

The information required by ltem 11 appearing under the caption “Executive Compensation” of the
Company’s proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is expected o be filed on or
before April 30, 2008, is incorporated herein by reference,
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Ttem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by Item 12 appearing under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters™ of the Company's proxy statement for
the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is expected to be filed on or before April 30, 2008, is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by Item 13 appearing under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions” of the Company’s proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of the Stockholders, which is
expected to be filed on or before April 30, 2008, is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 appearing under the caption “Principal Accountant Fees and
Services” of the Company’s proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of the Stockholders, which is
expected to be filed on or before April 30, 2008, is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 15, Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

1. Financial Statements

For a list of the financial statements of the Company included in this report, please see the Index to
Consolidated Financial Statements appearing at the beginning of Item 8, Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data. !

2. Financial Statement Schedules

The following Financial Statement Schedule is filed as part of this Form 10-K:

Schedule 11 — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

LANGER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
SCHEDULE I!

Allowance Valuation
Sales Returns for Doubtful Allowance for

and Accounts Inventory Deferred

Allowances Receivable Reserve Tax Assets
AtJanuary 1,2005 . .................... $ 68,000 $ 379,657 $ 369,244  § 2,568,330
Additions .. ........ ... ... .. L L. — 151,066 453,027 2,111,784
Deletions .. .........c.uivninennnnn. _— (100,650) (258,003) —
At December 31,2005 ... .. .............. 68,000 430,073 564,268 4,680,114
Additions . ...... .. ... .. .. o —_ 223,168 467,918 2,038,063
Deletions .. ....ooviin — {181,920) (147,035) e
At December 31,2006 . .................. 68,000 471,321 885,151 6,718,177
Additions ... ... ... ... ... ... . .. . ... — 1,357,545 1,180,691 —
Deletions . ........... .. ... 0iien... (18,000) {830,029) (503,986) (3.,959,087)
At December 31,2007 ... ..., . ... ... ... $ 50,000 $ 998,837 $1,561,856  $ 2,759,090

All other schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable, not required ot the information is
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, including the notes thereto,
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3. Exhibits

Exhibit
No.

Description of Exhibit

3.1

3.2

33

4.1

10.1+

10.2%+
10.31+

10.4+

10.5

10.6

10.7+
10.8

10.5

10,10

10.11

10.125%
10.13

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of May 15, 2002, between Langer, Inc., a New York
corporation, and Langer, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the surviving corporation), incorporated
herein by reference to Appendix A of our Definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders held on June 27, 2002, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
May 31, 2002.

Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated herein by reference to Appendix B of our Definitive
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on June 27, 2002, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 31, 2002,

By-laws, incorporated herein by reference to Appendix C of our Definitive Proxy Statement for
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on June 27, 2002, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 31, 2002. '

Specimen of Common Stock Certificate, incorporated herein by reference to our Registration
Statement of Form S-1 (File No. 2- 87183).

Employment Agreement between Langer, inc. and Andrew H. Meyers, dated as of February 13,
2001, incorporated herein by reference to, Exhibit 10.6 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed
on May 29, 2001 (File No. 000-12991).

Employment Agreement between Langer, Inc. and Steven Goldstein, dated as of November 15,
2004.

Consulting Agreement between Langer, Inc. and Kanders & Company, Inc., dated November 12,
2004.

Option Agreement between Langer, Inc. and Kanders & Company, Inc., dated February 13, 2001,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (d)(1)(G) to the Schedule TO (File Number
005-36032).

Registration Rights Agreement between Langer, Inc. and Kanders & Company, Inc., dated
February 13, 2001, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (d)(1)(I) to the Schedule TO
(File Number 005-36032).

Indemnification Agreement between Langer, Inc. and Kanders & Company, Inc., dated

February 13, 2001, incorporated heréin by reference to Exhibit (d)(1)(J) to the Schedule TO
(File Number 005-36032). '

The Company’s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 of
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.

Langer Biomechanics Group Retirement Plan, restated as of July 20, 1979 incorporated by
reference to our Registration Statement of Form S-1 (File No. 2-87183).

Agreement, dated March 26, 1992, and effective as of March 1, 1992, relating to our 401(k) Tax
Deferred Savings Plan incorporated by reference to our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
February 29, 1992.

Form of Indemnification Agreement for Langer, Inc.’s executive officers and directors,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended February 28, 2001.

Copy of Lease related to Langer, Inc.’s Deer Park, NY facilities incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(f) of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 28, 1993.

Copy of Amendment to Lease of Langer, Inc.’s Deer Park, NY facility dated February 19, 1999,

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated May 6, 2002, by and among Langer, Inc., GoodFoot
Acquisition Co., Benefoot, Inc., Benefoot Professional Products, Inc., Jason Kraus, and Paul
Langer, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 13, 2002.
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Exhibit
No.

Description of Exhibit

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18+

10.19+

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.281+

10.291+

10.307+

Registration Rights Agreement, dated May 6, 2002, among Langer, Inc., Benefoot, Inc.,

Benefoot Professional Products, Inc., and Dr. Sheldon Langer, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on May 13, 2002.

Promlssory Note, dated May 6, 2002, made by Langer, Inc. in favor of Benefoot Inc.,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 13, 2002.

Promissory Note, dated May 6, 2002, made by Langer, Inc. in favor of Benefoot Professional
Products, Inc., incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of our Current Report on

Form B8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May ‘13, 2002.

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated January 13, 2003, by and among Langer, Inc., Langer Canada
Inc., Raynaid Henry, Micheline Gadoury, 9117-3419 Quebec Inc., Bi-Op Laboratories Inc.,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of our Current Report on Form 8- K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 13, 2003.

Employment Agreement between Langer, Inc. and Joseph Ciavarella dated as of February 16,
2004, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.33 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2003.

Option Agreement between Langer, Inc. and Joseph P. Ciavarella dated as of March 24, 2004,

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.34 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2003.

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 22, 2004, by and among Langer, Inc.,

LRC North America, Inc., SSL Holdings, Inc., and Silipos, Inc., incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 2.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on QOctober 6, 2004.

Stock Pledge and Agency Agreement, dated September 30, 2004, by and among Langer, Inc.,
SSL Holdings, Inc., and Pepper Hamilton LLP., incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4
of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
October 6, 2004.

$7,500, 000 Secured Promissory Note due March 31, 2006, mcorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.5 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on October 6. 2004.

$3.000,000 Promissory Note due December 31, 2009, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.6 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on October 6, 2004. :

Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement, dated September 30, 2004, by and among Langer Inc.,
and the investors named therein, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of our Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 6, 2004,

Form of 7% Senior Subordinated Note due September 30, 2007, incorporated herein by reference

.to Exhibit 4.2 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commissien on October 6, 2004.

Form of Warrant to purchase shares of the common stock of Langer, Inc., incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on October 6, 2004.

Employment Agreement between Langer, Inc. and W. Gray Hudkins, dated as of November 15,
2004,

Amendments dated as of November 12, 2004, October 28, 2004, September 31, 2004, May 28,
2004, March 30, 2004, January 30, 2004 and December 1, 2003, to Employment Agreement
dated as of February 13, 2001, between us and Andrew H. Meyers.

Stock Option Agreement between Langer, Inc. and W, Gray Hudkins, dated November 12, 2004,
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Exhibit
No.

Description of Exhibit

10.311+
10.321+

10.33

10.34

10.35%
10.36%

10.37

10.38

10.39

1040

10.41

10.42

10.43
10.45

10.46+

10.47

Stock Option Agreement between Langer, Inc. and Steven Goldstein, dated November 12, 2004.
Restricted Stock Agreement between Langer, Inc. and W. Gray Hudkins, dated November 12,

. 2004,

Supply Agreement, dated as of September 20, 1999, by and between Silipos, Inc., and
Poly-Gel, L.L.C. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the nine months ended September 30, 2004.

Form of 4% Convertible Subordinated Note due September 31, 2006, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 99.3 of our Current Report on Form 8-K Filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on November 13, 2001.

Letter Agreement dated October 31, 2001, between Langer Partners, LL.C and Oracle
Management. : .

Stock Option Agreement between Langer, Inc. and Kanders & Company, Inc. dated
November 12, 2004.

Patent License Agreement, including amendment no. | thereto, between Applied Elastomerics,
Inc. and SSL. Americas, Inc., dated effective November 30, 2001, incorporated herein by
reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2004, filed with the Commission on 3/30/05, Exhibit 10.41.

Assignment and Assumption Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2004, by and between

SSL Americas, Inc. and Silipos, Inc., incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, filed with the Commission on
3/30/05, Exhibit 10.42.

License Agreement, dated as of January 1, 1997, by and between Silipos, Inc. and Gerald P.
Zook, incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2004, filed with the Commission on 3/30/05, Exhibit 10.43.

Copy of Lease between 366 Madison Inc. and Silipos, Inc., dated April, 1995;

Lease Maodification and Extension Agreement, dated November 1, 1995; and Second Lease
Modification and Extension Agreement, dated December 16, 1997, incorporated herein by
reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2004, filed with the Commission on 3/30/05, Exhibit 10.44.,

Copy of Sublease between Calamar Enterprises, Inc. and Silipos, Inc., dated May 21, 1998;
First Amendment to Sublease between Calamar Enterprises, Inc. and Silipos, Inc., dated July 15,
1998; and Second Amendment to Sublease between Calamar Enterprises, Inc. and Silipos, Inc.,
dated March 1, 1999, incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, filed with the Commission on 3/30/05,
Exhibit 10.45. ‘

I.ease dated December 19, 2003, between the Company (as tenant) and 41 Madison, L.P., of
office space at 41 Madison Avenue, New York, N.Y., incorporated herein by reference to the
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 22, 2005.

Form of Amendment to Stock Option Agreement, incorporated herein by reference to the
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 27, 2005.

Form of Amendment to Restricted Stock Award Agreement, incorporated herein by reference to
the Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 27, 2005.
Employment Agreement dated as of September 18, 2006, between the Company and Sara
Cormack, incorporated herein by reference to the Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed September 18, 2006.

Form of Note Purchase Agreement dated as of December 7, 2006, among the Company and the
purchasers of the Company’s 5% Convertible Notes Due December 7, 2011, including letter
amendment dated as of December 7, 2006, without exhibits, incorporated herein by reference to
the Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 14, 2006.
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10.48

10.49

l 10.50

10.51

10.52+

10.53+

10.54+

10.55+

10.56

10.57

10.58

10.59

10.60

10.61+

Form of the Company's 5% Convertible Note Due December 7, 2011, incorporated herein by
reference to the Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-X filed December 14,
2006.

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of January 8, 2007, by and between Langer, Inc,, and -
Regal Medical Supply, LLC, incorporated herein by reference to the Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company’s Current Report on Form §-K filed January 12, 2007.

Asset Purchase Agreement dated as December 15, 2006, by and among Langer, . Inc.,

Regal Acguisition Co., Regal Medicat Supply, LLC, John Eric Shero, William Joseph Warning,
John P Kenney, Richard Alan Nace, Linda Ann Lee, Carl David Ray, and Roy Kelley,
incorporated herein by reference to the Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed January 12, 2007.

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of January 23, 2007, by and between the Company,
Peter A, Asch, Richard D. Asch, A. Lawrence Litke, and Joseph M. Candido, incorporated herein
by reference to the Exhlblt 10.1 of the Company’s Current Repon on Form 8-K hled January 29,
2007.

Employment Agreement dated January 23, 2007, between Twincraft, Inc. and Peter A. Asch,
incorporated herein by reference to the Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current Report on

Form 8-K filed January 29, 2007.

Employment Agreement dated January 23, 2007, between Twincraft, Inc. and A. Lawrence Litke,
incorporated herein by reference to the Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Current Report on

Form 8-K filed January 29, 2007,

Employment Agreement dated January 23, 2007, between Twincraft, Inc. and Richard. Asch,
incorporated herein by reference to the Exhibit 10.4 of the Company’s Current Report on

Form 8-K filed January 29, 2007

Consulting Agreement dated January 23, 2007, between Twincraft, Inc. and Fifth Element LLC,
incorporated herein by reference to the Exhibit 10.5 of the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed January 29, 2007.

Lease Agreement dated January 23, 2007, between Twincraft, Inc, and Asch Partnership,
incorporated herein by reference to the Exhibit 10.6 of the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed January 29, 2007,

Lease dated October 1, 2003 and as amended January 23, 2006, between Twincraft, Inc. and
Asch Enterprises, LLC, incorporated herein by reference to the Exhibit 10.7 of the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed Janvary 29, 2007.

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of November 14, 2006, by and among Langer, Inc.,

Peter A. Asch, Richard D. Asch, A. Lawrence Litke, and Joseph M. Candido, incorporated herein
by reference to the Exhibit 10.8 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 29,
2007.

Employment Agreement dated as of January 16, 2006, between the Company and Kathryn P.
Kehoe, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.59 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2006, filed on April 2, 2007,

Loan and Security Agreement dated as of May 11, 2007, between Wachovia Bank, National
Association, and Langer, Inc., Silipos, Inc., Regal Medical, Inc., and Twincraft, Inc., incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 15,
2007.

Employment Agreement dated as of July 26, 2007, between the Company and Kathleen P. Bloch,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed July 27, 2007.
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Exhibit .
No. Description of Exhibit
10.62+ Employment Agreement dated as of October 1,'2007, between the Company and
W. Gray Hudkins, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed October 12, 2007.
10.63 Amendment dated June 21, 2007, to Loan and Security Agreement dated as of May 11, 2007,
between Wachovia Bank, National Assoc1atlon and Langer, Inc., Silipos, Inc., Regal Medical,
Inc., and Twincraft, Inc. : o A
10.64 Amendment No. 2 dated as of October 1, 2007, to Loan and Security Agreement dated as of
4 May 11, 2007, between Wachovia Bank, N.A., and Langer, Inc., Silipos, Inc., Regal Medical,
Inc., and Twincraft, Inc. -~
10.65 Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Company and each director.
211 Subsidiaries of the Registrant. I }
23.1 Consent of BDO Seidman, LLP.
31.1 Rule 13_a—14(a)l15d-l4(_a) Ceniﬁcation by Principal Executive Officer.
312 Rule 133-14(a)ll§d-14ta) Centification by Principal Financial Officer.
32.1 Section 1350 Certification by Principal Executive Officer.
322 Section 1330 Certification by Principal Financial Officer.

+  Incorporated herein by reference to our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-120718) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission.on November 23, 2004.

t1 Incorporated herein by reference to Amendment No. 2 of our Registration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-120718), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 11, 2005.

+  This exhibit represents a management contract or compensation plan.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

LANGER, INC.

Date: March 31, 2008 By: /s/ W. Gray Hudkins

W. Gray Hudkins
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 31, 2008 By: /s/ Kathleen P. Bloch

Kathleen P. Bloch
Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated,

Date: March 31, 2008 By: /s/ Warren B. Kanders

Warren B. Kanders
* Birector

Date; March 31, 2008 By: /s/ Peter A, Asch

Peter A. Asch
Director

Date: March 31, 2008 By: /s/ Stephen M. Brecher

Stephen M. Brecher
Director

Date: March 31, 2008 By: /s/ Burtt R. Ehrlich

Burtt R, Ehrlich
Director

Date: March 31, 2008 By: /s/ Stuart P. Greenspon

Stuart P. Greenspon
Director

Date: March 31, 2008 By: /s/ W. Gray Hudkins

W. Gray Hudkins
Director
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total stockkolder return (stock price appreciation) of our
Common Stock with the cumulative return (including reinvested dividends) of the NASDAQ (U.S.) Index and
the Russell 2000 Index, for the peried from January 1, 2002, through December 31, 2007. The stock price
performance shown on the graph is not necessarily indicative of future price performance. The Company
considered providing a comparison consisting of a group of peer companies in an industry or line-of-business
similar to ours, but we could not identify a group of reasonably comparable companies that we believe would
provide our stockholders with a meaningful comparison. The comparisons in the chart below are based upon
historical data and are not indicative of, nor intended to forecast, future performance of the Company’s com-
mon stock,
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Warren B. Kanders, Chairman

President of Kanders &
Company, Inc.

W. Gray Hudkins
President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company

Peter A. Asch

President of Twincraft, Inc., a
wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company

Stephen M. Brecher
CPA

Burtt R. Ehrlich
Consultant

Stuart P. Greenspon
Consultant

MANAGEMENT
W. Gray Hudkins
President and Chief Executive Officer

Peter A. Asch
President of Twincraft, Inc.

Kathleen P. Bloch
Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

HEADQUARTERS
Langer, Inc.

450 Commack Road
Deer Park, N.Y. 11729
(631} 667-1200

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT
W. Gray Hudkins, President and
Chief Executive Officer

(631) 667-1200

STOCK QUOTATION

The Company's common stock is
quoted on The Nasdaq Global Market
under the symbol GAIT. Current
quotes for Langer common stock

can be viewed at www.langerinc.com.

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
AGENT

Registrar and Transfer Company
10 Commerce Drive

Cranford, N.J. 07016-3572

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
BDO Seidman, LLP

401 Broadhollow Road

Melville, N.Y. 11747

LEGAL COUNSEL

Kane Kessler, P.C.

1350 Avenue of the Americas
New York, N.Y. 10019

FORM 10-K

Stockholders may obtain without
charge a copy of the Company's
2007 Form 10-K at
www.langerinc.com or upon written
request to the Corporate Secretary
at the Headquarters address.

ANNUAL MEETING

The 2008 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders will be held on
Tuesday, June 17, 2008 at

10:30 a.m., Eastern U.S. time, at
1350 Avenue of the Americas —
26" Floor, New York, N.Y. 10019,
Detailed information about the
meeting is contained in the
Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy
Statement sent with a copy of this
Annual Report.

This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements refated to our future results. Assumptions relating to forward-
looking statements involve business judgment with respect to, among other things, future economic, competitive and market
conditions and future business decisions, all of which are difficult or impossible to predict accurately and many of which are
beyond our control. When used in this Annual Report, the words “intend,” “believe,” and “expect” and similar expressions are
intended to identify forward-ooking statements. In light of the significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-fooking
information included in this Annual Report, you should not regard the inclusion of such information as our representation that
we will achieve any strategy, objective, or other plan. These risks and uncertainties, relating to both ongeing operations and
acquisitions, are described in the Company's filings with the Secunities and Exchange Commission, including the Company’s
2007 Form 10-K and most recently filed Form 10-Qs and Form 8-Ks.
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